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[N REAL TIME With thought feaders and market experts positioned

throughout the world, we interpret global events and conditions first-
hand and uncover the implications to benefit our clients. Our ability to
craft insightful business solutions has led the world’s leading real estate
owners, occupiers and investors to Jones Lang LaSalle.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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A MIESSAGE FROM OUR CEO "

Fellow shareholders:

In Real Time

Across the world, 2002 was clearly a challenging year

in which to do business. It was an environment that
demanded fast and flexible responses to opportunities
and continuously changing risks. | am proud that our
people excelled in their delivery of strategic solutions to
our clients, in real time. While it was certainly disappointing
that we were not able to reach our initial financial targets
for the year, | believe we made good progress towards
our goals for client service, for developing our people
and in positioning the global Jones Lang LaSalle platform
to deliver long-term growth for shareholders.

Jones Lang LaSalle’s key competitive advantage is our
capacity to combine world-class thought leadership on real
estate issues with deep local market knowliedge in 100
markets across 34 countries. It is this combination that
enables us to become trusted advisors to our clients by
consistently providing the best advice, when and where
they need it.

In this review, you will read about our success in helping
clients to identify and interpret the key dynamics of real
estate in the context of their wider businesses. This insight
extends from the detailed analysis of economic and
demographic trends to assessing the long-term impact of
major city events such as the Olympics or World Cup and
identifying the markets that have the essential character-
istics to be the World Winning Cities of the future.

Thought leadership is at the very centre of our business
and is delivered across the whole spectrum of skills
held by our real estate market professionals. This is much
more than the production of innovative and stimulating
research or the provision of investment and transaction
advice to owners and investors. It reaches to an under-
standing of how real estate issues can materially influence
the performance and potential of any client’s business or
investment portfolio.

Thought leadership also involves enabling clients to invest
and operate across borders and outside their familiar
territory by leveraging the global knowledge network and
infrastructure of our firm. The success of LaSalle Investment
Management in winning substantial mandates for cross-
border investment is a great testament to this model.




The performance of our Corporate Solutions business in
building relationships and securing alliances with major
global and regional clients in diverse business sectors
across the world is truly beginning to demonstrate our
ability to grow this business. Clients continue to see that
they can trust Jones Lang LaSalle to lead their real estate
strategy and solve challenges in real time.

2002 Financial Highlights

Jones Lang LaSalle generated net income of $27 million
from revenues of $840 miilion in 2002. Earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
were $91 miilion for the year.

Reflecting continued strong business cash flow, timely
receivables management and reduced capital expenditures,
the firm paid down its credit facilities by more than $34
million from the prior year. Although the reported U.S.
dollar book value of the firm’s Eurobonds increased by
$26 million, this was due to the currency translation of the
increased strength of the Euro and does not reflect addi-
tional borrowing. In the past three vears, we have
reduced our outstanding debt by over $100 million.

We also used cash in 2002 to repurchase 300,000 shares
of our stock under our approved repurchase programme
to offset dilution from employee compensation plans.
Additionally, during the year we invested new co-invest-
ment capital of $30 million as we continued to invest in
and grow LaSalle Investment Management, which was
offset by $21 million of investment repayments.

The balance sheet strength, characterised by reduced
debt levels, is an important competitive differentiator for
the firm. It provides an invaluable flexibility in response
to tough economic conditions.

In common with many businesses, governments and
market forecasters, we anticipated that 2002 would initially
see a continuation of the poor market conditions that
prevailed in late 2001, but would begin to show signs of
growth and recovery in the later part of the year. The
timing of this expected recovery was particularly relevant
to our business, as the fourth quarter is historically the
period when the real estate markets transact their highest
share of business.

By the end of the third quarter it was apparent that markets
across the world, and particularly in Europe, had not shaken
off the weakness in confidence that was holding back
transaction activity and client decision-making. Ongoing
political uncertainty with the prolonged threat of war and
terrorist activity and the recurring impact of corporate
scandals combined to depress market confidence almost
everywhere. At that time, we identified that our full year
targets were not gaing to be achievable and adjusted our
earnings guidance, while initiating a full review of business
operations and expenditure.

As [ noted in last year's review, we took decisive action
in late 2001 to restructure our business and lower the
cost base. We set out to capture at least $50 million in
annualised savings as a result of this action. | am pleased
to report that this goal was more than achieved on a local
currency basis, reflecting disciplined and focussed action
in all areas of the business.

Nevertheless, the prolonged downturn in market conditions
through 2002 demanded that we identify further savings
to maintain our cost of doing business at a level more
appropriate to revenue. In December 2002, we announced
actions that gave rise to a charge of $13 million in order
to further restructure the business and lower global head-
count by approximately four percent.

Our objective has been to reduce costs in markets or
business areas that are unlikely to deliver growth in the
next period in order to enable additional resources to be
engaged for the high potential opportunities that do exist
in our business. These include the growth markets in
North Asia, the continued enlargement of LaSalle
Investment Management'’s portfolio of business and
the expansion of cur New York operations.

Leadership

A significant priority for 2002 was to align senior leadership
focus with client and business development opportunities,
while ensuring that the cost of managing the business was
appropriate to the market conditions we experienced.

A number of senior leadership changes took place to
support this strategy. Peter Roberts moved from his role
as global Chief Operating Officer to take on responsibility
as CEO for our Americas region. The COO responsibilities
will be shared across the senior team and by our regional
COOs. Earl Webb moved to lead the Americas Capital




Markets business, which is a key growth area for the firm
and a market in which Earl is a world-class leader. Peter
Barge transferred to Singapore as CEQ of the Asia Pacific
region. Christopher Brown took on a new role as Asia
Pacific Chairman to lead business development activity,
particularly in the high potential North Asia markets of
Japan, Korea and China.

While these executive changes were taking place, we also
responded to developments in U.S. corporate governance
practice by adopting an independent board structure.

i would like to thank the executive directors who stepped
down from the board to enable this change. Robin Broad-
hurst, Christopher Brown, Robert Orr, Lynn Thurber and
Earl Webb have all made enormous contributions to the
guality of the Board’s activities in the past three years and
all continue to provide exemplary senior leadership to
the business in their executive roles.

I also wish to welcome and thank our new non-executive
directors, JacksonTai and Sheila Penrose, who joined the
Board at our annual general meeting in May 2002,

Jackson Tai is Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of both DBS Group Holdings and DBS Bank, and Chairman
of the DBS Group Holdings Management Committee. He
joined DBS as Chief Financial Officer in July 1999 and was
President and Chief Operating Officer of DBS Bank from
January 2000 to June 2002. Prior to joining the bank, he
was a Managing Director in J.P. Morgan & Co.’s Investment
Banking Division. He joined J.P. Morgan in 1974 and held
various managerial positions, including that of senior
officer for Asia Pacific, based in Tokyo, and senior officer
for the Western United States, based in San Francisco.

He currently serves on the boards of directors of Singa-
pore Telecommunications and Capitaland. He received a
Bachelor of Science from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute
in 1972 and his MBA from Harvard University in 1974.

Sheila Penrose has served as the President of The Penrose
Group, a provider of strategic advisory services, since her
retirement from Northern Trust Corporation in Chicago in

September 2000. While with Northern Trust, she served as
President of Corporate and Institutional Services and as a
member of the Management Committee. She was employed

by Northern Trust for more than 23 years. She is a member

of the board of directors of eFunds Corporation and
Datacard Group and is an Executive Advisor to the Boston
Consulting Group. She received her bachelor’s degree from

the University of Birmingham in England, her master’s
degree from the London Schoo! of Economics and
attended the Executive Program of the Stanford Graduate
Business School.

Jack and Sheila bring a great depth of experience and
energy to the board and are valuable guides and advisors
to our business. These are challenging times in which to
shouider the responsibilities of a non-executive director,
and | wish to acknowledge the energy, diligence and skill
of all of the board members of Jones Lang LaSalle and
to thank them for their support and direction.

Looking Ahead

It is apparent that, in the early part of 2003, real estate
markets continue to be impacted by the same uncertainty
and weakened confidence that have characterised the past
eighteen manths. Until political and economic stability
return, it is my clear view that the appropriate strategy is
to anticipate unpredictable and challenging conditions,
continue to strive for a lean, focussed and flexible organi-
sation and be constantly vigilant for the opportunities that
are certain to arise in such a rapidly changing environment.

While the competitive landscape continues to alter, adding
to the uncertainty facing clients and professionals, Jones
Lang LaSalle has a clear and focussed vision. With the
support of our shareholders and through the professional
skill of our people, we have invested the time and resource
needed to build the leading local, regional and global
platform founded on excellence in client service. From
this platform, | am confident that we can pursue competi-
tive advantage from opportunities that arise, responding
in real time and with innovative strategic solutions.

U 1

Christopher A. Peacock



Interpreting World Economic Activities

We leverage up-to-the-minute developments from local markets woridwide to arm
our clients and investors with strategic business intelligence.




From the latest REIT emergence in Asia to the impact of U.S. corporate scandals on the investment
community, international economic events had a considerable impact on the real estate market
in 2002, As international stock markets tumbled, real estate became an attractive option for
investors worldwide.

In the past year, we tracked the impact of cross-border investment as capital flows continued
to increase from Germany, moving beyond Europe to North America and Asia. Simultaneously,
U.S. capital expanded into Latin America, Europe and Asia. We advised clients as Australian
cross-border investment grew, and we analysed implications for clients in Europe where real
estate investment started to rise amidst the strain on pension plans to meet the needs of an
aging population.

Our integrated network of market experts addressed shifting market conditions and spear-
headed business decisions for clients around the world. For instance in 2002, a European
pension fund tapped our securities analysts to oversee their global real estate stock program.
In the UK, PruPim selected Jones Lang LaSalle to direct their investment strategy in North
America, Europe and Asia.

Our acumen for illuminating world economic activities has earned us a reputation for strategic,
fully integrated services and solutions that build business for our clients. We help them make
smart real estate decisions and attractive investments.

With expertise in more than 100 cities on five continents, we foresee global business trends
and implications at the local level. Our firsthand insight interprets politica!, economic and
cultural developments where it matters most for our clients—in the cities where they do business.
Our knowledge spans the globe.




Assessing the Challenges
of Globalisation

With extensive on-the-ground intelligence, we discern
demographic trends and shifting market demands to analyse
impacts on the worlds of business and investment.
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The world we live in today is undergoing rapid
change. Between 2003 and 2015, the world’s
population will increase from 6.1 billion to
7.2 billion. Ninety-five percent of the growth will
derive from developing countries. India and
China alone will account for 40 percent of the
total increase. By 2015, there will be 21 mega-
cities worldwide, the majority in Asia. By 2030,
the population in Asian cities will expand to
more than twice the total population of all
cities in the western world. In America, nearly
nine of 10 people will live in an urban market.

Already, the growing scarcity of some natural
resources is causing consumption patterns to
shift. At the same time, new technologies are
providing opportunities for savvy businesses
and governments around the world. These
leading companies are anticipating emerging
markets and restructuring their businesses to
benefit from them.

Jones Lang LaSalle uncovers demographic
shifts in local markets and details the implica-
tions and opportunities for businesses and
investors around the world. Qur teams are
deployed in important cities around the world,
and in 2002 we further expanded our presence
in many key markets. In Europe we increased
our presence in Sweden and Central Europe,
particularly Moscow. In Asia Pacific, three
important markets have seen significant
growth. OQurTokyo office has increased size
and revenues four-fold over the past two
years, while in Seoul revenues are up 80 per-
cent over 2001. InTaipei, our lead appointment
for the tallest property in the country—the
Taipei 101 —is due for completion by 2004.

The world of real estate is increasingly affected
by global demographic trends. We are ahead
of the game and well poised to deliver results.




Global competition is escalating, as companies strive to cut costs but increase quality. This strain
on resources is driving many companies to outsource back-office business activities, particularly
technical support and call centre operations, to more economical foreign locations. Evaluating
the most promising markets and determining how to maximise real estate investment in these
growing areas is where Jones Lang LaSalle’s knowledge becomes a vital resource.

Our systematic market tracking practice objectively evaluates the viability of outsourcing operations
internationally. Important factors that we consider include political and economic stability,
abundant supplies of competitively priced knowledge warkers and local sensibilities. Our formula
encapsulates the feasibility of a given market for our clients, and paves the way for savvy business
decisions. In 2002, we identified the Philippines, Pear! River Delta, India, New Zealand and
Ireland as key markets to consider.

Determining the best fit for our clients takes direct experience in each region. Our recent part-
nership with Microsoft is an example of our proactive perspective on cost improvements. We
are evaluating several emerging giobal markets in order to make recommendations for potential
development centre locations.

As business process outsourcing trends continue and international cities vie to capitalise on
the new business opportunities, we will lead the charge in identifying solutions for our clients
and uncovering timely investment opportunities. Our research capability and understanding
of native operations is unparalleled in the industry.

Forecasting Emerging Warkets

We uncover business process outsourcing opportunities,
directing clients to cost-saving markets and empowering
real estate investors to expand portfolios.
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Predicting World Winning Cities

Capitalising on our intimate knowledge of markets and cultures, in 2002 we
embarked on an extensive research programme to identify the prosperous

cities of the future.
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More than favourable GDP statistics and eco-
nomic projections contribute to which cities
thrive and where growth and investment oppor-
tunities exist. We launched the World Winning
Cities programme in 2002 to equip real estate
developers, owners and investors with insights
into the world winning cities of the future. It has
become a hallmark service we provide to clients.

Drawing upon our experience in hundreds of
markets around the world, we built Mercator—
a powerful database of 50 key variables that
we believe define city competitiveness. We
segment each market and explore a range
of elements, including knowledge base, infra-
structure, culture and quality of life.

A multi-phased initiative, in the first year World
Winning Cities analysed 110 major metropolitan
areas in 47 countries. Using the expertise of
more than 100 Jones Lang LaSalle local market
analysts, we identified the top “winners” and

took our analysis one step further to provide an
overall explanation of the relationship between
city growth and city performance. In 2003, we
will predict rising urban stars and evaluate
the consequences of this designation for real
estate markets.

The World Winning Cities project is drawing
critical acclaim from clients, the news media
and government officials worldwide. Jones
Lang LaSalle experts frequently are invited to
deliver keynote presentations, and new, as well
as existing, clients are asking for additional
strategic support for future business endeavours.

Qur ability to predict future opportunities and
indicate potential red flags is invaluable to our
clients. The World Winning Cities programme
showecases our thought leadership worldwide,
and demonstrates how incisive thinking can
drive actionable strategies for global business.
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Analysing the Merits of City Marketing

As competition heats up the playing field of host-city campaigning, we guide
local officials, businesses and investors to predict returns on investments.



Competition is intense among cities to attract new industries,
tourism revenues and business development. Hosting cultural,
sporting and political events on the international stage is one
of the creative ways governments aggressively are demon-
strating competitive strengths. We define the opportunities and
potential pitfalls—both short- and long-term —for our clients
based on our interpretation of the economic and real estate
implications of major events on markets around the world.
Hosting a world-class event may sound like an automatic
win for a local economy, but too often it results in costly
disappointment. Determining which infrastructure ventures
will deliver appropriate returns on investment, or when to
invest locally to support expected demand, is critical for our
clients and investors.

We take the lead to examine major events and tell both sides
of the story for our clients and investors. In 2001, we scrutinised
the positive outcome of the Olympics on Sydney, but in 2002
cautioned clients and investors on the realities of the limited
investment returns related to the World Cup events in Korea
and Japan. Our analysis of the America’s Cup trials determined
that the true driver for the growth Auckland experienced
was a pre-existing need for waterfront development, and not
a major audience for the sailing event itseif.

Our analysis is vital intelligence for local governments as
they vie for new revenue streams. We are helping officials in
one European city to quantify the attractiveness of their city
in real estate terms. And our experts in India are working with
The Administration Authority in Chandigarh—as part of our
combined efforts to establish North india's first iT Park—

to market their city as a commercial district and IT hub to
potential local investors and multinational occupiers.

As the rise of mega-cities continues, and populations continue
to migrate to urban zones, Jones Lang LaSalle will continue
to be an essential partner in the quest for profitable real estate
investments and advantageous business opportunities.
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Atlanta, Baltimore, Buenos Aires, Chicago, Cincinnati, Cleveland, Columbus, Dallas, Denver, Detroit, Ft. Lauderdale, Houston,
Los Angeles, MclLean (Virginia), Mexico City, Minneapolis, Monterrey (Mexico), Montreal, New Jersey, New York, Orange County,
Orlando, Philadelphia, Phoenix, Pittsburgh, Portland (Oregon), Rio de Janeiro, Sacramento, St. Louis, Salt Lake City, San Diego,
San Francisco, Sad Paulo, Seattle, Toronto, Vancouver, Washington, D.C.

ASIA PACIFIC (12 COUNTRIES, 24 MARKETS)

Adelaide, Auckland, Bangalore, Bangkok, Beijing, Brisbane, Canberra, Hong Kong, Johor Bahru*, Kuala Lumpur*, Jakarta, Manila,
Melbourne, Mumbai, New Delhi, Penang*, Perth, Seoul, Shanghai, Singapore, Sydney, Taipei, Tokyo, Wellington

EUROPE (17 COUNTRIES, 39 MARKETS)

Amsterdam, Antwerp, Barcelona, Berlin, Birmingham, Brussels, Budapest, Dublin, Diisseldorf, Edinburgh, Eindhoven, Frankfurt,
Glasgow, Gothenburg, Grenoble, The Hague, Hamburg, Leeds, Lisbon, London, Luxembourg, Lyon, Madrid, Malmo, Manchester,
Milan, Moscow, Munich, Norwich, Paris, Prague, Rotterdam, Seville, Stockholm, Tel Aviv, Utrecht, Valencia, Warsaw, Wiesbaden

* Services in Malaysia are provided through a strategic alliance with Jones Lang Wootton Malaysia




'* CORPCRATE INFORMATION

OPERATICNAL
HEADQUARTERS

Jones Lang LaSalle Group

22 Hanover Square
London W1A 2BN

tel +44 20 7493 6040
fax +44 20 7408 0220

HOLDING COMPANY
HEADQUARTERS

Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated

200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago llinois 60601
tel +1 312 782 5800

fax +1 312 782 4339

REGIONAL
HEADQUARTERS

Americas

200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago lllinois 60601

tel +1 312 782 5800

fax +1 312 782 4339

Europe

22 Hanover Square
London W1A 2BN

tel +44 20 7493 6040
fax +44 20 7408 0220

Asia Pacific

9 Raffles Place
#39-00 Republic Plaza
Singapore 048619

tel +65 6220 3888

fax +65 6438 3360

TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

Melton Investor Services
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07760
tel +1 888 213 0965

EURO NOTES TRUSTEE,
PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT,
REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
New York, New York 10286

30 Cannon Street
London EC4AM 6XH

EURC NOTES LISTING
AGENT AND LUXEMBOURG
PAYING AND

TRANSFER AGENT

Kredietbank S.A.
Luxembourgeoise
43, Boulevard Royal
L-2955 Luxembourg

SEC FORM 10-K AND
OTHER INFORMATION

Requests for the 2002 Jones

Lang LaSalle Annual Report on

Form 10-K {which will be pro-
vided free of charge) and any

other inquiries from individuals

and institutional investors
should be directed to:

Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated

Investor Relations Department

200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago lllinois 60601

tel +1 312 782 5800
www.joneslanglasalle.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG LLP
303 East Wacker Drive
Chicago iL 60601

COMMON SHARE
MARKET PRICES

Jones Lang LaSalle’s common
stock is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE), ticker
symbol JLL

Following are the JLL high and
low sales prices for 2002 and
2001 on NYSE:

2002 High Low
1Q $228 $16.74
2Q $24.80 $ 2175
3Q $24.70 $18.60
4Q $21.49 $14.04
2001 High Low
1Q $16.24 $12.20
2Q $14.05 $12.25
3Q $15.65 $12.50
4Q $18.20 $13.25

DIVIDENDS

Jones Lang LaSalle has not
paid cash dividends on its
common stock to date. Jones
Lang LaSalle intends to retain
its earnings to support the
expansion of the business

and continue to pay down debt
levels. Any payment of future
dividends and the amounts
thereof will be at the discretion
of the Board of Directors and
will depend upon Jones Lang
LaSalle’s financial condition,
earnings and other factors
deemed relevant by the Board
of Directors. See Management's
Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results
of Operations in Jones Lang
LaSalle’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for 2002 for infor-
mation regarding restrictions
on Jones Lang LaSalle’s ability
to pay dividends.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

ForMm 10-K

Annuaf Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 Commission File Number 1-13145

JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 36-4150422
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Common Stock (3.01 par value) New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes[ X] No[ }

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-X or any amendment to this Form 10-K [ ]

As of February 24, 2003, there were outstanding 31,016,506 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock of which
300,000 are held by a subsidiary of the Registrant. The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s Common Stock
outstanding, and held for non-affiliates, on February 24, 2003 was $423,375,307 based on the closing price of $13.65
per share.

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 22, 2003
are incorporated by reference in Part III of this report.




Part 1

Item 1.

Item 2.

[tem 3.

Item 4.

Part Il

Item 5.

[tem 6.

Item 7.

[tem 7A.

Item 8.

Table of Contents

Business
Properties
Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and
Related Stockholder Matters

Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and

Financial Disclosure . . ... ... ... .. ... ... . .. . 84
Part 11
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant . ... ........ ... .. 84
Item 11. Executive Compensation . . . . ... ...ttt 84
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ... .. 84
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions . .................. 85
ftem 14. Controls and Procedures . . ............... ... .. .. .. ..., 85
Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K .. ... 85
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements . .. .................. ... 86

Signatures and Certifications . . .. .. .. ... . . e e 87




{tem 1. Business

Company Overview

Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated ("Jones Lang LaSalle", which may be referred to as we, us, our or the Company) was
incorporated in 1997, and its operations presently include the businesses previously known as LaSalle Partners (founded in 1968)
and Jones Lang Wootton (founded in 1873). We are a leading provider of integrated real estate services and solutions to real estate
owners, occupiers and investors around the world. We serve our clients’ real estate needs locally, regionally and globally from
offices in over 100 markets in 34 countries on five continents, with approximately 16,900 employees, including approximately 9,800
directly reimbursable property maintenance employees. Our breadth of services include space acquisition and disposition, facilities
and property management, project and development management services, leasing, buying and selling properties, consulting and
capital markets expertise. We also provide investment management on a global basis for both public and private assets through
LaSalle Investment Management, our investment management business. Our services are enhanced by our strong research
capabilities, our technology platforms and our strategic solutions approach with our clients.

We have grown by expanding both our client base and range of services and products, as well as through a series of
strategic acquisitions and a merger. Our extensive global platform and in depth knowledge of local real estate markets enable us
to serve as a single source provider of solutions for our clients’ full range of real estate needs. This network of services around
the globe was solidified with the merger of the businesses of the Jones Lang Wootton companies ("JLW™) with those of LaSalle
Partners Incorporated effective March 11, 1999 (see Jones Lang LaSalle History and Recent Activities section below for discussion).

Jones Lang LaSalle History and Recent Activities

Prior to our incorporation in Maryland on April 15, 1997 and our initial public offering (the "Offering") of 4,000,000
shares of common stock on July 22, 1997, Jones Lang LaSalle conducted business as LaSalle Partners Limited Partnership and
LaSalle Partners Management Limited Partnership (collectively, the "Predecessor Partnerships”). Immediately prior to the Offering,
the general and limited partners of the Predecessor Partnerships contributed all of their partnership interests in the Predecessor
Partnerships in exchange for an aggregate of 12,200,000 shares of common stock.

In October 1998, we acquired all of the common stock of the following real estate service companies {collectively referred
to as "COMPASS") formerly owned by Lend Lease Corporation Limited ("Lend Lease"): COMPASS Management and Leasing,
Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, The Yarmouth Group Property Management, Inc., ERE Yarmouth Retail, Inc. (formerly
COMPASS Retail, Inc.), and COMPASS Managementand Leasing (Australia) Pty Limited. The acquisition of COMPASS elevated
our position in the property management and corporate property services industry to that of the largest property management
services company in the United States and expanded our international presence into Australia and South America.

On March 11, 1999, LaSalle Partners Incorporated merged its business with those of JLW and changed its name to Jones
Lang LaSalle Incorporated. [n accordance with the purchase and sale agreements related to the merger, we issued 14.3 million
shares of common stock and paid cash consideration of $6.2 million.
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Articulating our range of services and approach to business, the Client Service Model sets forth a graphical definition of

our mission:

To deliver exceptional strategic, fully integrated services and solutions for real estate owners, occupiers
and investors worldwide.

The model describes how we serve these client segments with four broad sets of services: Corporate Solutions and Investor
Services, which reflect cur practical, on-the-ground real estate expertise and market knowledge, and Capital Markets and Investment
Management, which incorporate the financial expertise we bring to our service offerings.

We believe that this combination of skills and expertise sets us apart from our competitors. Consultancy practices
competitors do not share our implementation capability and market awareness. Investment banking and investment management
competitors possess neither our {ocal market knowledge nor our real estate service capabilities and traditional real estate firms lack

our financial skills.

The center of the Client Service Model represents the intellectual hub of our operations. We work to distinguish ourselves
in the marketplace by driving all our businesses through the prism of Global Capabilities, Innovation, Research and Technology,
investing in each to secure a position of thought and market leadership in our industry. (Descriptions of the four platforms are
found in the "Competitive Advantages" section of this document.)



Strategic Solutions sit at the core of our business model. Based on our presence in and knowledge of real estate and capital
markets, and supported by our investments in thought leadership, we believe that our strategic capability enables us to address not
only the real estate needs of our clients but their broader business and financial goals as well. This approach helps us identify
opportunities and couple strategy to our implementation and market skills to introduce effective solutions for our clients. We also
believe that the ability to develop and deliver sound strategy drives our own ability to grow our business and improve our
profitability.

Business Segments

While we rely on our Client Service Model to define and pursue our mission, we manage our business along a combination
of geographic and functional lines. Operations are reported as four business segments: the three geographic regions of Owner and
Occupier Services ("O0S™), (i) Americas, (ii) Europe and (jii) Asia Pacific, which offer our full range of Corporate Solutions,
Investor Services and Capital Markets Services, and (iv) Investment Management, which offers investment management services
on a global basis. The OOS business consists primarily of tenant representation and agency leasing, capital markets and valuation
services (collectively, "implementation services") and property management, corporate property services, project and development
management services {collectively, "management services’). The Investment Management segment provides real estate investment
management services to institutional investors, corporations, and high-net-worth individuals. For Financial Information and a
Discussion of the Operating Perfermance of Each Segment, Refer to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements provided elsewhere herein.

Client Service Model Delivery - OOS Americas, Europe and Asia Pacific

To address the local, regional and global needs of real estate owners and occupiers, we provide a full spectrum of
integrated transaction, property and project management and corporate property services in our regional operating segments of the
Americas, Europe and Asia Pacific. Services are delivered through multiple delivery teams as set forth below:

Global Client Services acts as a catalyst to assist professionals across all groups as they market the multiple services of
the firm to existing and prospective clients. Global Client Services also ensures that our worldwide operations work and interact
at the consistently high levels our clients have grown to expect. Our twin objectives are to expand our "strategic alliance"
relationships and drive consistent service. (The term “strategic alliance” is used in the real estate services industry to refer to
Jonger-term relationships with large owners or occupiers of real estate who, in many cases, require a number of different property
services.)

Strategic Consulting provides clients with specialized, value-added real estate consulting services and strategies in such
areas as mergers and acquisitions, privatization, development and asset strategy, occupier portfolio strategy, organizational strategy
and work-process design. Strategic Consulting professionals focus on translating global best practices into local real estate solutions
for our clients.

Tenant Representation Services seeks to develop strategic alliances with clients whose real estate requirements include
ongoing assistance to meet real estate needs and to help clients evaluate and execute transactions to meet their occupancy
requirements. We assist clients by defining space requirements, identifying suitable alternatives, recommending appropriate
occupancy solutions and negotiating lease and ownership terms with third parties. We seek to help our clients lower real estate
costs, minimize real estate occupancy risks, improve occupancy control and flexibility, and create more productive office
environments. We employ a multi-discipline approach to develop occupancy strategies linked to our clients’ core business
objectives. In 2002 we completed over 3,300 tenant representation transactions involving approximately 40 million square feet.

Compensation for Tenant Representation Services is generally determined on a negotiated fee basis. Such fees often involve
performance measures related to targets set by us and our clients prior to engagementor, in the case of strategic alliances, at annual
intervals thereafter. Quantitative and qualitative measurements are used to assess performance relative to these goals, and we are
compensated accordingly, with incentive fees often awarded for superior performance.

Agency Leasing Services executes marketing and leasing programs to identify tenants and negotiate leases with terms that
reflect the best interests of our clients, who are typically investors, property companies, developers or public bodies. In 2002 we
completed approximately 7,900 agency leasing transactions representing approximately 76 million square feet of space.

Agency leasing fees are typically based on a percentage of the value of the lease revenue commitment for leases
consummated.




Capital Markets Services includes institutional property sales and acquisitions, real estate financings, private equity
placements, portfolio advisory activities, and corporate finance advice and execution. Combining local market knowledge with
our access to global capital sources, the Capital Markets Services unit provides clients with superior execution in raising capital
for their real estate assets. By researching, developing and introducing innovative new financial products and strategies, our Capital
Markets Services units are integral to the business development efforts of our other businesses. In 2002 we completed institutional
property sales and acquisitions, debt financings and equity placements on assets and portfolios valued at approximately $18 billion.

Capital Markets Services units are typically compensated on the basis of the value of transactions completed or securities
placed. In certain circumstances, we receive retainer fees for portfolio advisory services.

Valuation Servicesprovides clients with professional valuation services, helping them determine accurate values for office,
retail, industrial and mixed-use properties. Such services may involve valuing a single property or a worldwide portfolio of multiple
property types. Valuations, which typically involve commercial property, are completed for a variety of purposes including
acquisitions, dispositions, debt and equity financings, mergers and acquisitions, securities offerings and privatization initiatives.
Clients include occupiers, investors and financing sources from the public and private sectors. Our valuation specialists provide
valuation services to clients in nearly every developed country. During 2002 we performed over 25,000 valuations of properiies
with an aggregate value of approximately $178 billion.

Compensation for valuation services is generally negotiated for each assignment based on its scale and complexity, and
typically relates in part to the value of the underlying assets.

Property Management Services provides on-site management services to real estate investors for office, industrial, retail
and specialty properties. We seek to {everage our market share and buying power to deliver superior service for clients. Our goal
is to enhance our clients’ property values through aggressive day-to-day management focused on maintaining high levels of
occupancy and tenant satisfaction, while lowering property operating costs. During 2602 we provided on-site Property Management
Services for office, retail, mixed-use and industrial properties totaling approximately 530 million square feet.

Property management services are typically provided by an on-site general manager and staff who are supported by
regional supervisory teams and central resources in such areas as training, technical and environmental services, accounting,
marketing and human resources. Qur property general managers assume full responsibility for property managementactivities, client
satisfaction and financial results. They are not compensated by fees or commissions, but through a combination of base salary and
performance bonus that is directly linked to results produced for clients. Increasingly, management agreements provide for incentive
compensation relating to operating expense reductions, gross revenue or occupancy objectives, or tenant satisfaction levels.
Consistent with industry custom, management contract terms typically range from one to three years, but may be canceled at any
time following a short notice period, usually 30 to 60 days.

Corporate Property Services provides comprehensive portfolio and property management ("facilities management")
services to corporations and institutions that outsource the management of their occupied real estate. Properties under management
range from corporate headquarters to industrial complexes. During 2002, the Corporate Property Services units provided facilities
management services for approximately 205 million square feet of real estate. Cur target clients typically have large portfolios
(usually over one million square feet) exhibiting significant opportunities to reduce costs and improve service delivery. Performance
measures are generally developed to quantify progress made toward goals and objectives set mutually with clients. Depending on
client needs, the Corporate Property Services units, either alone or partnering with other business units, provide servicesthat include
portfolio planning, property management, leasing, tenant representation, acquisition, finance, disposition, project management,
development management and land advisory services.

The Corporate Property Services units are compensated on the basis of negotiated fees that are typically structured to
include a base fee and a performance bonus. Performance bonus compensation is based on a quantitative evaluation of progress
toward performance measures and regularly scheduled client satisfaction surveys. Corporate Property Services agreements are
typically three to five years in duration but are cancelable at any time upon a short notice period, usually 30 to 60 days, as is
typical in the industry.

Project and Development Management Services units provide a variety of services, including interior build-out and
conversion management, move management and strategic occupancy planning service to tenants of leased space, owners in self-
occupied buildings and owners of real estate investments. Project and Development Management Service units frequently manage
relocation and build-out initiatives for clients of our Property Management Services, Corporate Property Services and Tenant
Representation Services units. Project and Development Management Services will also manage all aspects of development and
renovation of commercial projects for our clients.



Compensation is typically on the basis of negotiated fees. Client contracts are typically multi-year in duration and may
govern a number of discrete projects, with individual projects being completed in less than one year.

Investment Management

Qur global investment management business operates under the name of LaSalle Investment Management. LaSalle
Investment Management’s strategy is shaped by three priorities: (i) developing and executing customized investment strategies that
meet the specific investment objectives of each of our clients, (ii) providing superior performance for all clients and (iii) delivering
uniformly high levels of service.

We provide real estate investment management services to institutional investors, corporations and high net-worth
individuals. We seek to establish and maintain relationships with sophisticated investors who value our global platform and
extensive local market knowledge. As of December 31, 2002, LaSalle Investment Management managed $23 billion of public and
private real estate assets, making us one of the world’s largest managers of institutional capital invested in real estate assets and
securities.

LaSalle Investment Management serves clients with a broad range of real estate investment products and services in the
public and private capital markets. These products and services are designed to meet the differing strategic, risk/return and liquidity
requirements of individual clients. LaSalle Investment Management offers its clients a range of investment alternatives, including
private investments in multiple real estate property types (e.g., office, retail, industrial and residential), either through investment
funds that LaSalle Investment Management manages or through single client account relationships ("separate accounts'). We also
offer public indirect investments, primarily in publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trusts ("REITs") and other real estate equities.

We believe the success of our investment management business comes from our fully integrated research capabilities,
innovative investment strategies, global presence and local market knowledge, and a strong client focus. We maintain an extensive
real estate research department whose dedicated professionals monitor real estate and capital market conditions around the world
to enhance current investment decisions and identify future opportunities. In addition to drawing on public sources for information,
our research department utilizes the extensive local presence of Jones Lang LaSalle professionals throughout the world to gather
and disseminate proprietary insight into local market conditions.

The investment and capital origination activities of our Investment Management business have grown increasingly global.
As of December 31, 2002, 59% of LaSalle Investment Management’s assets under management were invested outside the United
States. We expect Investment Management activities outside the United States, both fund raising and investing, to increase as a
proportion of tota!l capital raised and invested, and we see a growing trend of cross-border capital movement. In 1999, the Monetary
Authority of Singapore approved LaSalle Investment Management’s application for Approved Fund Manager status. This approval
marked the first major step in our plan to add to our presence in the United States and Europe by building a full-service investment
management operation to serve clients from around the world with investments in the Asia Pacific region. In 2001 we built on this
foundation with the placement of on-the-ground resources and capabilities in the region, activities that culminated in the closing
of the Asia Recovery Fund in 2002.

Private Investments in Real Estate Preperties. To serve our investment management clients, LaSalle Investment
Management oversees the acquisition management, leasing, financing and divestiture of real estate investments across a broad range
of real estate property types. LaSalle Investment Management introduced its first institutional investment fund in 1979 and currently
has a series of commingled investment funds, including six funds that invest in assets in the United States, two funds that invest
in assets located in continental Europe and one fund that invests in assets in Asia Pacific. LaSalle Investment Management also
maintains separate account relationships with investors for whom LaSalle Investment Management manages private real estate
investments. As of December 31, 2002 LaSalle Investment Management had approximately $19 billion in assets under management
in these funds and separate accounts.

Some investors prefer to partner with investment managers willing to co-invest their own funds to more closely align the
interests of the investor and the investment manager. We believe that our ability to co-invest funds alongside the investments of
clients’ funds will continue to be an important factor in maintaining and continually improving our competitive position. We also
believe that our co-investment strategy will greatly strengthen our ability to continue to raise capital for new investment funds. By
creating new investment funds, and thereby increasing assets under management, we also gain the opportunity to provide additional
services related to the acquisition, financing, property management, leasing and disposition of such assets. At December31, 2002,
we had a total of $75 million of investments in, and loans to, co-investments.




LaSalle Investment Management’s operations are conducted with teams of professionals dedicated to achieving specific
client objectives. LaSalle Investment Management establishes investment committees within each region whose members have
specializedknowledge applicable to underlying investment strategies. These committees must approve all investment decisions for
private market investments. The investment committee approval process is employed for LaSalle Investment Management’s
investment funds and for all separate account relationships.

LaSalle Investment Management is generally compensated for investment management services for private equity
investments based on initial capital invested, with additional fees tied to investment performance above benchmark levels. The terms
of contracts vary by the form of investment vehicle involved and the type of service provided. Our investment funds have various
life spans, typically ranging between five and ten years. Separate account advisory agreements generally have three year terms with
"at will" termination provisions and may include compensation arrangements that are linked to the market value of the assets under
management.

Investments in Public Equity and Debt Securities. LaSalle Investment Management also offers clients the ability to
invest in separate accounts focused on public real estate equity and debt securities. LaSalle Investment Management principally
invests these clients’ capital in publicly traded securities of REITs and property company equities. We are also active in private
placement investments in publicly traded real estate companies and in selected investments in private real estate companies seeking
capital to ultimately gain access to the public markets. As of December 31, 2002 LaSalle Investment Management had
approximately $4 billion of assets under management in these types of investments. LaSalle Investment Management is typically
compensated by its securities investment clients on the basis of the market value of assets under management.

Competitive Advantages

We believe that the reputation of Jones Lang LaSalle, together with our global service platform, create several competitive
advantages that have established us as a leader in the real estate services and investment management industries. We believe that
we are one of the few companies in the real estate industry that possess all of the following competitive advantages:

Total Performance Management. To institutionalize our Relationship Orientation, we have developed Total Performance
Management, a business philosophy that promotes a standard of excellencein relationships with clients and colleagues alike. While
TPM draws from established practices of top-performing organizations, it is unique to Jones Lang LaSalle. Superior client service
is furthered through best practices in Client Relationship Management, the practice of soliciting and acting upon regular client
feedback, and recognizing each clients’ definition of excellence. TPM strengthens our people through programs focused on
providing clear objectives that align with the firm’s strategies, as well as supporting and coaching employees as they assess and
build core skills.

Relationship Orientation. Our client-driven focus enables us to develop long-term relationships with owners and users
of real estate. By developing these relationships, we are able to generate repeat business and create recurring revenue sources. In
many cases we establish strategic alliances with clients whose on-going service needs mesh with our ability to deliver fully
integrated real estate services across multiple business units and office locations. Cur relationship focus is supported by an employee
compensation system that we believe is unique in the real estate industry. Professionals are compensated through a salary and
bonus plan designed to reward client relationship building, teamwork and quality performance, rather than on a commission basis,
which is typical in the industry.

Full Range of Services. By offering a wide range of high quality, complementary services, we can combine our services
to develop and implement real estate strategies that meet the increasingly complex needs of our clients. In addition, our cross-selling
potential across geographies and product lines creates revenue sources for multiple business units within Jones Lang LaSalle.

World-Class Research. We invest in and rely on comprehensive top-down and bottom-up research to support and guide
the development of real estate and investment strategy. Our Global Research Committee oversees and coordinates the activities of
more than 170 research professionals who cover market and economic conditions in 36 countries around the world. Jones Lang
LaSalle produces more than 100 research publications annually. Research also plays a key role in keeping colleagues throughout
the organization attuned to important events and changing conditions in world markets. Dissemination of this information to
colleagues is facilitated through our company-wide intranet.

Global Reach and Capabilities. We believe we have secured an established business presence in the world’s principal
real estate markets, and that we can grow revenues without a substantial increase in infrastructure costs. With 111 corporate offices
on five continents, we possess in-depth knowledge of local and regional markets and can provide a full range of real estate services
around the globe. This geographic coverage positions us to serve our multinational clients and manage investment capital on a
global basis.




Reputation. Based on our industry knowledge, commissioned marketing surveys, coverage in top-fier business
publications and our number of long-standing client relationships, we believe that we are widely recognized by large corporations
and institutional owners and users of real estate as a provider of high quality, professional real estate and investment management
services. We believe that the Jones Lang LaSalle brand and reputation for quality services represent significant advantages when
we pursue new business opportunities.

Technology. Based on our general industry knowledge and specific client feedback, we believe we are recognized as an
industry leader in technology. We possess the capability to provide sophisticated information technology systems on a global basis
to serve our clients and support our employees. For example, the purpose of Delphi+, our client extranet technology, is to provide
clients with a detailed and comprehensive insight inte their portfolios, the markets in which they operate and the services we
provide to them. Delphi, our intranet technology, offers our employees easy accessto the firm’s thinking regarding our experience,
skills and best practices. The combination enables us to offer individual clients not only the expertise of the specific teams that
serve them, but also the collective skills and experience of a global, multi-discipline organization serving multiple industries in
multiple markets.

Innovation. We believe that our investments in people, research, technology and thought leadership position our firm
as a leading innovator in our industry. Major research initiatives like our "World Winning Cities" program investigate emerging
trends to help us anticipate future conditions and shape new services to benefit our clients. Professionals in our strategic consulting
practice identify and address shifting market and business trends to address changing client needs and opportunities. Our Investment
Managementbusiness relies on our comprehensive investigation of global real estate and capital markets to develop new investment
products and services tailored to the specific investment goals and risk/return objectives of our clients. We believe that our
commitment to innovation helps us secure and maintain profitable long-term relationships with the clients we target: the world’s
leading real estate owners, occupiers and investors.

Industry Trends

Increasing Demand for Global Services; Globalization of Capital Flows. Many corporations, both those based in the
United States and in other countries, have pursued growth opportunities in international markets. This activity has increased the
demand for global real estate services, including corporate property services, tenant representation and leasing and property
management. We believe that this trend will favor real estate service providers with the capability to provide services -- and
consistently high service levels--in multiple markets around the world. Additionally, real estate capital flows have become
increasingly global, as more investors seek real estate investment opportunities beyond their existing borders. This trend has created
new markets for investment managers equipped to facilitate international real estate capital flows and execute cross-border real
estate transactions.

Consolidation. The real estate services industry has experienced significant consolidation in recent years. We, as well
as other large real estate service firms engaged in the property management business, believe that as a result of substantial existing
infrastructure investments and the ability to spread fixed costs over a broader base of business, it is possible to recognize
incrementally higher margins on property management and corporate property services assignments as the amount of square footage
under management increases.

Large users of commercial real estate services continue to demonstrate a preference to work with single-source service
providers able to operate across local, regional and global markets. The ability to offer a full range of services on this scale requires
significant corporate infrastructure investment, including information technology and personnel training. Smaller regional and local
real estate service firms, with limited resources, are less able to make such investments.

Growth of Outsourcing. In recent years, and on a global level, outsourcing of professional real estate services has
increased substantially as corporations have focused corporate resources, including capital, on core competencies. In addition, public
and other non-corporate users of real estate, including government agencies and health and educational institutions, have begun to
outsource real estate activities as a means of reducing costs. As a result, there are significant growth opportunities for firms that
can provide integrated real estate services across many geographic markets.

Alignment cof Interests of Investors and Investment Managers. [nstitutional investors continue to allocate significant
portions of their investment capital to real estate, and many investors have shown a desire to commit their capital to investment
managers willing to co-invest their own funds in specific real estate investments or real estate funds. In addition, investors are
increasingly requiring that fees paid to investment managers be more closely aligned with investment performance. As a result,
we believe that investment managers with co-investment capital, like LaSalle Investment Management, will have an advantage in
attracting real estate investment capital. Co-investment typically brings with it the opportunity to provide additional services related
to the acquisition, financing, property management, leasing and disposition of such investments.



Growth Strategy

We intend to capitalize on our competitive advantages, the opportunities created by our global platform and broad product
and service lines, and our solutions approach to the marketplace to pursue the following growth strategy:

Expanding Client Relationships. Based on our ability to deliver high quality real estate services, we have been able to
successfully leverage discrete client assignments into comprehensive relationships that engage several or all of our business groups.
Current industry trends, particularly the globalization of corporate clients and the increased outsourcing of real estate services on
a global basis, provide a favorable environment for us to increase the scope of our current client relationships and develop new
relationships through our broad array of services. We are successfully expanding the strategic alliance approach we have applied
in our Corporate Solutions unit to the rest of our business units worldwide.

Strengthening [nternaticnal Presence. Supported by our extensive global platform, we plan to add and expand services
that are well developed in particular regions and business units to our other regions and business units. [n particular, we have
identified markets in Asia that offer new client and product growth. We will leverage our strengths in Tenant Representation,
Project and Development Management Services and Capital Markets activities to provide talent and clients to fuel that growth.

Providing Consistent, High Quality Service. The objective of our Global Client Services unit is to ensure that
worldwide operations work and interact at the consistently high levels our clients have come to expect. Through the delivery of
consistent high quality service, we aim to expand current client relationships, grow our business organically and further strengthen
our brand and reputation.

Pursuing Co-Investment Opportunities. We believe that an important growth driver of our business is our ability to
co-invest our funds alongside those of clients. Some investors continue to favor investment managers who co-invest their own funds
in newly formed investment vehicles in order to more closely align the interests of the investor and the investment manager. Also,
by creating new investment funds, and thereby increasing our assets under management, we also gain the opportunity to provide
additional services related to the acquisition, financing, property management, leasing and disposition of such assets.

Continuing to Develop Technology. Our technology strategy is to provide truly integrated, high value added information
and tools to our clients and employees worldwide by using proven technology architecture and advancing innovative technology
solutions.

Employees

The goal of our TPM program is to instill in all of our people an unyielding commitment to be the best: the real estate
advisor our clients want to work with and the employer of choice in our industry. Our objective is to invest in and continue to
attract, motivate and retain the best people. The following table details our headcount at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Professional . . ..... ... ... ... . . ... . ..., 5,600 5,600
Support . .. ... .. 1,500 1,600
7,100 7,200
Directly reimbursable property maintenance . . . . .. 9,800 9,500
Total Employees . ............. .......... 16,900 16,700
Directly reimbursable project management
employees included as professionals above . . . . .. 1,100 900

The directly reimbursable project management employees work with clients which have a contracted fee structure including a fixed
management fee as well as a separate component, which allows for scheduled reimbursable personnel and other expenses to be
billed directly to the client. Approximately 4,300 and 4,600 of our professional and support staff in 2002 and 2001, respectively,
were based in countries other than the United States. Approximately 6,800 and 6,700 of our directly reimbursable property
maintenance workers in 2002 and 2001, respectively, were based in countries other than the United States. None of our employees
are members of any labor union with the exception of approximately 560 of our directly reimbursable property maintenance
employees. We have generally had satisfactory relations with our employees.



Company Website

Jones Lang LaSalle’s website address is www joneslanglasalle.com and we make available free of charge through our website
our form 10K, 10-Qs, 8-Ks and amendments thereto as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The Company’s Code of Business Ethics applies to all employees of the Company, including our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Global Controller, and can be found in the Company section on the Jones Lang
LaSalle website. In addition, the Company intends to satisfy the amendment and waiver disclosure requirements under ltem 10
of Form 8-K by posting any such amendment of or waiver to the Code of Business Ethics on the Company website.

Risks to Qur Business

General economic conditions and real estate market conditions can have a negative impact on our business. We have
_recently experienced, and can expect in the future, to be negatively impacted by periods of economic stowdown or recession and
declines in the demand for real estate. This has been evidenced by our performance over the course of the last couple of years.
The real estate market tends to be cyclical and related to the condition of the economy as a whole or, at least, to the perceptions
of investors and users as to the economic outlook. For example, corporations may be hesitant to expand space or enter into jong-
term commitments if they are concerned with the economicenvironment. Negative economic conditions and declines in the demand
for real estate in several markets or in significant markets could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition, including as a result of the following factors:

. Decline in Leasing Activity

A decline in leasing activity can lead to a reduction in fees and commissions for arranging leases, both on behalf of
owners and tenants. Additionally, a decline in leasing activity can {ead to a reduction in the demand for, and fees earned
from, other services, such as Project Development Services (managing the build-out of space) and Corporate Property
Services (managing space occupied by clients).

. Decline in Acquisition and Disposition Activity

A decline in acquisition and disposition activity can lead to a reduction in fees and commissions for arranging such
transactions as well as fees and commissions for arranging financing for acquirers.

. Decline in Real Estate Investment Activity

A decline in real estate investment activity can lead to a reduction in investment management fees on the acquisition of
property for clients, as well as in fees and commissions for arranging acquisitions, dispositions and financings.

° Decline in the Value and Performance of Real Estate and Rental Rates

A decline in the value and performance of real estate and in rental rates can lead to a reduction in investment management
fees (the most significant portion of which generally are based upon the performance of investments) and the value of co-
investments we make with our investment managementclients. Additionally, such declines can lead to a reduction of fees
and commissions which are based upon the value of, or revenues produced by, the properties with respect to which
services are provided, including fees and commissions for property management and valuations and for arranging
acquisitions, dispositions, leasing and financings.

The international scope of our operations, and our cperations in particular regions and countries, involve a number
of risks for our business. The fact that we operate in 33 countries presents risks for our business in a number of ways. If the
risks, including the following, associated with the international scope of our operations and our operations in particular regions and
countries cannot be or are not successfully managed, our business, operating results and financial condition could be materiaily and
adversely affected.

J Difficulties and Costs of Staffing and Managing International Operations

The coordination and management of international operations poses additional costs and difficulties. We must manage
operations in many time zones and involving people with language and cultural differences. Our success depends on
finding and retaining people capable of effectively dealing with these challenges. We have committed resources to
effectively coordinate our business activities around the world to meet our clients’ needs, whether they be local, regional




or global. When addressing staffing in connection with a restructuring of our organization or a downturn in economic
conditions or activity we must take into account the employment laws of the countries in which actions are contemplated,
which in some cases can result in significant costs and/or time delay in implementing headcount reductions. Our ability
to manage such operational fluctuations and to maintain adequate long-term strategies in the face of such developments
will be critical to our continued growth and profitability.

Currency Restrictions and Exchange Rate Fluctuations

We produce positive flows of cash in various countries and currencies which can be most effectively used to fund
operations in other countries or to repay our indebtedness, which is primarily denominated in euros and U.S. dollars. We
face restrictions in certain countries which limit or prevent the transfer of funds to other countries or the exchange of the
local currency to other currencies. We also face risks associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates which may
lead to a decline in the value of the funds produced in certain jurisdictions.

Additionally, although we operate globally, we report our results in U.S. dollars and thus our reported results may be
positively or negatively impacted by the strengthening or weakening of currencies against the U.S. dollar. As an example,
the euro, the pound sterling and the Australian dollar, each a currency used in a significant portion of our operations,
weakened significantly against the U.S. dollar in 2000 and 2001 but significantly strengthened in 2002. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, on an adjusted basis excluding non-recurring charges, 49% of our adjusted operating income was
attributable to operations with U.S. dollars as their functional currency, and 51% was attributable to operations having
other functional currencies. [n addition to the potential negative impact on reported earnings, fluctuations in currencies
relative to the US dollar may make it more difficult to perform period-to-period comparisons of the reported results of
operations.

We are authorized to use currency-hedging instruments, including foreign currency forward contracts, purchased currency
options and borrowings in foreign currency. There can be no assurance that such hedging will be effective, and an
ineffective hedging instrument may expose us to cutrency losses.

The following table sets forth the revenues derived from our most significant currencies (based upon 2002 revenues). The euro
revenues include our businesses in France, Germany, Italy, Ireland, Spain, Portugal, Holland, Belgium and Luxembourg.

Most Significant Currencies on 2 Revenue Basis

2002 2001
United States Dollar 331.7 378.3
United Kingdom Pound 184.3 189.3
Euro 145.2 164.0
Australian Dollar 48.9 50.8
Other currencies 130.3 123.0
Total Revenues 840.4 905.4

J Potentially Adverse Tax Consequences

Moving funds between countries can produce adverse tax consequences in the countries from which and to which funds
are transferred as well as in other countries, such as the United States, in which we have operations. Additionally, as our
operations are global, we face challenges in effectively gaining a tax benefit for costs incurred in one country which
benefit our operations in other countries.

° Burden of Complying with Muitiple and Potentially Conflicting Laws and Regulations and Dealing with Changes
in Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We face a broad range of legal and regulatory environments in the countries in which we do business. Coordinating our
activities to deal with these requirements presents challenges. As an example, in the United Kingdom, the Financial
Services Autherity (FSA) regulates the conduct of investment businesses and the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) regulates the profession of Chartered Surveyors, which is the professional qualification required for certain of the
services provided in the United Kingdom, through upholding standards of competence and conduct. Additionally, changes
in legal and regulatory requirements can impact our ability to engage in business in certain jurisdictions or increase the
cost of doing so.
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. Greater Difficulty in Collecting Accounts Receivable in Certain Countries and Regions

We face challenges to our ability to efficiently and/or effectively collect accounts receivable in certain countries and
regions. For example, in Asia, many countries have underdeveloped insolvency laws and clients often are siow to pay,
and in Europe, clients in some countries, particularly Spain, Italy and France, also tend to delay payments reflecting a
different business culture.

. Political and Economic Instability

We operate in 34 countries with varying degrees of political and economic stability. For example, certain Asian, Eastern
European and South American countries have experienced serious political and economic instability within the last few
years and such instability will likely continue to arise from time to time in countries in which we have operations.

Real estate services markets are highly competitive. We provide a broad range of commercial real estate services and
there is significant competition, on an international, regional and local level with respect to many of these services and in
commercial real estate services generally. Depending on the service, we face competition from other real estate service providers,
institutional lenders, insurance companies, investmentbanking firms, investment managers, accounting firms and companiesbringing
their real estate services in-house (any of which may be a global, regional or local firm). Many of our competitors are local or
regional firms, which although substantially smaller in overall size may be larger in a specific local or regional market.

We are substantially dependent on long-term client relationships and on revenue received for services under various service
agreements. Many of these agreements are cancelable by the client for any reason on as little as 30 to 60 days’ notice, as is typical
in the industry. In this competitive market if we are unable to maintain these relationships or we are otherwise unable to retain
existing clients and develop new clients, our business, results of operations and financial condition will be materially adversely
affected.

The seasonality of our business exposes us to risks. Our revenues and profits tend to be significantly higher in the
fourth quarter of each year than the other three quarters. This is a result of a general focus in the real estate industry on completing
transactions by calendar year end and the fact that certain expenses are constant through the year. Historically, we have reported
a small loss in the first quarter, a small profit or loss in the second and third quarters and a large profit in the fourth quarter,
excluding the recognition of investment generated performance fees. The seasonality of our business makes it difficult to determine
during the course of the year whether plan results will be achieved, and thus, to adjust to changes in expectations. Additionally,
negative economic or other conditions which arise at a time when they impact performance in the fourth quarter may have a more
significant impact than if they occurred earlier in the year. To the extent we are not able to identify and adjust for changes in
expectations or we are confronted with negative conditions which impact inordinately on the fourth quarter of a year, this could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may face liability with respect to environmental issues occurring at properties which we manage, invest in, or
deal with. Various laws and regulations impose liability on current or previous real property owners or operators for the cost of
investigating, cleaning up or removing contamination caused by hazardous or toxic substances at the property. We may face
liability under these laws as a result of our role as an on-site property manager. In addition, we may face liability if such laws
are applied to expand our limited liability with respect to our co-investments in real estate as discussed below.

Co-investment activities subject us to real estate investment risks and potential liabilities. An important part of our
investment strategy includes investing in real estate along with our investment management clients. Investing in this manner
exposes us to a number of risks which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition, including as a result of the following risks:

. We may lose some or all of the capital which we invest if the investments perform poorly.

. We will have fluctuations in earnings and cash flow as we recognize gains or losses, and receive cash, upon the disposition
of investments, the timing of which in many cases is not completely in our control.

. We generally hold our investments in real estate through subsidiaries with limited liability; however, in certain
circumstances it is possible that this limited exposure may be expanded in the future based upon, among other things,

changes in applicable laws or the application of existing or new laws. To the extent this occurs, our liability could exceed
the amount we have invested.

. We make co-investments in real estate in many countries and this presents risk as described above in "The international
scope of our operations, and our operations in particular regions and countries, involve a number of risks for our business".



We have indebtedness that could impede our operations and flexibility. At December31, 2002, we had $215.0 million
of indebtedness on a consolidated basis. We have borrowed through a euro 165 million 9.0% Senior Euro Notes offering and a
$275 million revolving credit facility. Our average outstanding borrowings under the Euro Notes and revolving credit facility were
$230.8 million during 2002, and the effective interest rate was 7.3%.

We need approximately $17.5 million annually to make required interest payments on our Euro Notes and the outstanding
portion of our revolving credit facility. The Euro Notes have a fixed rate of interest and the revolving credit facility has a variable
rate based on the market, plus a margin, The variable rate and margin features of the revolving credit facility could result in higher
borrowing costs if market interest rates or the margin rise. An increase of 50 basis points in the 2002 average interest rate on the
revolving credit facility would have resulted in a $370,000 increase in our borrowing cost.

The terms of ocur debt contain a number of covenants that could restrict our flexibility to finance future operations or
capital needs or to engage in other business activities that may be in our best interest. The debt covenants limit us in, among other
things:

. encumbering or disposing of assets;

° incurring indebtedness;

s engaging in acquisitions; and

° entering into transactions with affiliates.

In addition, the covenants include the maintenance of maximum debt to EBITDA and minimum liquidity ratios. There
are no covenants or triggers related to a change in credit rating or a material adverse change.

If we are unable to make required payments on the Euro Notes or under the revolving credit facility or if we breach any
of the debt covenants, we will be in default under the terms of the indenture or the revolving credit agreement, as applicable. A
default under either agreement could cause acceleration of repayment of those amounts as well as defaults under other existing and
future debt obligations.

Regardless of our compliance with the terms of the debt, the existence of the debt could adversely affect our ability to
adjust to changing market conditions or remain competitive with our competitors.

The Stockholder Agreements, the DEL Stockholder Agreements, the Charter and the Amended Bylaws of Jones
Lang LaSalle and the Marytand General Corporate Law could delay, defer or prevent a change of control. The Stockholder
Agreements and the DEL Stockholder Agreements entered into in connection with the merger and the charter and bylaws of Jones
Lang LaSalle include provisions that may discourage, delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt that may be in the best interest
of stockholders of Jones Lang LaSalle and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. The Stockholder
Agreements and the DEL Stockholder Agreements require each of the parties thereto to vote all shares of Jones Lang LaSalle
common stock owned or controlled by such stockholder:

° for persons nominated by the our board of directors pursuant to the amended bylaws; and

° in accordance with the recommendations of a majority of our directors on all matters (1) submitted to the vote
of the stockholders of Jones Lang LaSalle which have been proposed by any stockholder as to which the board
of directors has recommended against approving and (2) relating to any merger, sale of all or substantially all
of our assets, or any similar transactions as to which the board of directors has recommended against approving.

Additionally, the Stockholder Agreements and DEL Stockholder Agreements require the persons bound by them to take
reasonable actions to assure that they do not transfer shares to a person, which is, or would as a result of the transfer become, the
owner of 5% or more of the outstanding Jones Lang LaSalle common stock. This requirement does not apply to the extent shares
are sold in accordance with certain securities regulations. As a result, during the term of the Stockholder Agreements and the DEL
Stockholder Agreements, as long as persons who hold a significant number of our issued and outstanding common stock continue
to be bound by these agreements, the board of directors recommendations regarding director nominees to the board, sale or merger
transactions and all stockholder proposals will have the benefit of these provisions, The Stockholder Agreements are scheduled to
terminate the earlier of (i) the first business day immediately following the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders, (ii) June 1, 2003
or (iii} such date as may be agreed between the Company and the stockholder party to the Stockholder Agreement. The persons
bound by the Stockholder Agreements and DEL Stockholder Agreements hold, as of February 15, 2003, approximately 20% of
the issued and outstanding shares of Jones Lang LaSalle common stock.
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In addition, pursuant to the charter ot Jones Lang Laballe, we have a classitied board ot directors, pursuant to which
directors are divided into three classes, with three-year staggeredterms. The classified board provision could increase the likelihood
that, in the event an outside party acquired a controlling block of our capital stock or initiated a proxy contest, incumbent directors
nevertheless would retain their positions for a substantial period, which may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or preventing
a change in control of Jones Lang LaSalle. In addition, the charter and bylaws provide for:

. the ability of the board of directors to establish one or more classes and series of capital stock including the ability to issue
up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, and to determine the price, rights, preferences and privileges of such capital
stock without any further stockhoider approval,

. a requirement that any stockholder action taken without a meeting be pursuant to unanimous written consent; and

. certain advance notice procedures for Jones Lang LaSalle stockholders nominating candidates for election to the Jones
Lang LaSalle board of directors.

Under the Maryland General Corporate Law (the "MGCL"), certain "Business Combinations" (including a merger,
consolidation, share exchange or, in certain circumstances, an asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of equity securities)
between a Maryland corporation and any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the corporation’s
shares or an affiliate of the corporation who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, was the beneficial
owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the then-outstanding voting stock of the corporation (an "Interested Stockholder")
or an affiliate of the Interested Stockholder are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on which the Interested
Stockholder became an Interested Stockholder. Thereafter, any such Business Combination must be recommended by the board
of directors of such corporation and approved by the affirmative vote of at least (1) 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders
of outstanding voting shares of the corporation and (2) 66-2/3% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of outstanding voting
shares of the corporation other than shares held by the Interested Stockholder with whom the Business Combination is to be
effected, unless, among other things, the corporation’s stockholders receive a minimum price (as defined in the MGCL) for their
shares and the consideration is received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the Interested Stockholder for its shares.
Pursuant to the MGCL, these provisions also do not apply to Business Combinations, which are approved or exempted by the board
of directors of the corporation prior to the time that the Interested Stockholder becomes an Interested Stockholder.

The provisions of the agreements described above, as well as our charter and bylaws, and the MGCL, could discourage
bids for common stock as well as adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Claims and Investigations. Substantial legal liability or a significant regulatory action against Jones Lang LaSalle could
have a material adverse financial effect or cause significant reputational harm to the Company, which in turn could seriously harm
our business prospects. We generally provide our services under contracts and in many cases subject to regulatory and fiduciary
obligations. We face legal and reputational risks in the event we do not, or are perceived to have not performed under those
contracts or in accordance with those regulations or obligations and the precautions we take to prevent these types of occurrences
may not be effective in all cases.

Infrastructure Disruptions. Our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the
infrastructure that supports our businesses and the communities in which they are located. This may include a disruption involving
electrical, communications, transportation or other services used by Jones Lang LaSalle or third parties with which we conduct
business. These disruptions may occur, for example, as a result of events that affect only the buildings in which we operate or of
such third parties, or as a result of events with a broader impact on the cities where those buildings are located. Nearly all of our
employees in our primary locations, including Chicago, London, Singapore and Sydney, work in close proximity to each other,
in one or more buildings. If a disruption occurs in one location and our employees in that location are unable to communicate with
or travel to other locations, our ability to service and interact with our clients may suffer and we may not be able to successfully
implement contingency plans that depend on communication or travel.

Systems. Our business is highly dependent on our ability to process transactions across numerous and diverse markets
in many currencies. If any of our financial, accounting or other data processing systems do not operate properly or are disabled,
we could suffer a disruption of our businesses, liability to clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage. These systems
may fail to operate properly or become disabled as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, including a
disruption of electrical or communications services or our inability to occupy one or more of our buildings.



item 2. Properties

Our principal holding company headquartersare located at 200 East Randolph Drive, Chicago, lllinois, where we currently
occupy over 100,000 square feet of office space pursuant to a lease that expires in February 2006. Our principal operational
headquarters are located at 22 Hanover Square, London, England where approximately 83,000 square feet are leased under a lease
expiring in December 2008. Regional headquarters are located in Chicago, London and Singapore. We have 111 local offices
worldwide located in most major cities and metropolitan areas as follows: 31 offices in 5 countries in the Americas (including 23
in the United States), 50 offices in 17 countries in Europe and 30 offices in 12 countries in Asia Pacific. Our offices are each

leased pursuant to agreements with terms ranging from month-to-month to ten years. In addition, we have on-site property and other
offices located throughout the world. On-site property management offices are generally located within properties that we manage
and are provided without cost.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company has contingent liabilities from various pending claims and litigation matters arising in the ordinary course
of business, some of which involve claims for damages that are substantial in amount. Many of these matters are covered by
insurance. Although the ultimate liability for these matters cannot be determined, based upon information currently available, we
believe the ultimate resolution of such claims and litigation, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results

of operations or liquidity.

On November §, 2002, Bank One N.A. ("Bank One") filed suit against the Company and certain of its subsidiaries in the
Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois with regard to services provided in 1999 and 2000 pursuant to three different agreements
relating to facility management, project development and broker services. The suit generally alleges negligence, breach of contract
and breach of fiduciary duty on the part of Jones Lang LaSalle and seeks to recover a total of $40 million in compensatory damages
and $80 million in punitive damages. The Company is aggressively defending the suit and on December 16, 2002 filed a
counterclaim for breach of contract seeking payment of approximately $1.2 million for fees due for services provided under the
agreements. While there can be no assurance, the Company believes that the complaint is without merit and, as such, will not have
a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. The suits are in their early stages. As of
the date of this report, discovery is just beginning and no trial date has been set. As such, the outcome of Bank One’s suit cannot
be predicted with any certainty and management is unable to estimate an amount or range of potential loss that could result if an
improbable unfavorable outcome did occur.

In the third quarter of 2001 we established a reserve of $1.6 million which we believe is adequate to cover our exposures
resulting from the insolvency of HIH Insurance Ltd. ("HIH"), one of our former insurance providers. HIH provided public liability
coverage to the Australian operations of JLW for the years from 1994 to 1997, which coverage would typically provide protection
against, among other things, personal injury claims arising out of accidents occurring at properties for which we had property
management responsibilities. As of December 31, 2002, $1.1 million of the reserve established remained to cover claims which
would have been covered by the insurance provided by HIH. Although there can be no assurance, we believe this reserve is
adequate to cover any remaining claims and expenses resulting from the HIH insolvency. Due to the nature of the claims covered
by this insurance, it is possible that future claims may be made.

ftem 4. Submission of Matters to 2 Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of Jones Lang LaSalle’s stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2002,
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our Common Stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "JLL."

As of January 31, 2003, there were approximately 2,400 beneficial holders of our Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices of our Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock

Exchange.

2002 High
First Quarter . .. . . ... i e $22.85
Second Quarter . . . ... ... $24.80
Third Quarter . ... ... ... . . . e e $24.70
Fourth Quarter .. ... ... ... e $21.49

2001 _High
FirstQuarter . . . ... . ... e $16.24
Second Quarter . . . ... . ... ... e $14.05
Third Quarter . . .. .. ... .. e $15.65
Fourth Quarter ... ... ... .. i $18.20

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock to date. We intend to retain our earmings to support the expansion
of the business and continue to pay down debt levels. Any payment of future dividends and the amounts thereof will be at the
discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon our financial condition, earnings and other factors deemed relevant by

the Board of Directors.

TRANSFER AGENT

Mellon Investor Services LLC
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07760
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Low
$16.74
$21.75
$18.60
$14.04

Low
$12.20
$12.25
$12.50
$13.25




Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth our summary historical consolidated financial data. The information should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere herein.

Statement of Operations Data:

Total revenue (1) ... ... ... . ... ..

Operating income (loss) ................
Interest €XPense . . . . . .o oo

Earnings (loss) before provision for income

taxes and minority interest ... ..........
Net provision for income taxes ...........

Minority interest in earnings (losses)

of subsidiaries . .. ........ .. ... . . ...

Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item
and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle .. ...... ... .. .. ..

Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of

minority interest, net of tax (2) . .. ... ... ..

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle ... ... ... ..
Net earnings (loss) . . ...... ... ... ..

Basic earnings (loss) per common share
before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle . . . ..

Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of

minority interest, netof tax (2) ... .... . ...

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . .. ... ...
Basic earnings (loss) per common share . .. ..
Basic weighted average shares outstanding . . . .

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share
before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle . . . ..

Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of

minority interest, netof tax (2) . .. .... . ...

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle .. ... ... .. . o oo
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share . . ..
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding . . .

Other Data:

EBITDA (3) ... .. ... e
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (4) .......

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities ... ...............
Investing activities . . ... ..............

Financing activities . .................
Investments under management (5) .. .......
Total square feet under management (6) .. .. ..

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash eguivalents . . . ............
Total assets . . ... ... i
Total debt . .. ... .. ... ... ... oL
Total liabilities ... ... ...... ... ......
Total stockholders’ equity . ..............

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2801 2060 1999 1998
(in thousands, except share data)
$ 840,429 905,449 942,524 755,439 304.464
54,695 12,959 6,403 (71,303) 37.842
17,024 20.156 27,182 18,211 4,153
37,671 (7,197) (20,779) (89.514) 33,689
11,037 7,986 22,053 5,328 13,224
711 228 (21) -- --
25,923 (15,411) (42,811) (94.,842) 20,465
341 -- -- - --
846 -- (14,249) -- --
$ 27110 (15411) (57.060) (94,842) 20,463
$ 0.85 (0.51) (1.72) (4.20) 1.26
0.01 - -- -- --
0.03 -- (0.58) - -
$ 0.89 (0.5D) (2.30) (4.20) 1.26
30,486,842 30,016,122 24,851,823 22.607.350 16,215,478
$ 0.81 .51 (1.72) (4.20) 1.25
0.01 -- - -~ --
0.03 -- (0.58) -- -
$ 0.85 {0.51) 2.30) (4.20) 1.25
31,854,397 30,016,122  24.851,823 22.607.350 16,387,721
$ 90,722 59,767 49,433 (34.627) 51,297
2.06X 0.80X 0.19X -- 5.54X
$ 68,369 54,103 140,340 (18,227) 23,000
$  (26,340) (32,549) (66,590) (80,867) (239,096)
$ (38,821 (29,951) (78,215) 105,461 202,377
$23,200,000 22,200,000 22,500,000 21,500,000 14,200,000
735.000 725,000 700,000 700.000 400,500
$ 13,654 10,446 18,843 23,308 16,941
852,516 835,727 914,045 924,800 460,921
215,008 222,886 249,947 322,386 202,923
485,558 521,346 581,707 600,864 321,349
366,958 314,381 332,338 323,936 169,572
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@)

3)

4

(%)

(6)

Certain prior year amounts were reclassified to conform with current presentation.

Beginning in January 2002, we began accounting for the revenues of our Strategic Consulting unit on a gross basis, as
opposed to netting these revenues into expenses. These revenues amounted to $10.4 million and $9.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Strategic Consulting business unit was created in 2000, therefore
no reclassifications have been made for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998.

Beginning in December 2002, pursuant to the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 01-14, "Income
Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred”, we have reclassified
reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses to revenues in the income statement, as opposed to being shown as
a reduction of expenses. These out-of-pocket expenses amounted to $2.9 million, $4.0 million and $3.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Out-of-pocket expenses were not available for the years
ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 given that it was necessary to reconfigure our reporting systems to separate these
costs, therefore no reclassification has been made for these years.

Beginning in December 2002, we have reclassified as revenue our recovery of indirect costs related to our management
services business, as opposed to being classified as a reduction of expenses in the income statement. This recovery of
indirect costs for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled $9.7 million, $9.3 million and $7.3 million,
respectively. The amounts related to recovery of indirect costs in our management services business were not available
for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 given that it was necessary to reconfigure our reporting systems to
separate these costs, therefore no reclassification has been made for these years.

In December 2002, we exercised our option to purchase the remaining 45% interest in the joint venture company Jones
Lang LaSalle Asset Management Services, which exclusively provides asset management services for all Skandia Life
properties in Sweden. The purchase price was below the fair value of the assets acquired, resulting in an after-tax
extraordinary gain of $341,000.

EBITDA represents earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization and excludes Minority
Interests in EBITDA. EBITDA also excludes the cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles and the
extraordinary item. We believethat EBITDA is useful to investors as a measure of operating performance, cash generation
and ability to service debt. EBITDA is also used in the calculations of certain covenants related to our revolving credit
facility. However, EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative either to: (i) net earnings (determined in accordance
with GAAP); (ii) operating cash flow (determined in accordance with GAAP); or (iii) liquidity.

For purposes of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings represents net earnings (loss) before income
taxes plus fixed charges, less capitalizedinterest. Fixed charges consist of interest expense, including amortization of debt
discount and financing costs, capitalized interest and one-third of rental expense which we believe is representative of the
interest component of rental expense. Due to the merger related non-recurring charges, earnings were insufficient to cover
fixed charges by $89.5 million for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Investments under management represent the aggregate fair market value or cost basis (where an appraisal is not available)
of assets managed by our Investment Management segment as of the end of the periods reflected.

Represents the total square footage of properties for which we provided property management and leasing or corporate
property services as of the end of the periods reflected.



Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The following discussion and analysis
contains certain forward-looking statements which are generally identified by the words anticipates, believes, estimates, expects,
plans, intends and other similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause Jones Lang LaSalle’s actual results, performance, achievements, plans and objectives to be
materially different from any future results, performance, achievements, plans and objectives expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. See Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements below.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is presented in five sections. The first section is a summary of our critical
accounting policies and estimates. The second section discusses certain items affecting the comparability of results and certain
market and other risks that we face. The third section analyzes the Results of our Operations, first on a consolidated basis and
then for each of our business segments. The final two sections address Consolidated Cash Flows and Liquidity and Capital
Resources.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

An understanding of our accounting policies is necessary for a complete analysis of our results, financial position, liquidity
and trends. The preparation of our financial statements requires management to make certain critical accounting estimates that
impact the stated amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reperted amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. These accounting estimates are based
on management’s judgment and are considered to be critical because of their significance to the financial statements and the
possibility that future events may differ from current judgments, or that the use of different assumptions could result in materially
different estimates. We review these estimates on a periodic basis to ensure reasonableness. However, the amounts we may
ultimately realize could differ from such estimated amounts.

Revenue Recognition - We recognize advisory and management fees in the period in which we perform the service.
Transaction commissions are recognized as income when we provide the service unless future contingencies exist. If future
contingencies exist, we defer recognition of this revenue until the respective contingenciesare satisfied. Developmentmanagement
fees are generally recognized as billed, which we believe approximates the percentage of completion method of accounting.
Incentive fees are generally tied to some form of contractual milestone and are recorded in accordance with the specific terms of
the underlying compensation agreement. The Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB
101"), "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements," provides guidance on the application of generally accepted accounting
principles to selected revenue recognition issues. We believe that our revenue recognition policy is appropriate and in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and SAB 101. We implemented SAB 101 in 2000
and this is discussed more fully in Note 17 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In certain of our businesses, primarily those invelving management services, we are reimbursed by our clients for expenses
that are incurred on their behalf. The treatment of reimbursable expenses for financial reporting purposes is based upon the fee
structure of the underlying contracts. A contract that provides a fixed fee/billing, fully inclusive of all personnel or other
recoverable expenses that we incur, and not separately scheduled as such, is reported on a gross basis. This means that our reported
revenues include the full billing to our client and our reported expenses include all costs associated with the client, When the fee
structure is comprised of at least two distinct elements: the fixed management fee and a separate component which allows for
scheduled reimbursable personnel or other expenses to be billed directly to the client, we will account for the contract on a net
basis. This means we include the fixed management fee in reported revenues and we net the reimbursement against expenses. This
characterization is based on the following factors: (i) the property owner generally has authority over hiring practices and the
approval of payroll prior to payment by Jones Lang LaSalle; (ii) Jones Lang LaSalle is the primary obligor with respect to the
property personnel, but bears little or no credit risk under the terms of the management contract; (iii) reimbursement to Jones Lang
LaSalle is generally completed simultaneously with payment of payroll or soon thereafter; and (iv) Jones Lang LaSalle generally
earns no margin in the arrangement, obtaining reimbursement only for actual cost incurred. The majority of our service contracts
utilize the latter structure and are accounted for on a net basis. We have always presented the above reimbursable contract costs
on a net basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such costs aggregated
approximately $360 million in 2002. Prior year comparative information is not available given that it was necessary to reconfigure
our reporting systems in 2002 as our global systems did not separate these costs.
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Accounts Receivable - We estimate the allowance necessary to provide for uncollectible accounts receivable. This
estimate includes specific accounts for which payment has become unlikely. This estimate is also based on historical experience,
combined with a careful review of current developments and with a strong focus on credit quality. The process by which we
calculate the allowance begins in the individual business units where specific problem accounts are identified and reserved as part
of an overall reserve that is formulaic and driven by the age profile of the receivables. These reserves are then reviewed on a
quarterly basis by regional and global management to ensure that they are appropriate. As part of this review, a range of potential
reserves is developed on a consistent formulaic basis. Over the last two years we have placed considerable focus on working capital
management and in particular, collecting our receivables on a more timely basis. As we are successful in doing this, the range of
potential reserves is narrowing. We would normally expect that the allowance would fall within this range. The table below sets
out certain information regarding our accounts receivable, allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable, range of possible
allowance and the bad debt expense we incurred by segment for the last three years (in millions).

Accoumnts Allowance
Receivable for
Gross More Than Uneollectible

Accounts 90 Days Accounts Maximum Minimum Bad Debt

Receivable Past Due Receivable Allowangce Allowance Expense
December 31, 2002
Americas OOS ... ... 76.9 1.6 1.4 1.5 0.8 1.1
Europe GOS . . ... ... 78.4 2.9 2.1 2.5 1.3 0.4
Asia Pacific OOS . ... 32.8 2.6 1.5 2.4 1.2 1.3
Investment Management 444 _05 - _05 _ 0.2 (0.5
Consolidated . ... ... 232.5 _1.6 3.0 69 3.5 _23
Becember 31, 2001
Americas O0S ... ... 74.4 1.9 1.2 1.3 0.6 .
Europe OOS . . ... ... 91.4 33 2.9 2.9 1.4 1.3
Asta Pacific OOS . . .. 36.6 3.0 1.2 2.7 1.4 1.3
Investment Management 26.1 _0.5 _0.6 _04 02 -
Consolidated .. ... .. 228.5 _87 3.9 73 3.6 _83
December 31, 2000
Americas OOS ... ... 96.5 34 3.1 3.1 1.8 2.4
Europe OOS . . ... ... 99.7 7.2 43 6.4 32 1.7
Asia Pacific OOS . ... 32.7 4.1 1.0 3.1 1.5 1.3
Investment Management 242 _0.2 _04 _02 _0.1 -
Consolidated . ...... 253.1 149 8.8 12.8 6.6 5.4

We would note that included in the $5.7 million bad debt expense for the Americas OOS segment in 2001 is a charge of
$3.9 million for unrecoverable receivables from technology related clients.

Periodic Accounting for Incentive Compensation - An important part of our overall compensation package is incentive
compensation, which is typically paid out to our employees in the first quarter of the year after it is earned. In our interim financial
statements we accrue for incentive compensation based on the percentage of revenue and compensation costs recorded to date
relative to forecasted revenue and compensation costs for the full year as substantially all incentive compensation pools are based
upon revenues and profits. The impact of this incentive compensation accrual methodology is that we accrue very little incentive
compensation in the first six months of the year, with the majority of our incentive compensation accrued in the second half of
the year, particularly in the fourth quarter. We exclude from the standard accrual methodology incentive compensation pools that
are not subject to the normal performance criteria. These pools are accrued for on a straight-line basis.

As discussed in Note 13 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we have a stock ownership program for certain
of our senior employees pursuant to which they receive a portion of their annual incentive compensation in the form of restricted
stock units of our common stock. These restricted shares vest 50% at 18 months from the date of grant (January of the following
year to which the restricted stock relates) and 50% vest at 30 months from the date of grant. The related compensation cost is
amortized to expense over the service period. The service period consists of the 12 months of the year to which payment of the
restricted stock relates, plus the periods over which the shares vest. In 2002, we expanded the population of employees who qualify
for the program as part of our goal of broadening employee stock ownership. In addition, the program for 2002 was amended to
enable employees, who currently own certain minimum levels of our stock, to elect not to participate in the 2002 program. Given
that individual incentive compensation awards are not finalized until after year-end, we must estimate the portion of the overall
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incentive compensation pool that will qualify for this program. This estimation factors in the performance of the Company and
individual business units, together with the target bonuses for qualified individuals. Given that the majority of our incentive
compensation is accrued in the fourth quarter, we do not estimate and account for the current year impact of this program until
the fourth quarter (i.e. the enhancement, the deferral and the related amortization).

The table below sets out certain information regarding this stock ownership program and related incentive compensation
deferral and expense for the last three years (in thousands, except employee data).

December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Number of employees qualified for the stock ownership program . . . 709 200 200
C t i ti tion defi d net of t

Amortization onuve compensation delerred net of curremt year (5,039) (2,910) (4.458)
C ti ense amortization recognized with regard to the

33? gr?ts?/égps% knowners}gp program g ......... g ......... 3,832 1,895 3,134
C ati ense amortization recognized with regard to the

B?iigre]}’%arlso rsltgt):(g ownerrghip programs g ......... g ......... 4,843 4917 1,987
Total compensation expense amortization with regard to the

stock ownership programs . .. ........ .. i 8,675 6,812 5,121

Asset Impairment - We apply Statement No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,"
("SFAS 144") to recognize and measure impairment of long-lived assets. SFAS 144 establishes accounting and reporting standards
for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets by requiring that those long-lived assets to be held and used be measured at
the lower of carrying costs or their fair value, and by requiring that those long-lived assets to be held for sale to be measured at
the lower of carrying costs or their fair value less costs to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued
operations. We adopted SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002. The effect of implementing SFAS 144 did not have a material impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

We review long-lived assets, including investments in real estate ventures, intangibles and property and equipment for
impairment on an annual basis, or whenever evenis or circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset group may not be
recoverable. The review of recoverability is based on an estimate of the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset group. If impairment exists due to the inability to recover the carrying value of an asset group, an impairment loss
is recorded to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value.

We adopted Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” ("SFAS 142") effective January 1, 2002. In
connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS 142 required us to perform an assessment of whether there
was an indication that goodwill was impaired as of the date of adoption. To accomplish this evaluation, we determined the carrying
value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those
reporting units as of the date of adoption. For purposes this exercise we defined reporting units based on how the Chief Operating
Decision Makers for each segment looked at their segment when determining strategic business decisions. The following reporting
units were determined: Investment Management, Americas OOS, Australia O0S, Asia OCS, and by country grouping in Europe
OO0S. We have determined the fair value of each reporting unit on the basis of a discounted cash flow methodology and compared
it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. In all cases, the fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount, and
therefore no impairment loss has been recognized on our goodwill.

Although the Land Investment Group was closed in 2001, we have retained certain investments originated by this group.
Included in investments in real estate ventures as of December 31, 2002 is the book value of the five remaining Land Investment
Group investments (of which three have now been fully written down) of $2.1 million. This book value is net of $6.3 miilion of
impairment charges, of which $3.5 million was recorded in 2001 as part of our non-recurring charges. We have also provided
guarantees associated with this investment portfolio of $1.2 million, which we currently do not expect to be required to fund, We
continue to monitor the porifolio very carefully and have taken two additional impairment charges in 2002 as part of our non-
recurring charges. We recorded $1.9 million to fully provide against an investment that had previously not been impaired, but
which defaulted on certain financial covenants in 2002. In addition, we took an impairment charge of $0.9 million to fully write
down an investment that we had partially impaired in 2001, as our underlying projected performance expectations continued to
decline. Any future impairment charges or gains or losses on disposal relating to the Land Investment Group will be included in
non-recurring charges. We currently expect to liquidate the Land Investment Group investments by the end of 2006.
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Although the Development Group was sold in the third quarter of 2001, we have retained certain investments originated
by this group. Included in investments in real estate ventures as of December 31, 2002 is the book value of the one remaining
investment project of $893,000. In 2002 we have recorded a net gain of $675,000 as a result of the disposal of three of these
investments, an impairment charge of $472,000 relating to two properties that were subsequently sold and equity losses of $404,000.
The net gain and expenses have been recorded in non-recurring expense in 2002. Any future impairment charges or gains or losses
on disposal relating to the final Development Group investment will be included in non-recurring expenses. We continue to evaluate
this investment for impairment. We currently expect to liquidate the final Development Group investment by the end of 2003,

During 2001, we reviewed our e-commerce investments on an investment by investment basis, evaluating actual business
performance against original expectations, projected future performance and associated cash flows, and capital needs and
availability. As a result of this evaluation we determined that our investments in e-commerce were impaired and fully wrote down
these investments by the end of 2001 as part of our non-recurring charges. It is currently our policy to expense any additional
investments, primarily contractual commitments to fund operating expenses of existing investments, that are made into these
ventures in the period they are made. These charges are recorded as ordinary recurring charges. In 2002 we expensed a total of
$287,000 of such investments.

Also during 2001, the Asia Pacific region underwent a realignment from a traditional geographic structure to one that is
managed according to business lines. As part of this realignment, we decided to restructure our operations to exit an arrangement
with a third-party in Indonesia. This decision resulted in the write-down of a net $1.0 million receivable from this third-party.

Income Taxes - We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Because of the global and cross border
nature of our business, our corporate tax position is complex. We generally provide taxes in each tax jurisdiction in which we
operate based on local tax regulations and rules. Such taxes are provided on net earnings and include the provision of taxes on
substantively all differences between accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and tax accounting,
excluding certain non-deductible items and permanent differences.

Cur global effective tax rate is sensitive to the complexity of our operations as well as to changes in the mix of our
geographic profitability, as local statutory tax rates range from 10% to 42% in the countries in which we have significant
operations. We evaluate our estimated effective tax rate on a quarterly basis to reflect forecast changes in our geographic mix of
income, legislative actions on statutory tax rates, the impact of tax planning to reduce losses in jurisdictions where we cannot
recognize the tax benefit of those losses, as well as tax planning for jurisdictions affected by double taxation. We continuously seek
to develop and implement potential strategies and/or actions that would reduce our overall effective tax rate. We reflect the benefit
from tax planning actions when we believe it is probable that they will be successful, which usually requires that certain actions
have been initiated. We provide for the effects of income taxes on interim financial statements based on our estimate of the
effective tax rate for the full year. The actual 2002 effective tax rate of 34% excludes a tax benefit of $1.8 million related to
certain costs incurred in restructuring actions taken in 2001. These costs were not originally expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. However, as a result of actions undertaken this year, these costs were deemed deductible.

Based on our historical experience and future business plans we do not expect to repatriate our foreign source eamnings
to the United States. As a result, we have not provided deferred taxes on such earnings or the difference between tax rates in the
United States and the various foreign jurisdictions where such amounts were earned. Further, there are various limitations on our
ability to utilize foreign tax credits on such earnings when repatriated. As such, we may incur taxes in the United States upon
repatriation without credits for foreign taxes paid on such earnings. Due to the complex nature of our tax position, it is not
practical for us to determine the amount of taxes that we may incur if repatriation did occur.

We have established valuation allowances against the possible future tax benefits of current losses where expected future
taxable income does not support the realization of the deferred tax assets. We formally assess the likelihood of being able to utilize
current tax losses in the future on a country by country basis, with the determination of each quarter’s income tax provision; and
we establish or increase valuation reserves upon specific indications that the carrying value of a tax asset may not be recoverable,
or alternatively we reduce valuation reserves upon specific indications that the carrying value of the tax asset is more likely than
not recoverable or upon the implementation of tax planning strategies allowing an asset previously determined not realizable to
be viewed as realizable. The table below summarizes certain information regarding the gross deferred tax assets and valuation
allowance for the last three years (in millions):

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Gross Deferred Tax Asset .. .. ... v, $70.0 62.4 44 .4
Valuation Allowance . ... .. ................ $12.2 12.1 33
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The increase in the valuation allowance from 2000 to 200! was primarily the result of the establishment of valuation
reserves on foreign tax loss carryover benefits, particularly in the Asia Pacific region, and write downs of certain investments. The
increases in gross deferred tax assets from 2001 to 2002 and from 2000 to 2001 were the result of tax loss carryovers in all regions,
write downs of investments and other differences in the timing of income recognition on investments. Gross deferred asset growth
in 2002 included a significant loss in a previously profitable jurisdiction, which is expected to return to profitability in 2003 and
for which a valuation reserve was not provided.

We evaluate our segment operating performance before tax, and do not consider it meaningful to allocate tax by segment.
Estimations and judgments relevant to the determination of tax expense, assets, and liabilities require analysis of the tax
environment and the future profitability, for tax purposes, of local statutory legal entities rather than business segments. Our
statutory legal entity structure generally does not mirror the way that we organize, manage and report our business operations. For
example, the same legal entity may include both Investment Management and OOS businesses in a particular country.

Accounting for Self-Insurance Programs - In our Americas business, in common with many other American companies,
we have chosen to retain certain risks regarding workers’ compensation and health insurance rather than purchase third-party
insurance. Estimating our exposure to such risks involves subjective judgments about future developments. We engage the services
of an independent actuary to assist us in quantifying our potential exposure.

° Health Insurance - We chose to self-insure our health benefits for all US based employees for the first time in
2002, although we did purchase stop loss coverage to limit our exposure. We made this decision because we
believed that on the basis of our historic claims experience, the demographics of our workforce and trends in the
health insurance industry, we would incur reduced expense in self-insuring our health benefits as opposed to
purchasing health insurance through a third-party. We engaged an actuary who specializes in health insurance
to estimate our likely full year cost at the beginning of the year and expensed this cost on a straight-line basis
throughout the year. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we employed the same actuary to estimate the required
reserve for unpaid health costs we would need at year-end, together with an initial estimate of costs for 2003,
which we will use for periodic reporting purposes in 2003. With regard to the year-end reserve, the actuary
provides us with a point estimate and we accrued that estimate, additionally we accrued a provision of
approximately $300,000 for adverse deviation. The amount accrued at December 31, 2002 was $2.4 million.
Total costs incurred related to this plan in 2002 were $15.0 million which includes the $2.4 million reserve. As
we had previously purchased health insurance from a third-party, there were no similar accruals in 2001 or 2000.

° Workers’ Compensation Insurance - Given our belief, based on historical experience that our workforce has
experienced lower costs than is normal for our industry, we have been self-insured for worker’s compensation
insurance for a number of years. On a periodic basis we accrue using the various state rates based on job
classifications and engage an independent actuary who specializes in worker’s compensation to estimate our
exposure based on actual experience. Given the significant judgmental issues involved in this evaluation, the
actuary provides us a range of potential exposure and we reserve within that range. The table below sets out the
range and our actual reserve for the last three years (in millions):

Maximum Minimum Actual

Reserve Reserve Reserve
December 31,2002 . ............. $6.4 4.9 6.1
December 31, 2001 .. ............ $7.2 5.1 6.4
December 31,2000 .............. $7.2 5.5 59

Historically the results of this review have been available by the end of the third quarter and we have recorded
an adjustment to bring our financial statements in line with the actuary’s estimate of our actual experience.

Captive Insurance Company - In order to better manage our global insurance program, the Company, and its
predecessor entities have used a captive insurance company to provide professional indemnity insurance coverage
on a "claims made" basis to certain of our international operations in addition to traditional insurance coverage.
The maximum risk retained by this captive insurance company in any one year is pound sterling 1 million
(approximately $1.6 million). Given the nature of these types of claims, it may take several years for there to
be a resolution of the underlying claims and finalize the expense. We are required to estimate the ultimate cost
of these claims. This estimate includes specific claim reserves that are developed on the basis of a review of the
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circumstances of the individual claim. Given that the timeframe for these reviews may be lengthy, we also
provide a reserve against the current year exposures on the basis of our historic loss ratio. The table below

provides details of the reserves, which can relate to multiple years, that we have established in the last three years
(in millions):

December 31,2002 .............. $1.7
December 31,2001 .............. $2.0
December 31,2000 ... ........... $1.7

Commitments and Contingencies - We are subject to various claims and contingencies related to lawsuits, taxes and
environmental matters as well as commitments under contractual obligations. Many of these claims are covered under our current
insurance programs. We recognize the liability associated with commitments and contingencies when a loss is probable and
estimable. Our contractual obligations relate to the provision of services by us in the normal course of our business.

Items Affecting Comparability
Non-Recurring and Restructuring Charges

In December 2002, our Board of Directors approved a reduction of our workforce by four percent to meet expected global
economic conditions. This reduction in force has led to a $12.7 million charge to the non-recurring compensation and benefits
expense in 2002. In addition, we incurred non-recurring expenses of approximately $500,000 for the future lease costs of excess
space and $3.0 million of impairment charges related to investments made by businesses exited in 2001.

In 2001, we incurred non-recurring and restructuring charges related to; 1) impairment of e-commerce investments, 2) exit
from certain businesses and business relationships, including related asset impairments, 3) insolvent insurance providers and 4)
restructuring actions taken to bring ongoing operating expenses in line with anticipated future business. Non-recurring charges in
2001 include the $18.0 million impairment of our investments in e-commerce and reserves of $1.9 million related to insolvent
insurance providers. Also included in the non-recurring charge in 2001 is $13.4 million of asset impairment charges related to the
realignment of our business. Restructuring related to the 2001 business realignment totaled $43.9 million for severance and related
costs. Actual costs incurred have varied from our original estimate for a variety of reasons, including the identification of additional
facts and circumstances, the complexity of intemational labor law and developments in the underlying business, resulting in the
unforeseen reallocation of resources and better or worse than expected settlement discussions. These events have resulted in a credit
of $1.3 million being recorded in the non-recurring compensation and benefits expense and an additional $98,000 being recorded
in the non-recurring operating, administrative and other expense in 2002. Additionally, 2002 included non-recurring charges of
$3.0 million related to further impairment and net equity losses of certain investments in the Land Investment Group and
Development Group, businesses which were exited as part of the broad based restructuring in 2001. See Note 6 to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed discussion of these non-recurring and restructuring items.

New York Expansion

In the third quarter of 2002 we initiated the expansion of our New York business. To support this expansion, we increased
the underlying headcount and associated costs in this business. Given the nature of our business, we expect that it will take at least
six months for this headcount to deliver incremental revenues. In addition, there were significant upfront costs associated with
expanding the New York business. The combination of these factors has meant that we have incurred net pre-tax expenses of $3.2
million in 2002 associated with this expansion.

Acquisitions and Merger

We have grown by expanding our client base and the range of services and products we offer. In addition, we have made
a series of strategic acquisitions since the Initial Public Cffering of LaSalle Partners Incorporated in 1997 and also entered into
the merger with the Jones Lang Wootton companies ("JLW").

In December 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle acquired the 45% minority interest in the joint venture company Jones Lang
LaSalle Asset Management Services, which since 2000 has exclusively provided Asset Management services for all Skandia Life
properties in Sweden - currently totaling 25 million square feet. The purchase price of the minority interest was approximately $1

million, a discount to the fair value of the net assets acquired. As a result, we have recorded an afier-tax gain of $341,000 as an
extraordinary item in 2002.
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On March 11, 1999, LaSalle Partners Incorporated and JLW merged their businesses. JLW was an employee-owned
international real-estate services firm with approximately 4,000 employees with operations in 32 countries. Approximately 48%
of the shares issued to employees of the former JLW operations as part of the merger were accounted for as compensation expense
or deferred compensation expense to the extent they were subject to forfeiture or vesting provisions. We incurred non-cash,
merger-related stock compensation expense of $83.3 million in 2000, on an after-tax basis. As of December 31, 2000, all merger-
related stock compensation was expensed and all forfeiture and vesting provisions were removed.

Adoption of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” ("SAB 101™)

Effective January 1, 2000, as a result of the implementation of Staff Accounting Builetin No. 101, "Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statements" ("SAB 101"), we recorded a one-time, non-cash, after-tax cumulative change in accounting principle of
$14.2 million, net of taxes $8.7 million. This adjustment represented revenues of $22.9 million that had been recognized prior to
January 1, 2000 that would not have now been recognized if the new accounting policy had been in effect in the years priocr to
2000. These revenues have now been recognized as the underlying contingencies are satisfied. We recognized $400,000, $5.8
million and $16.2 million of these revenues in the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Of the
$22.9 million of revenues that were deferred on January 1, 2000, $500,000 represented revenues related to our land investment
business, a business we exited in 2001. We have determined that the subsequent impairment of the specific investment that
generated these revenues means that this $500,000 wiil not be collected, and therefore will not be recorded as revenue. This will
have no impact on our earnings or cash flow. SAB 101 is discussed in detail in Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Adoption of Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’ ("SFAS 142°%)

We adopted the provisions of SFAS 142 effective January 1, 2002. As a result of implementing SFAS 142, we recorded
an after-tax credit to earnings representing a cumulative change in accounting principle effective Januvary 1, 2002 of $846,000.
This represented the negative goodwill balance at January 1, 2002. During 2002, the net impact of SFAS 142 was to increase
operating income by $9.6 million as a result of ceasing the amortization of goodwill with indefinite lives. SFAS 142 is discussed
in detail in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

LaSalle Investment Management Revenues

Our Investment Management business is in part compensated through the receipt of incentive fees where investment
performance exceeds agreed benchmark levels. Depending upon performance, these fees can be significant and will generally be
recognized when agreed events or milestones are reached. These fees may also be structured in a variety of ways. This may mean
we record them as equity earnings for financial reporting purposes. For example, in 2000, we recognized $10.3 million in fees
and equity earnings related to the partial liquidation of a fund invested in French property. In 2001, we recognized incentive fees
of $14.4 million as the result of the disposition of a hotel investment. In 2002, we recognized advisory fees of $8.7 million related
to the performance of an investment portfolio in which we have a co-investment. The timing of recognition will impact
comparability between quarters, in any one year, or compared to a prior year. We believe that given the scope of our co-investment
portfolio, we would expect that in any year incentive fees would be triggered in some funds and that this would facilitate year on
year comparability. However, comparability year on year may be impacted by these fees.

New Accounting Standards
Asset Retirement Chligations

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations," ("SFAS 143"} which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the asset.

SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which
it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount
of the associated asset and this additional carrying amount is depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability is accreted at the
end of each period through charges to operating expense. If the obligation is settled for other than the carrying amount of the
liability, the Company will recognize a gain or loss on settlement.

The Company is required, and plans to adopt, the provisions of SFAS 143 for the quarter ending March 31, 2003. We
have not yet fully assessed the impact of SFAS 143 on our consolidated financial statements, but do not anticipate it to be material.

24



Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities," ("SFAS 146") which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs incurred in a Restructuring)."

SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability
is incurred rather than when a company commits to such an activity and also establishes fair value as the objective for initial
measurement of the liability.

SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. 1f SFAS 146 had been
effective in 2002, we would have been unable to recognize approximately $500,000 of excess lease costs taken as part of the 2002
restructuring charge. The adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Accounting and Disclosure by Guarantors

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," ("FIN 45") which addresses
the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under guarantees.
FIN 435 also requires the recognition of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees.

FIN 45 requires the guarantor to recognize a liability for the non-contingent component of the guarantee; this is the
obligation to stand ready to perform in the event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. The initial measurement of
this liability is the fair value of the guarantee at inception. The recognition of the liability is required even if it is not probable that
payments will be required under the guarantee or if the guarantee was issued with a premium payment or as part of a transaction
with multiple elements.

The Company has adopted FIN 45 and has provided the disclosure requirements and will apply the recognition and
measurement provisions for all guarantees entered into or modified after December 31, 2002. To date the Company has not entered
into or modified guarantees pursuant to the recognition provisions of FIN 45. Guarantees covered by the disclosure provisions of
FIN 45 are discussed in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Notes 8, 9 and 16 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure

In December 2002, The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB StatementNo. 123" ("SFAS 148"). This statementamends FASB
Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS 123"), to provide alternative methods of transition for
a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends
the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements. Certain
of the disclosure modifications are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and are included in Note 13 to Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51" ("FIN 46"). FIN 46 addresses the consolidation by business enterprises of
variable interest entities as defined. FIN 46 applies immediately to variable interests in variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003. For public enterprises with a variable interest entity created before February 1, 2003, FIN 46 applies to that
enterprise no later than the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption
of FIN 46 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Market and Other Risk Factors

Market Risk

The principal market risks (i.e., the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices) to which we are
exposed are:

° Interest rates on the multi-currency credit facility
e Foreign exchange risks

in the normal course of business, Jones Lang LaSalle manages these risks through a variety of strategies, including the
use of hedging transactions using various derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts. We do not
enter into derivative transactions for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rates

We centrally manage our debt, considering investment opportunities and risks, tax conseguences and overall financing
strategies. We are primarily exposed to interest rate risk on the $275 million revolving multi-currency credit facility due in
September 2004, that is available for working capital, investments, capital expenditures and acquisitions. This facility bears a
variable rate of interest based on market rates. The interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate
changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower the overall borrowing costs. To achieve this objective, in the past we have
entered into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swap agreements when appropriate and may do so in the future.
We entered into no such agreements in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 and as of December 31, 2002, we had no
interest rate swap agreements outstanding.

The effective interest rate on our debt was 7.3% compared to 7.48% in 2001. The decrease in the effective interest rate
is due to reduced revolver borrowings at declining market interest rates, partially offset by the strengthening of the euro against
the US dollar.

A 50 basis point increase in the effective interest rate on the revolving credit facility would have increased our net interest
expense by $370,000 in 2002,

Foreign Exchange

Our revenues outside of the United States totaled 61% of our total revenues in 2002. Cperating in international markets
means that we are exposed to movements in these foreign exchange rates, primarily the British pound (22% of 2002 revenues) and
the euro (17% of 2002 revenues). Changes in these foreign exchange rates would have the largest impact on translating our
international operations results inte U.S. dollars.

The British pound expenses incurred as a result of both our worldwide operational headquarters and our regional
headquarters being located in London act as a partial operational hedge against our translation exposure to the British pound. A
10% change in the average exchange rate for the British pound in 2002 would have impacted our pre-tax net operating income by
approximately $1.5 million.

The interest on the euro 165 million of notes we issued during 2000 acts as a partial hedge against the translation exposure
on our euro denominated earnings. The net impact on our earnings before tax of a 10% change in the average exchange rate for
the euro in 2002 would have been $1.5 million.

We enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to manage currency risks associated with intercompany loan
balances. At December31, 2002, we had forward exchange contracts in effect with a gross notional value of $143.1 million ($82.1
million on a net basis) with a market and carrying gain of $3.1 million.

Seasonality

Historically, our revenue, operating income and net earnings in the first three calendar quarters are substantially lower than
in the fourth quarter. Other than for Investment Management, this seasonality is due to a calendar year end focus on the completion
of real estate transactions, which is consistent with the real estate industry generally. The Investment Management segment earns
performance fees on clients’ returns on their real estate investments. Such performance fees are generally earned when assets are
sold, the timing of which we do not have complete discretion over. Non-variable operating expenses, which are treated as expenses
when they are incurred during the year, are relatively constant on a quarterly basis.
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Euro Conversion Issues

On January 1, 1999, certain member countries of the European Union fixed conversion rates between their existing
currencies ("legacy currencies") and one common currency - the euro. For a three-and-one-half-year transition period, non-cash
transactions were allowed to be denominated in either the euro or in the legacy currency. As of July |, 2002 the euro is the sole
legal tender for these countries.

In January 2002, we converted our legacy currency general ledgers to the euro. There has been no adverse impact resulting
from this conversion. We are continuing to evaluate the potential impact of euro related issues on information systems, currency
exchange rate risk and other business activities, but we do not expect the impact of euro conversion to be material to us. However,
there can be no assurance that external factors relating to the euro conversion will not have a material adverse impact on our
operations.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001
Consolidated Review

Revenue

Total revenue, after the elimination of intersegment revenue, decreased $65.0 million, or 7.2%, to $840.4 mililion in 2002
from $905.4 million in 2001. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency exchange rates, the 2002 revenue decline
was $87.1 million, or 9.6%, when compared to 2001 results. This reflects the general strengthening of the euro, pound sterling and
Australian dollar against the US dollar when compared to last year, The reduction in our revenues year over year reflects the weak
global economy, but the impact was most significant in the American and European OOS businesses. The broad based restructuring
initiated in the second half of 2001 was in anticipation of a decline in revenues as we had not anticipated a turnaround in overall
economic conditions until late 2002. However, the severity and persistence of revenue pressures was greater than we expected.

Gperating Expenses

Total operating expenses, after the elimination of intersegment expense and excluding the effects of non-recurring charges,
decreased $44.4 miilion, or 5.4% to $770.9 million in 2002 from $815.3 million in 2001. The impact of the stronger euro, pound
sterling and Australian dollar has meant that the effectiveness of our cost reduction initiatives have been masked by an increase
in US dollar reported expenses. Excluding the impact of movement in foreign currency exchange rates, the cost reduction was 7.8%
for 2002. The reduction in expenses is largely the result of 1) the restructuring actions taken in 2001 to bring ongoing operating
expenses in line with anticipated future business in light of the existing economic conditions, 2) continued focus on discretionary
costs, and 3) the adoption of SFAS 142 which reduced amortization expense by $9.6 million. Partially offsetting this was $3.9
million of expenses related to our New York expansion initiated in late 2002.

Compensation and benefit expense decreased $15.1 million, or 2.8%, to $530.5 million in 2002 from $545.6 million in
2001. The decrease in compensation and benefit expense reflects the reduction in headcount as a result of the restructuring actions
taken in 2001. The strengthening of the euro, pound sterling and Australian dollar, against the US dollar increased reported US
dollar compensation and benefits expense by $13.8 million in 2002. Incentive compensation increased as a result of improved
performance in some business units as well as a rebuilding of incentive compensation pools from the low levels in 2001.

Operating expenses, excluding compensation and benefits expense and non-recurring charges, were down $29.3 million,
or 10.9%, to $240.3 million in 2002 from $269.6 million in 2001, largely due to cost containment initiatives put in place in 2001.
Areas which have seen significant cost savings in 2002 were travel and entertainment, marketing, and information technology,
which benefitted from the renegotiation of our contract with a third-party support provider. In addition, bad debt expense was
substantially lower, in part due to our ongoing focus on working capital management, but also because in 2001 we incurred a $3.9
million charge for unrecoverable receivables from technology related clients. The benefit resulting from adopting SFAS 142
(discussed in Note 15 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) was amortization savings of $9.6 million in 2002. The
effectiveness of our cost saving initiatives in 2002 was offset by the impact of the strengthening of the euro, pound sterling and
Australian dollar, which increased reported US dollar operating expenses, excluding compensation and benefits expense and non-
recurring charges, by $5.7 million.

The non-recurring charges in 2001 of $77.2 million include the write-down of investments in e-commerce, reserves against
potential liabilities associated with the bankruptcy of two insurance providers, severance and asset impairment costs associated with
the global restructuring program in place at 2001, and include costs associated with the exiting of certain non-strategic business
lines and the realignment of our Asia Pacific business along client and business lines. Actual costs incurred related to our 2001
broad based realignment varied from our original estimates for a variety of reasons, including the identification of additional facts
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and circumstances, the complexity of international labor law and developments in the underlying business, resulting in the
unforeseen reallocation of resources and better or worse settlement discussions, These events have resulted in the recording of a
credit to non-recurring compensation and benefits expense in 2002 of $1.3 million and an additional expense of $98,000 to non-
recurring operating, administrative and other expense. In addition, in 2002 we have incurred additional impairment expense and
equity losses of $3.0 million related to investments made by businesses exited during the 2001 restructuring. The non-recurring
charges in 2002 of $14.9 million include $12.7 million of severance costs associated with the most recent global restructuring
program and approximately $500,000 for the lease costs of excess space as a result of this restructuring. See Note 6 to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed discussion of these non-recurring and restructuring items.

Operating Income

We reported operating income, excluding non-recurring charges, of $69.6 million in 2002, a decrease of $20.6 million,
or 22.8%, from $90.2 million in 2001. The change year over year in operating income before non-recusring and restructuring
charges is the result of continued revenue pressures due to the slowdown in the global economy, partially offset by reduced
expenses as a result of lower compensation costs due to the broad based restructuring in 2001, a strong focus on discretionary costs
and the impact of the implementation of SFAS 142 on amortization expense.

Including non-recurring and restructuring charges, operating income increased$4 1.7 million, to $54.7 million in 2002 from
$13.0 million in 2001. See Note 6 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed discussion of these non-
recurring and restructuring items.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, net of interest income, decreased $3.2 million, or 15.8%, to $17.0 million in 2002 from $20.2 million
in 2001. The decrease in interest expense is the result of lower average revolver borrowings at declining interest rates partially
offset by the impact of the strengthening euro on the reported US dollar value of the interest expense on the Euro Notes.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $11.0 million in 2002, as compared to $8.0 million in 2001. The increase in provisicn
is primarily due to increased earnings befere tax in 2002 compared to 2001.

On an operational basis, excluding non-recurring and restructuring charges, we achieved a 34% effective tax in 2002
compared to 42% in 2001. The decrease in our effective tax rate was due to the impact of tax planning undertaken in 2002,
particularly planning to reduce the impact of losses in jurisdictions where we cannot recognize tax benefits and planning to reduce
the incidence of double taxation of earnings and other tax inefficiencies. The reduction in the effective tax rate also reflects the
benefits of the reduction in non deductible goodwill amortization under SFAS 142 and a greater proportion of earnings in countries
with lower corporate tax rates in 2002 compared to 2001. The effective tax rate of 34% excludes a one-time tax benefit of $1.8
million related to certain costs incusred in restructuring actions taken in 2001. These costs were not originally thought to be
deductible for tax purposes; however, as a result of actions undertaken in 2002, these costs are now deductible. Including this one-
time item, we achieved a 29% effective tax rate. See Note 11 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion
of our effective tax rate.

Net Income/(Loss)

Net income before the extraordinary item and cumulative change in accounting principle, increased $41.3 million, to $25.9
million in 2002, as compared to a net loss of $15.4 million in 2001. Including the extraordinary gain on the acquisition of minority
interest (a net benefit of $341,000 and the cumulative change in accounting principle (a net benefit of $846,000) related to the
adoption of SFAS 142, our net income for 2002 was $27.1 million as compared to a net loss of $15.4 million in 2001.

Segment Operating Results

We manage our business along a combination of geographic and functional lines. Operations are reported as four business
segments: the three geographic regions of Owner and Occupier Services ("O0S"), (i) Americas, (ii) Europe and (iii) Asia Pacific,
which offer our full range of Corporate Solutions, Investor Services, and Capital Markets Services, and (iv) Investment
Management, which offers investment management services on a global basis. The GOS business consists primarily of tenant
representation and agency leasing, capital markets and valuation services (collectively "implementation services") and property
management, corporate property services, project and development management services (collectively, "management services™).
The Investment Management segment provides real estate investment management services to institutional investors, corporations,
and high-net-worth individuals.
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We have not allocated non-recurring and restructuring charges to the business segments for segment reporting purposes
and therefore these costs are not included in the discussions below.

Owner and Occupier Services
Americas

Revenue for the Americas region decreased $37.0 million, or 11.3%, to $290.9 million in 2002, from $327.9 miilion in
2001, The pressure on revenues continues a trend that began in the middle of 2001, The most significant revenue declines during
2002, as compared to last year, were experienced in our transaction business as clients continued to delay or defer decision making.
We also found that our revenue per transaction reduced as clients maintained operational flexibility by entering into ieases that were
either for less space, or shorter time frames, both factors that impact the quantum of our fees. The Project and Development,
Tenant Representation and the leasing part of our Leasing and Management units were most severely impacted. We also saw
declines in our South American business as political uncertainty and economic difficulty adversely impacted revenues.

Operating expenses for the Americas region decreased $42.7 million, or 14.2%, to $258.9 million in 2002 from $301.6
million in 2001. The reduction in expense year over year is due to lower base compensation expense as a result of the restructuring
actions taken in 2001, partially offset by increased incentive compensation, reflecting the improved financial and operating
performance. There was also a continued focus on controlling discretionary costs. Areas which have seen significant cost savings
in 2002 were travel and entertainment, information technology, which benefitted from the renegotiation of our contract with a third-
party support provider, and bad debt expense, where 2001 included a write-off of $3.9 million related to unrecoverable receivables
from technology related clients. The benefit resulting from adopting SFAS 142 was amortization savings of $4.5 million in 2002.

Europe

Revenue for the Europe region decreased $30.4 million, or 8.8%, to $314.4 million in 2002 from $344.8 million in 2001.
Reported US dollar revenues were positively impacted by approximately $16 million, as compared to the same periods last year,
primarily due to the strengthening of the euro and pound sterling against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in
foreign currency exchange rates, revenue for the Europe region decreased 13.5% when compared to the same period last year. The
most significant declines in 2002, as compared to the prior year period, occurred in the leasing business in England, together with
overall declines in our business in Germany and France, reflecting the difficult economic conditions they were experiencing.

Operating expenses for the region decreased $5.6 million, or 1.9%, to $296.7 million in 2002 from $302.3 million in 2001.
Reported US dollar operating expenses were increased approximately $15 million, as compared to last year, primarily due to the
strengthening of the euro and pound sterling against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency
exchange rates, expenses declined 7.0% when compared to last year. The reduction in expense year over year is due to [ower base
compensation expense as a result of the restructuring actions taken in 2001, together with reduced incentive compensation, reflecting
the decline in financial performance. Also contributing to the reduction in expenses year over year is a continued focus on
controlling discretionary costs. The benefit resulting from adopting SFAS 142 was amortization savings of $1.6 million in 2002.

Asia Pacific

Revenue for the Asia Pacific region decreased $3.0 million, or 2.3%, to $126.6 million in 2002 from $129.6 million in
2001. Reported US dollar revenues were positively impacted by approximately $3 million, as compared to last year, primarily due
to the strengthening of the Australian dollar against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency
exchange rates, revenue for the Asia Pacific region declined 4.7%, when compared to last year. The most significant declines in
2002, as compared to the prior year, occurred in Singapore, Hong Kong and Australia. Partially offsetting the decline of revenues
in these markets are the markets of North Asia, which continue to show strong revenue growth year over year, primarily in the
Investment Sales, Property Management and Tenant Representation units.

Operating expenses for the region decreased $3.1 million, or 2.4%, to $126.8 million in 2002 from $129.9 million in 2001.
Reported US dollar expenses were adversely impacted by approximately $2 million, as compared to last year, primarily due to the
strengthening of the Australian dollar against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency exchange rates,
operating expenses for the Asia Pacific region declined 3.9%, when compared to last year. A continued focus on discretionary costs

helped in the expense reduction. Also, contributing to the reduction in expense was the benefit resulting from adopting SFAS 142,
an amortization savings of $2.0 million in 2002.
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Investment Management

Investment Management revenue increased $4.7 million, or 4.5%, to $109.0 million in 2002 from $104.3 million in 2001.
Reported US dollar revenues were positively impacted by approximately $3 million, as compared to last year, primarily due to the
strengthening of the euro and pound sterling against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency
exchange rates, revenue for Investment Management increased 2.0% when compared to last year. The most significant increase
in 2002 occurred in Advisory Fees, with an increase of $7.6 million, or 8.1%, over 2001. The increase in Advisory Fees in 2002
was in part due to the recognition of $8.7 million related to the performance of an investment portfolio in which we have a co-
investment. Included in revenues in 2001 were incentive fees and equity earnings of $14.4 million generated from the disposition
of a hotel investment. Expansion into the Asia Pacific region positively impacted revenue with the Asia Recovery Fund in
operation for the full year as compared to seven months in 2001,

Operating expenses increased $6.4 million, or 7.7%, to $89.0 million in 2002 from $82.6 million in 2001. Reported US
dollar expenses were adversely impacted by approximately $2 million, as compared to last year, primarily due to the strengthening
of the euro and pound sterling against the US dollar. Excluding the impact of movements in foreign currency exchange rates,
operating expenses for Investment Management increased 5.2%, when compared to last year. Base compensation and benefit
expense increased in 2002 as staffing increased to support new fund activity, and there was also an increase in incentive
compensation reflecting both improved financial and operating performance. Partially offsetting this increase was a reduction in
other operating expense as result of focusing on discretionary cost control. Also, a $2.0 million reduction in bad debt reserves
related to the partial reversal of a reserve, originally established in 19895 for a receivable due from Diverse Real Estate Holdings
Limited Partnership ("Diverse"), favorably impacted operating expenses for the year as the underlying collateral was significantly
enhanced in 2002. As discussed in Note 14 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Chairman of our Board of Directors
holds a 19.8% limited partnership interest in Diverse. The benefit resulting from adopting SFAS 142 was an amortization savings
of $1.5 million in 2002.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000
Consolidated Review
Revenue

Total revenue, after elimination of intersegment revenue, was $905.4 million in 2001, a reduction of $37.1 million, or
3.9%, from reported 2000 revenue of $942.5 million. The decrease in revenue in 2001 is the result of the slowdown in the global
economy, which has significantly reduced the pace of transaction activity. In addition, reported US dollar revenues have been
adversely impacted by $20 million in 2001 as compared to 2000 because of the relative strength of the US dollar against the key
currencies in which we operate, primarily the euro, pound sterling and the Australian dollar. The negative impact of the global
economic slowdown and the strength of the US dollar has been partially mitigated by growth in our management services revenue.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2001, after elimination of intersegment expenses and excluding the effect of non-recurring
charges, decreased by $35.0 million to $815.3 million. This is 4.1% below 2000 operating expenses of $850.3 million after
excluding merger related stock compensation. The decrease in operating expenses from the prior year is primarily the result of
reduction in incentive compensation of $51.8 million (including a $3.5 million reduction in the allocated depariments of Corporate
Overhead, Global Client Services and Strategic Consulting) partly offset by increases in headcount and associated expenses,
primarily in the first nine months of the year, in the regions of America and Europe to service new business. The strengthening
US dollar against the key currencies in which we operate (the euro, pound sterling and the Australian dollar) reduced the US dollar
reported operating expenses by $20 million over last year.

The non-recurring charges in 2001 of $77.2 million include the write-down of investments in e-commerce, reserves against
potential liabilities associated with the bankruptcy of two insurance providers and severance and asset impairment costs associated
with the global restructuring program, including the exiting of certain non-strategic business lines and the realignment of our Asia
Pacific business along client and business lines. These charges are described more detail in Note 6 to the financial statements.
Non-recurring charges for 2000 consist of merger related non-cash compensation expense of $85.8 million associated with the
issuance of shares to former employees of JLW.

Operating Income

In 2001, operating income before non-recurring charges was $90.2 million, as compared to $92.2 million in 2000.
Operating income, excluding non-recurring charges, was 10.0% of revenue for 2001, as compared to 9.8% of revenue in 2000,
The small change year over year in operating income before non-recurring charges is the result of the reduced revenue due to the
slowdown in the global economy, offset by reduced expenses as a result of lower incentive compensation and a focus on
discretionary costs.
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The delivery of a constant operating income before non-recurring charges, despite the 3.9% reduction in revenues was
driven by our flexibie business model. Our bonus driven incentive compensation structure aligns our compensation with the
achievement of client objectives and with the achievement of both non-financial and financial objectives at the operating unit,
segment and firm levels. This alignment with financial objectives has resulted in the significant decline in incentive compensation
expense for the year.

Including the effects of the non-recurring charges, operating income in 2001 was $13.0 million, as compared to $6.4
million in 2000.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, net of interest income, decreased by $7.0 million, to $20.2 million in 2001, from $27.2 million in 2000. This
decrease in interest expense is the result of lower average borrowings and lower overall interest rates on revolver borrowings,
partially offset by the higher 9% fixed interest rate on the euro 165 million notes, issued July 26, 2000, and the increase in
amortization of debt issuance costs. Cur average debt level for 2001 was $269.4 million, with an effective interest rate of 7.48%,
as compared to $325.6 million, with an effective interest rate of 8.42% for 2000.

Provision for income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $8.0 million in 2001, as compared to a provision of $22.1 million in 2000. The $14.1
million reduction in provision i{s due to the combination of: 1) $18.8 million increased tax benefit in 2001 related to the non-
recurring chargesin 2001 being largely tax deductible, compared to the non-recurring charges in 2000 being largely non-deductible,
2) $1.9 million increase in tax provision related to increased earnings before tax in 2001 compared to 2000, and 3) $2.8 mitlion
due to the 4% increase in effective tax rates on an operational basis, to 42% in 2001 from 38% in 2000.

On an operational basis (excluding non-recurring charges), we achieved a 38% effective tax rate in 2000. As a result of
a shift in income mix such that a greater proportion of our income was earned in jurisdictions with high tax rates, our effective
tax rate on operational activities increased to 42% in 2001. As mentioned above, non-recurring charges were separately tax-effected
based on the projected tax deductibility of these items.

Net Income/Loss

Our 2001 net earnings, excluding non-recurring charges and the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in
2000, were unchanged from 2000 at $40.5 million.

Including the effect of non-recurring charges of $77.2 million, our net loss for 2001 was $15.4 million. Including the
effects of non-recurring charges of $85.8 million and a net charge of $14.2 million for the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle related to the adoption of SAB 101, our net loss for 2000 was $57.1 million.

Business Segments
Owner and Occupier Services

Americas

Revenue for the Americasregion decreased$12.7 million, or 3.7%, to $327.9 million in 2001 from $340.6 million in 2000.
The two main sources of revenue are implementation services and management services. lmplementation services revenue, which
is largely transaction based, declined in 2001 by $28.7 million, or 15.3%, reflecting the overall slowdown in the economy. The
key business units contributing to the decline were the Capital Markets unit, where the volume of completed capital transactions
dropped significantly in 2001, and the Tenant Representation unit, where the economic recession and uncertainty post the tragic
events of September 11 caused our corporate clients to postpone or cancel a number of transactions, particularly in the fourth

quarter. Management services revenue, increased 10.7%, to $165.9 million, largely driven by the Project and Development
Management Services unit.

Operating expenses decreased by $12.6 million, or 4.0%, to $301.6 million in 2001 as a result of cost containment
initiatives and reduced incentive compensation, partially offset by increased headcount and associated expenses, primarily in the
first half of the year, to service new business. Incentive compensation, was $21.2 million below 2000 levels. Included in the 2001
operating expenses is a $3.9 million charge for unrecoverable receivables from technology related clients,
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Europe

Revenue for our Europe region totaled $344.8 million in 2001, as compared to $358.3 million in 2600, a decline of 3.8%.
The European revenues were adversely impacted by approximately $14 million due to a weakening of European currencies,
primarily the euro and pound sterling, against the US dollar during 2001 as compared to 2000. in addition, included in the 2000
revenue are two large capital transactions that provided approximately $12 million in revenue. As the year progressed, it became
clear that after a strong start to the year, the economic slowdown began to impact our Europe business and particularly continental
Europe. Overall, implementation services revenue was down $23.6 million, or 8.5% from 200C. The largest contributors to this
decline were our businesses in England (as a result of the large capital transactions in 2000 noted above), France and Germany.
Management services revenue increased $8.8 million, or 11.0%, led by the continuing growth of our 55% owned joint venture with
Skandia Fastighet AB.

Operating expenses for the region were $302.3 million for 2001, as compared to $316.8 million in 2000, a decline of $14.5
million. The weakening of European currencies, primarily the euro and pound sterling, against the US dollar in 2001 has reduced
US dollar reported expenses by approximately $14 million, as compared to 2000. Operating expenses in 2001 included reduced
incentive compensation (by $14.0 miilion compared to 2000), offset by increased headcount and associated expenses, to service
new business.

Asia Pacific

The difficult underlying economic conditions persisted in this region, impacting even the previously resilient Singapore
economy. Revenue for the Asia Pacific region totaled $129.6 million in 2001, as compared to $135.6 million in 2000, a decline
of 4.4%. The reported revenues were negatively impacted in 2001 by $6 million, as compared to 2000, due to the weakness of
the Australian dollar against the US dollar. Therefore, in local currency terms, revenues were flat year on year. The revenues
reflect a lower volume of transaction activity driven by the economic weakness in the region, particularly in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Australia. Countering the effects of the decline in transactional based implementation services revenue, the management
services revenue increased $6.0 million, or 14.3%. In addition, our Taiwan acquisition in early 2001 contributed $2.3 million in
revenues.

Operating expenses for the region declined by $5.5 million, or 4.1%, to $129.9 million in 2001, as compared to $1354
million in 2000. The weakness of the Australian dollar reduced reported operating expenses in 2001 by $6 million, as compared
to 2000. Incentive compensation was $5.2 million below 2000 levels.

Investment Management

Investment Management revenue decreased $5.7 million, or 5.2%, to $104.3 million in 2001, from $110.0 million in 2000.
Revenues in both years included significant incentive fees. Included in 2000 were incentive fees of $10.3 million related to the
partial liquidation of our French investment fund (recorded as equity earnings due to the incentive fee structure) and $7.5 million
related to our resignation from a client relationship. Revenue for 2001 includes incentive fees and equity earnings of $14.4 million
generated from the disposition of a hotel investment early in the third quarter.

Operating expenses decreased $3.3 million, or 3.8%, to $82.6 million in 2001, as compared to $85.9 million in 2000.
The reduction in expenses is primarily the result of reduced incentive compensation of $7.9 miilion.

Consclidated Cash Flows
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

During 2002, cash flows provided by operating activities totaled $68.4 million compared to $54.1 million in 2001. The
cash flows from operating earnings can be further divided into cash generated from operations of $83.4 million (compared to $73.9
million in 2001) and cash used in balance sheet movements, primarily working capital, of $15.0 million (comparedto $19.8 million
in 2001). The increase in cash flows generated from operations reflects the improved business performance in 2002, together with
the fact that 2001 included significant non-recurring and restructuring charges associated with the realignment of our business. The
reduction in cash flows from changes in working capital of $4.8 million can be attributed to a slowdown in the improvement in
accounts receivable collection as we 1) approach the optimal level of accounts receivable and 2) see difficult economic conditions
resulting in clients seeking to extend payment periods. Offsetting this was a lower level of incentive compensation accrued at
December 31, 2001 and paid in 2002, as compared to the amounts accrued at December 31, 2000 and paid in 2001.
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During 2001, cash flows provided by operating activities totaled $54.1 million compared to cash provided during 2000
of $140.3 million. The cash flows provided by operating earnings can be further divided into cash generated from operations of
$73.9 million (compared to $100.9 million in 2000) and cash used in balance sheet movements (primarily working capital)of $19.8
million (compared to cash generated of $39.4 million in 2000). The decline in cash provided from operations is largely as a result
of a significant portion of the 2001 non-recurring charges being cash related expenses, as opposed to the merger-related non-
recurring stock compensation expense and the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in 2000 being non-cash expenses.
The decline in cash flows from changes in working capital of $59.2 million is because we accrued higher incentive compensation
at December of 2000, which was then paid in 2001, as compared to the amounts we accrued at December of 1999 and paid in 2000.
In addition, we had significantly lower incentive compensation accruals at December of 2001 as compared to December of 2000
which also contributes to the cash used in working capital. Also contributing to the decline in cash flows year over year from
changes in working capital was the U.S. Federal tax refund of $13.5 million that we collected in 2000. Partially offsetting the
decline in cash flows from changes in working capital is the increase in cash provided by receivablesof $9.7 million, which reflects
our continued focus our working capital management.

Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

We used $26.3 million in investing activities in 2002, which was a reduction in cash used of $6.2 million from the $32.5
million used in 2001. This reduction is a combination of reduced investment in fixed assets of $19.0 million, partially offset by
increasing co-investments, where we had an outflow of $9.2 million to our investments in real estate ventures in 2002 versus a net
inflow of $8.7 million in 2001.

We used $32.5 million in investing activities in 2001, which was a reduction in cash used of $34.1 million from the $66.6
million used in 2000. This reduction was the combination of reduced investment in fixed assets of $10.0 million, and $7.9 million
in other investments (primarily e-commerce). In addition, there was a net inflow of $8.7 million from our investments in real estate
ventures in 2001 versus a net outflow of $7.4 million in 2000.

Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

In 2002, $38.8 million was used in financing activities, as debt was paid-down and we repurchased shares of our common
stock, which are now held by a subsidiary. In 2001, $30.0 million was used in financing activities as debt was paid-down and we
repurchased and cancelled shares of our common stock.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have financed our operations, acquisitions and co-investment activities with internally generated funds,
our common stock and borrowings under our credit facilities. During the first half of 2000, our unsecured credit agreement totaled
$425 million, which consisted of a $250 million revolving facility scheduled to mature in October 2002 and a $175 million term
facility that was scheduled to mature on October 15, 2000. On July 26, 2000, we closed our offering of the Euro Notes, which
mature on June 15, 2007, receiving net proceeds of $148.6 million, which were used to pay-down the term facility. On August 29,
2000, the remaining borrowings under the term facility were fully repaid using proceeds from the revolving credit facility, and the
term facility was terminated. Beginning June 15, 2004, the Euro Notes can be redeemed, at our option, at the following redemption
prices: during the twelve-month period commencing June 15, 2004 at 104.50% of principal, during the twelve-month period
commencing June 15, 2005 at 102.25% of principal and commencing June 15, 2006 and thereafter at 100.00% of principal.

On September 21, 2001, we increased our unsecured credit agreement from $250 million to $275 million, reduced the
number of participating banks to eleven from fourteen and extended the maturity date from the original due date of October 2002
to September 2004.

As of December 31, 2002, we have a $275 million revolving credit facility for working capital needs, investments and
acquisitions. We also have outstanding the Euro Notes of euro 165 million and, under the terms of the revolving credit facility,
the authorization to borrow up to $50 million under local facilities. As of December31, 2002, there was $26.1 million outstanding
under the revolving credit facility, euro 165 million (§173.1 million) of borrowings under the Euro Notes and short-term borrowings
of $15.9 million. We would expect borrowing to increase over the first six months as we pay incentive compensation and
associated payroll taxes before reducing over the balance of the year.

33



Jones Lang LaSalle and certain of our subsidiaries guarantee the revolving credit facility and the Euro Notes (the
"Facilities"). In addition, we guarantee the local overdraft facilities of certain subsidiaries. Third-party lenders request these
guarantees to ensure repayment by the Company in the event that one of our subsidiaries fails to repay its borrowing on an
overdraft facility. The guarantees typically have one-year or two-year maturities. We will apply FIN 45 to recognize and measure
the provisions of future guarantees. FIN 45 addresses the recognition and disclosure requirements of guarantor obligations under
guarantees. The guarantees of the revolving credit facility, Euro Notes and local overdraft facilities do not meet the recognition
provisions, but do meet the disclosure requirements of FIN 45. We have local overdraft facilities totalling $33.8 million, of which
$15.4 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2002. We have provided guarantees of $22.3 million related to the local
overdraft facilities, as well as guarantees related to the $275 million revolving credit facility and the euro 165 million Euro Notes,
which in total represent the maximum future payments that jones Lang LaSalle could be required to make under the guarantees
provided for subsidiaries’ third-party debt.

With respect to the revolving credit facility, we must maintain a certain level of consolidated net worth and a ratio of
funded debt to EBITDA. We must also meet a minimum interest coverage ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio. As part of the
global restructuring initiative in 2001, we obtained the approval of our bank group to vary certain of these ratios to reflect the non-
recurring and restructuring charges. We were in compliance with all covenants at December 2002. Additionally, we are restricted
from, among other things, incurring certain levels of indebtedness to lenders outside of the Facilities and disposing of a significant
portion of our assets. Lender approval is required for certain levels of co-investment. The revolving credit facility bears variable
rates of interest based on market rates. We are authorized to use interest rate swaps to convert a portion of the floating rate
indebtedness to a fixed rate, however, none were used during 2002 or 2001 and none were cutstanding as of December 31, 2002.
The effective interest rate on the Facilities was 7.3% in 2002 versus 7.48% in 2001.

We believe that the revolving credit facility, together with the Euro Notes, local borrowing facilities and cash flow
generated from operations will provide adequate liquidity and financial flexibility to meet our needs to fund working capital, capital
expenditures and co-investment activity.

We expect to continue to pursue co-investment opportunities with our investment management clients in the Americas,
Europe and Asia Pacific. Co-investment remains very important to the continued growth of investment Management, which would
likely be negatively impacted if a substantial decrease in co-investment activity were to occur. As of December 31, 2002, we had
total investments and loans of $75.0 million in 19 separate property or fund co-investments, with additional capital commitments
of $130.3 million for future fundings of co-investments. The net co-investment funding for 2003 is anticipated to be approximately
$15 million (planned co-investment less return of capital from liquidated co-investments). With respect to certain co-investment
indebtedness, we also had repayment guarantees outstanding at December 31, 2002 of $4.7 million. The $130.3 million capital
commitment is a commitment to LaSalle Investment Limited Fartnership, referred to as LaSalle Investment Company {"LIC").
We expect that LIC will draw down on our commitment over the next five to seven years as it enters into new commitments. LIC
is a series of four parallel limited partnerships and js intended to be our co-investment vehicle for substantially all new co-
investments. We have an effective 47.85% ownership interest in two of the four LIC entities. Primarily institutional investors,
including a significant shareholder in Jones Lang LaSalle, hold the remaining 52.15% interest in LIC. Qur investment in LIC is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, our
Chairman and another Director of Jones Lang LaSalle are investors in LIC on equivalent terms to other investors. As discussed
more fully in Note 8 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, at December 31, 2002, LIC has unfunded capital commitments
of $55.2 million for future fundings of co-investments. LIC currently has no external debt, but may enter into a revolving credit
facility for its working capital purposes.

On October 30, 2002 we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program. Under the
program, we may repurchase up to one million shares in the open market and in privately negotiated transactions from time to time,
depending upon market prices and other conditions. In the fourth quarter of 2002 we repurchased 300,000 shares at an average price
of $15.56 per share. These shares are held by a subsidiary of Jones Lang LaSalle.

The 2002 share repurchase program replaced a program that was in place in 2001 authorizing purchases of up to $10.0
million. On March 8, 2001, we repurchased and cancelled 473,962 shares of our own common stock at a price of $14.65 per share,
totaling $6.9 million. There were no further purchases in 2001.

Capital expenditures for 2002 were $20.4 million, down $22.2 million from 2001, reflecting our continued focus on

limiting discretionary spending. Capital expenditures are anticipated to be $25 million for 2003, primarily for ongoing
improvements to computer hardware and information systems,
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We have obligations and commitments to make future payments under contracts in the normal course of business, for
example:

° Future minimum lease payments, as follows, due in each of the next five years ended December 31 and thereafter (3 in
thousands):

Operating Capital

L.eases Leases

2003 ... .. $ 45,620 615
2004 ... 42,027 393
2005 . ... . 32,080 357
2006 . ... ... 26,858 204
2007 . ... 21,724 76
Thereafter . ............. 19,255 60
$187.564 1,705

As of December 31, 2002, we have reserves related to excess lease space of $3.9 million, which were established as part
of our restructuring in 2001 and 2002. The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable
operating subleases as of December 31, 2002 was $9.8 million.

. Interest and principal payments on outstanding borrowings against our $275 million revolving credit facility fluctuate based
on our level of borrowing needs. There is no set repayment schedule with respect to the revolving credit facility, however
this facility expires in September 2004. The fixed 9% Eurc Notes have an outstanding principle balance of euro 165
million ($173.1 million as of December 31, 2002), and are due in 2007. Interest payments are due on june 15th and
December 15th of each year.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Information regarding market risk is included in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations under the caption "Market and Other Risk Factors" and is incorporated by reference herein.
Disclosure of Limitations

As the information presented above includes only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2002, it does not consider
those exposures or positions which could arise after that date. The information represented herein has limited predictive value,
As a result, the ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations will depend on the
exposures that arise during the period, the hedging strategies at the time and interest and foreign currency rates.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated Consolidated Financial Statements

Management’s Statement of Responsibility for Financial Information . . ... ......... ... ...

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Auditors’ Report . . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .......

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 . . .. .. ... ...... .. .......

Consolidated Statements of Earnings For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 200! and 2000 . .

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity For the Years Ended December 31,

2002, 2001 and 2000 . ..........

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. ........ .. . . i,

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited) .. ...... ... .. ...... ... ... ... ......

Schedules Supporting the Consolidated Financial Statements:

IT - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is presented in the financial statements and related

notes or is not applicable.
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Management’s Statement of Responsibility for Financial Information

The management of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated and its subsidiaries (Jones Lang LaSalle) has the responsibility for
preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements and for their integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements include
amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and judgments. Management also prepared the other information in the
December 31, 2002 Annual Report filed on Form 10-K and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the financial
statements.

Jones Lang LaSalle’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors elected by the
shareholders. As part of its audit of Jones Lang LaSalle’s financial statements, KPMG LLP considered Jones Lang LaSalle’s
internal control structure in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests to be applied. The opinion of the independent
auditors, based upon their audits of the consolidated financial statements, is contained in this Form 10-K.

Jones Lang LaSalle has established and maintains a system of internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures to
safeguard assets against loss or unauthorized use, to ensure the proper authorization and accounting for all transactions and to ensure
that the information required in periodic reports is identified and reported on a timely basis. These systems include appropriate
reviews by Jones Lang LaSalle’s Internal Audit Group and management as well as written policies and procedures that are
communicated to employees with significant roles in the financial reporting process and updated as necessary. The Internal Audit
Group is assisted by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that both management and the
independent auditors fulfill their respective responsibilities with regard to the financial statements. The Audit Committee, composed
entirely of independent directors, meets periodically with both management and the independent auditors to assure that each is
carrying out its responsibilities. The independent auditors and Jones Lang LaSalle’s Internal Audit Group have full and free access
to the Audit Committee and meet with it, with and without management present, to discuss matters including auditing, financial
reporting and internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures.

Management also recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that Jones Lang LaSalle’s affairs
are conducted according to high standards of conduct. This responsibility is characterized and reflected in Jones Lang LaSalle’s
Code of Business Ethics, which is publicized throughout Jones Lang LaSalle and on its public website. The Code of Business
Ethics addresses, among other things, avoidance of potential conflicts of interest, protecting company assets, compliance with
domestic and foreign laws, including those relating to financial disclosure and reporting violations or possible violations.

Stuart L. Scott Christopher A. Peacock

Chairman of the Board of Directors President and Chief Executive Officer

Lauralee E. Martin Nicholas §, Willmott

Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President and Global Controller

Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated and subsidiaries as listed
in the accompanying index. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the
financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 15 and 17 to the financial statements, Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated and subsidiaries changed their method
of accounting for goodwill and intangible assets in 2002 and changed their method of accounting for certain lease commission
revenue in 2000.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, llinois
January 31, 2003,
except as to note 19
which is as of February 13, 2003
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2002 and 2001

($ in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . ........ ... ... . . . . . i

Trade receivables, net of allowances of $4,992 and $5,887 in 2002 and 2001,

TSP PECtIVElY . L e
Notes receivable . . ... . e e e e e
Other receivables . ... i i e e e e e e e
Prepaid eXPenses . . . . . . .. e
Deferred taxX @5Se18 . . . . . ittt e e
(1= - To3- =1 - J O

Total CUMTENt 8881 . . . o vt it et e et e e e e e

Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation of

$116,214 and $102,401 in 2002 and 2001, respectively . ........... ... ... . ....

Goodwill, with indefinite useful lives, at cost, less accumulated

amortization of $36,398 and $35,327 in 2002 and 2001, respectively ............

Negative goodwill, at cost, less accumulated amortization of ($565) in 2001
Identified intangibles, with definite useful lives, at cost, less accumulated

amortization of $28,928 and $23,195 in 2002 and 2001, respectively ............

Investments in and loans to real estate ventures
Long-term receivables, net
Prepaid pension asset
Deferred tax assets
Debt issuance costs
Other assets, net

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .......... ... .. .. ... . . ...
Accrued compensation . . . ... ... e
Short-term borrowings . . .. .. ..
Deferred tax liabilities .. ... ... .. .. .
Other liabilities . ... .. ... e

Total current liabilities .. ......... ... . . i e

Long-term liabilities:

Credit facilities . . . . . . . e e e
9% Senior Euro Notes, due 2007 . . ... ..
Deferred tax liabilities . . ... . . . i i e e e e
Other . o e e

Total Habilities . . .. . ... e

Commiiments and contingencies
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized,;
30,896,333 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2002; 30,183,450

shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,2001 ....................
Additional paid-in capital . . ... .. ...
Deferred stock cOompensation . .. ... ..t e
Retained deficit . . ... ... ... .. . e e
Stock held by subsidiary .. ... .. .
Stock held intrust . ... .. ... . . e
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . ...... ... ... ... . ... ..
Total stockholders’ equity . ...... .. ... ... .. . . . ..

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2002

$ 13,654

227,579
4,165
7,623

15,142
27,382
10,760
306,305

81,652

315,477

18,344
74,994
15,248
9,646
18,839
4,343

7.668

5852516

$ 92,389
139,513
15,863
20

21,411

269,196

26,077
173,068
146

17,071

485,558

309
494,283
(17,321)
(95,411)

(4,659)
(460)

(9,783)
366,958
$852.516

2001

10,446

222,590
3,847
8,872

11,802
16,935

11,340

285,832

92,503

305,688
(846)

23,327
64,528
10,427
14,384
25,770

5,407

8,707

835,127

104,568
144,080
15,497

23

— 23467
287,635

60,621
146,768
6,567

18.966

520,557

789

302
463,926
(6,038)
(122,521)
(1,658)
(19.630)
314,381
835,727



JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2060
(8 in thousands, except share data)

2002 2501 2000

Revenue: -
Fee based services 831,096 889,633 920,660
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated ventures 2,581 8,560 16,693
Other income ‘ 6,752 7.256 5,171
Total revenue 840,429 905,449 942,524

Operating expenses:
Compensation and benefits, excluding non-recurring and restructuring ‘
charges e e e e e 530,527 545,609 581,322
Operating, administrative and other, excluding non-recurring and
restructuring charges 203,211 222,229 225,878
Depreciation and amortization 37,125 47,420 43,126
Non-recurring and restructuring charges:
Compensation and benefits 11,438 40,120 85,795
Operating, administrative and other 3.433 37.112 -
Total operating expenses 785,734 892,490 936,121

Operating income 54,695 12,959 ‘ 6,403

Interest expense, net of interest income 17.024 20,156 - 27.182

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and minority interest . . 37,671 (7,197) (20,779
Net provision for income taxes 11,037 7,986 22,053
Minority interest in earnings (losses) of subsidiaries 711 228 (21)

Net income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle .. ........... ... ........ .... 25,923 (15,411 T (42,81))
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of minority interest, net of tax . ... 341 -- --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ............... 846 -~ (14,249
Net income (l0SS) . . ...ttt e $§ 27110 (15.411) {57.060)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments . ...................... $ 9,847 (2,.218) (18,509)

Comprehensive income (loss) .................... ... ... $ 36957 (17.629) {75,569)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share before extraordinary item

and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. .......... $ 0.85 (0.51} (1.72)
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of minority interest, net of tax .. .. $ 0.01 -- --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... ............. $ 0.03 -- (0.58)
Basic earnings (loss) per commonshare . ....................... $ 0.89 {0.51) (2.30)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding . . ... ... ............... 30.486.842 30,016,122 24,851,823

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share before extraordinary item

and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........... $ 0.81 (0.51) (1.72)
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of ,
0.01 - --

minority interest, netof tax . ..., .. ... ... .. $
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ... ............ $ 0.03 -- (0.58)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share ....................... $ 0.85 (0.51) (2.30)
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ..................... 31,854,397 30,016,122 24,851,823

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(% in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash flows from earnings:
Net income (1058) . . oo vt
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided by earnings:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ..............
Minority interest . ... . ... ..
Depreciation and amortization . ... .. ......... ... ... . ... ...
Equity in earnings and gain on sale from unconsolidated ventures . .. . ..
Operating distributions from real estate ventures . . . ...............
Provision for loss on receivables and otherassets . ............ ...
Stock compensation eXpense . ........... .. ... ...
Amortization of deferred compensation . . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ..
Amortization of debt issuancecosts . ... .......... ... . ... ... ..
Net cash provided by earnings . . . .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ..

Cash flows from changes in working capital:
Receivables . . .. ... . .
Prepaid expenses and other assets . .. ... . ... .. .. ... ...,
Deferred tax assets and income tax refund receivable ... ...........
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued compensation .. ... ..
Net cash flows from changes in working capital . .. .. ........ ..
Net cash provided by operating activities .. .................

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Net capital additions--property and equipment . ..................
Other acquisitions and investments, net of cash acquired and
transaction COSES . . . . . .. e e
Investments in real estate ventures:
Capital contributions and advances to real estate ventures . ... ......
Distributions, repayments of advances and sale of investments .. ... ..
Net cash used in investing activities . .....................

Cash flows used in financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings under credit facilities . .. .......... ... ..

Repayments of borrowings under credit facilities .................

Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net of financing costs . . .. .... ... ..

Shares repurchased for payment of taxes on stock awards . . . . ... ... ..

Shares repurchased under share repurchase program ...............

Common stock issued under stock option plan and stock purchase programs
Net cash used in financing activities. .. .............. .. ....

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ............
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 .. ....... ... .. ... ..........

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 ... ...... .. ... ...........

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
IMterest . L e e

2002 2001 2000
§ 27,110 (15,411) (57,060)
(846) - 14,249
711 228 @n
37,125 47,420 43,126
(2,581) (8,560) (16,693)
4,981 10,654 18,126
3,529 30,318 5,464
139 36 85,795
11,931 7,990 6,474
1,303 1,224 1,444
83,402 73,899 100,904
(9,142) 19,184 9,548
4,196 (3.098) (7,305)
(9,467) (8,385) 7,991
(620) (27,497) 29,202
(15,033) (19,796) 39.436
68,369 54,103 140,340
(16,790) (35.792) (45,804)
(287) (5.413) (13,333)
(30,010) (16,367) (15.214)
20,747 25,023 7,761
(26,340) (32,549) (66,590)
414,223 340,635 262,581
(448.,461) (361,723) (490,566)
. - 148,596
(4,052) (4,118) (816)
(4,659) (6,942) -
4,128 2,197 1,990
(33.821) (29.951) (78,215)
3,208 (8,397) (4,465)
10,446 18,843 23.308

$ 13654 10,446 18,843
$ 19,705 21,140 28,548
14,144 23,647 5,620

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except where otherwise noted)

() Organization

Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated ("Jones Lang LaSalle” which may be referred to as we, us, our or the Company), was
incorporated in 1997, and its operations presently include the businesses previously known as LaSalle Partners (founded in 1968)
and Jones Lang Wootton (founded in 1873). We are a leading provider of integrated real estate services and solutions to real estate

owners, occupiers and investors around the world. We serve our client’s real estate needs Jocally, regionally and globally from
offices in over 100 markets in 34 countries on five continents, with approximately 16,900 employees including approximately 9,800
directly reimbursable property maintenance employees. Our breadth of services include space acquisition and disposition, facilities
and property management, project and development services, leasing, buying and selling properties, consulting and capital markets
expertise. We also provide investment managementon a global basis for both public and private assets through LaSalle Investment
Management, our investment management business. Our services are enhanced by our strong research capabilities, our technology
platforms and our strategic sclutions approach with our clients. The ability to provide this network of services around the globe
was solidified effective March 11, 1999 with the merger of the business of the Jones Lang Wootton companies ("JLW") with those
of LaSalle Partners Incorporated ("LaSalle Partners"). In connection with this merger, the name of the company was changed from
LaSalle Partners Incorporated to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated (see Note 3).

@) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Our financial statements include the accounts of Jones Lang LaSalle and its majority-owned-and-controlled subsidiaries.
All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
over which we exercise significant influence, but not control, are accounted for by the equity method. Under this method we
maintain an investment account, which is increased by contributions made and our share of net income of the unconsolidated
affiliates, and decreased by distributions received and our share of net losses of the unconsolidated affiliates. Our share of each
unconsolidated affiliate’s net income or loss, including gains and losses from capital transactions, is reflected in our statement of
earnings as "equity in earnings from unconsolidated ventures." Investments in unconsolidated affiliates over which we are not able
to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the cost method. Under the cost method our investment account is
increased by contributions made and decreasedby distributions representing return of capital. Distributions of income are reflected
in our statement of earnings as in “equity in eamnings from unconsolidated ventures."

Revenue Recognition

We recognize advisory and management fees in the period in which we perform the service. Transaction commissions are
recognized as income when we provide the service unless future contingencies exist. If future contingencies exist, we defer
recognition of this revenue until the respective contingencies are satisfied. Development management fees are generally recognized
as billed, which we believe approximates the percentage of completion method of accounting. Incentive fees are generally tied
to some form of contractual milestone and are recorded in accordance with the specific tetms of the underlying compensation
agreement. The Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements,” provides guidance on the application of generally accepted accounting principles to selected revenue
recognition issues. We believe that our revenue recognition policy is appropriate and in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and SAB No. 101. We implemented SAB No. 101 in 2000 as discussed more
fully in Note 17. Pursuant to contractual arrangements, accounts receivable includes unbilled amounts of $56.9 million and $50.4
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In certain of our businesses, primarily those involving management services, we are reimbursed by our clients for expenses
that are incurred on their behalf. The treatment of reimbursable expenses for financial reporting purposes is based upon the fee
structure of the underlying contracts. A contract that provides a fixed fee/billing, fully inclusive of all personne! or other
recoverable expenses that we incur, and not separately scheduled as such, is reported on a gross basis. This means that our reported
revenues include the full billing to our client and our reported expenses include all costs associated with the client. When the fee
structure is comprised of at least two distinct elements: the fixed management fee and a separate component which allows for
scheduled reimbursable personnel or other expenses to be billed directly to the client, we will account for the contract on a net
basis. This means we include the fixed management fee in reported revenues and we net the reimbursement against the expenses.
This characterizationis based on the following factors: (i) the property owner generally has authority over hiring practices and the
approval of payroll prior to payment by Jones Lang LaSalle; (ii} Jones Lang LaSalle is the primary obligor with respect to the
property personnel, but bears little or no credit risk under the terms of the management contract; (iii) reimbursement to Jones Lang
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LaSalle is generally completed simultaneously with payment of payroll or soon thereafter; and (iv) Jones Lang LaSalle generally
earns no margin in the arrangement, obtaining reimbursement only for actual cost incurred. The majority of our service contracts
utilize the latter structure and are accounted for on a net basis. We have always presented the above reimbursable contract costs
on a net basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such costs aggregated
approximately $360 million in 2002. Prior year comparative information is not available given that it was necessary to reconfigure
our reporting systems in 2002 as our global systems did not separate these costs.

Accounts Receivablie

We estimate the allowance necessary to provide for uncollectible accounts receivable. The estimate includes specific
accounts for which payment has become unlikely. This estimate is also based on historical experience combined with a careful
review of current developments and with a strong focus on credit quality. A detailed discussion of the calculation can be found
in the Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations. '

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We apply Statement No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," ("SFAS 144") to
recognize and measure impairment of long-lived assets. SFAS 144 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets by requiring that those long-lived assets to be held and used be measured at the lower
of carrying costs or their fair value, and by requiring that those long-lived assets to be held for sale to be measured at the lower
of carrying costs or their fair value less costs to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued operations. We
adopted SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002. The effect of implementing SFAS 144 did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements. ' ’

We review long-lived assets, including investments in real estate ventures, intangibles and property and equipment for
impairment on an annual basis, or whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset group may not be
recoverable. The review of recoverability is based on an estimate of the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset group. If impairment exists due to the.inability to recover the carrying value of an asset group, an impairment loss
is recorded to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value.

During 2001, we reviewed our e-commerce investments on an investment by investment basis, evaluating actual business
performance against original expectations, projected future performance and associated cash flows, and capital needs and
availability. As a result of this evaluation we determined that our investments in e-commerce were impaired and fully wrote down
these investments by the end of 2001 as part of our non-recurring charges. It is currently our policy to expense any additional
investments, primarily contractual commitments to fund operating expenses of existing investments, that are made into these
ventures in the period they are made. These charges are recorded as ordinary recurring charges. In 2002 we expensed a total of
$287,000 of such investments.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected fo be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that includes the enactment date.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

On January 1, 2001 we adopted Statement No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative [nstruments and Hedging Activities,"
("SFAS 133") as amended by Statement No. 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities."
SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments. Specifically, SFAS 133 requires
an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and to measure the instruments
at fair value. Additionally, the fair value adjustments will affect either stockholders’ equity or net income depending on whether
the derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for accounting purposes and, if so, the nature of the hedging activity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In the normal course of business, we use derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currencyrisk. At December 31,
2002, we had forward exchange contracts in effect with a gross notional value of $143.1 million ($82.1 million on a net basis) and
a market and carrying gain of $3.1 million. In the past we have used interest rate swap agreements to limit the impact of changes
in interest rates on earnings and cash flows. We did not enter into any interest rate swap agreements during 2002 or 2001, and there
were no such agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2002.

We require that hedging derivative instruments be effective in reducing the exposure that they are designated to hedge.
This effectivenessis essential to qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Any derivative instrument used for risk management that

does not meet the hedging criteria is marked-to-market each period with changes in unrealized gains or losses recognized currently
in earnings.

As a firm, we do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. We hedge any foreign
exchange risk resulting from intercompany loans through the use of foreign currency forward contracts. SFAS 133 requires that
unrealized gains and losses on these derivatives be recognized currently in earnings. The gain or loss on the re-measurement of
the foreign currency transactions being hedged is also recognized in earnings. The net impact on our earnings during 2002 and 2001
of the unrealized gain on foreign currency contracts, offset by the loss resulting from re-measurement of foreign currency
transactions, was not significant.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and contingencies related to lawsuits, taxes and environmental matters as well as
commitments under contractual obiigations. We recognize the liability associated with commitments and contingencies when a loss
is probable and estimable. Our contractual obligations relate to the provision of services by us in the normal course of our business.

Accounting for Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We have historically grown through a series of acquisitions and one substantial merger. As a result of this activity, and
consistent with the services nature of our businesses we acquired, the largest assets on our balance sheet are intangibles resulting
from business acquisitions and the JLW merger. Historically we have amortized these intangibles over their estimated useful lives
(generally eight to forty years). Beginning January 1, 2002, pursuant to the issuance of Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” ("SFAS 142"), we have ceased the amortization of intangibles with indefinite useful lives, which have a net
book value of $315.5 million at December 31, 2002. This has reduced our annual amortization expense by $9.6 million. We will
continue to amortize intangibles with definite useful lives, which primarily represent the value placed on management contracts
that are acquired as part of our acquisition of a company.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS 142 required us to perform an assessment of
whether there was an indication that goodwill was impaired as of the date of adoption. To accomplish this evaluation, we
determined the carrying value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and
intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption. For purposes of this exercise, we defined reporting units based
on how the Chief Operating Decision Makers for each segment looked at their segments when determining strategic business
decisions. The following reporting units were determined: Investment Management, Americas QOS, Australia QOS, Asia QOS,
and by country in Europe OOS. We have determined the fair value of each reporting unit on the basis of a discounted cash flow
methodology and compared it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. In all cases, the fair value of each reporting unit exceeded
its carrying amount, and therefore no impairment loss has been recognized on our goodwill,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. For further discussion of accounting estimates please
refer to the Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash Held for Others

We control certain cash and cash equivalents as agents for our investment and property management clients. Such amounts
are not included in our consolidated financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and investments in United States Treasury instruments (generally held
as available for sale) with maturities of three months or less. The combined carrying value of such investments of $5.3 million and
$1.5 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, approximates their market value.

The effects of foreign currency translation on cash balances are reflected in cash flows from operating activities on the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Investments in Real Estate Ventures and Other Corporations

We have non-controlling ownership interests in various real estate ventures with interests generally ranging from less than
1% to 47.85%, which are generally accounted for using the equity method of accounting. These investments are discussed further
in Note 8.

We have made investments in certain high technology and e-commerce related private corporations whose operations are
connected to the real estate industry. These investments are for less than 20% of the voting stock of the corporations and we are
not able to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of these corporations. Such investments are
accounted for under the cost method. In 2001, we determined that these investments were impaired and recorded $18.0 million of
non-recurring expense. These impairments are discussed further in Note 6.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are capitalized and amortized over the periods to which the
underlying debt is outstanding. Amortization expense related to debt issuance costs, included as interest expense, was $1.3 million,
$1.2 million and $1.4 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable, notes payable and foreign
currency exchange contracts. The estimated fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximates their
carrying amounts due to the short maturity of these instruments. The estimated fair value of our revolving credit facility and short-
term borrowings approximates their carrying value due to their variable interest rate terms. The fair value of the Senior Euro Notes
was euro 168.3 million, or $176.5 million which was the mid-market value as of December 31, 2002. The fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts is estimated by valuing the net position of the contracts using the applicable spot rates and forward rates
as of the reporting date.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of our subsidiaries located outside the United States, except those subsidiaries located in highly
inflationary economies, are measured using the local currency as the functional currency. The assets and liabilities of these
subsidiaries are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date with the resulting translation adjustments included in
the balance sheet as a separate component of stockholders’ equity (accumulated other comprehensive income) and in the statement
of earnings (other comprehensive income - foreign currency translation adjustments). Income and expenses are translated at the
average monthly rates of exchange. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in net earnings. For
subsidiaries operating in highly inflationary economies, the associated gains and losses from balance sheet translation adjustments
are included in net earnings.
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Earnings Per Share

The basic income per common share for the year ended December 31,2002 was calculated based on basic weighted average
shares outstanding of 30,486,842. Diluted income per common share for the year ended December 31, 2002 was calculated based
on diluted weighted average shares outstanding of 31,854,397. The following table details the calculation of diluted average shares

outstanding:
2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss) $ 27,110 (15,411 {57,060)
Basic weighted average shares

outstanding ..................... 30,486,842 30.016.122 24.851,823
Basic earnings (loss) per common share . . . $ 0.89 (0.51) 2.30)

Diluted net income (loss) $ 27,110 (15411) (57,060)

Basic weighted average shares outstanding . 30,486,842 30,016,122 24,851,823
Dilutive impact of common stock equivalents:

Cutstanding stock options 354,125

Unvested stock compensation programs . . _1,013.430

Dilutive weighted average shares
‘outstanding 31,854,397 30,016,122 24,851,823

Dilutive earnings (loss) per common share . $ 0.85 (0.51) 2.30

The basic and diluted losses per common share for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were calculated based
on basic weighted average shares outstanding of 30,016,122 and 24,851,823, respectively. The increase in shares outstanding from
2000 to 2001 was primarily the result of the expiration of certain vesting conditions on 5.2 million of the shares issued in
connection with the JLW merger. As a result of the net loss incurred in these periods, diluted weighted average shares outstanding
for the years ended December31, 2001 and 2000 do not give effect to common stock equivalents as to do so would be anti-dilutive.
These common stock equivalents consist primarily of shares to be issued under employee stock compensation programs and
outstanding stock options whose exercise price was less than the average market price of our stock during these periods.

Depreciation

v Depreciatioﬁ and amortization is calculated for financial reporting purposes primarily using the straight-line method based
on the estimated useful lives of our assets. The following table shows the gross value of each asset category at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively, as well as the standard depreciable life for each asset category (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, Depreciable
Category 2002 2001 A Life
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ....... $ 362 $ 402 7 years
Computer equipment and software . . . . . .. 114.9 108.6 2 to 7 years
Leasehold improvements . ............ 36.5 33.8 1 to 10 years
Automobiles .. ................... 9.5 11.4 3 to 6 years

Stock-Based Compensation

We grant stock options for a fixed number of shares to employees with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the
shares at the date of grant. We follow Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees," in accounting for stock-based compensation, and accordingly, recognize no compensation expense for stock option
grants, but provide pro forma disclosures required by Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” ("SFAS
123"), as amended by Statement No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure, an amendment
of FASB Statement No. 123."
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We have also established stock compensation programs for certain of our employees pursuant to which they are awarded
Jones Lang LaSalle common stock if they are employed at the end of the vesting period. These stock compensation programs meet
the definition of fixed awards as defined in SFAS 123, as amended, and therefore, we recognize compensation expense, based on
the market value of awards on the grant date, over the vesting period.

See Note 13 for additional information on stock-based compensation.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current presentation. In 2001 and 2000, Strategic
Consulting ("SCON"), a globally allocated department, recorded its revenue as a reduction to expense. Beginning in 2002, this
revenue is recorded as part of revenue. The SCON revenue for 2001 and 2000 has been reclassified for comparability. The impact
of the reclassification of 2001 and 2000 revenue related to SCON was to increase revenues and operating expenses by $10.4 and
$9.2 for the years ending December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Beginning in December2002, pursuant to the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 01-14, "Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for "Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred”, we have reclassified reimbursements
received for out-of-pocket expenses to revenues in the income statement, as opposed to being shown as a reduction of expenses.
These out-of-pocket expenses amounted to $2.9 million, $4.0 million and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Beginning in December 2002, we have reclassified as revenue our recovery of indirect costs related to our management
services business, as opposed to being classified as a reduction of expenses in the income statement. This recovery of indirect costs
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled $9.7 million, $9.3 million and $7.3 million, respectively.

Beginning in September 2002, we aggregated our loans to co-investments with our investments in co-investments. The
co-investment loans of $7.6 million in the December 31, 2001 balance sheet have been reclassified to conform with this new
presentation.

New Accounting Standards
Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations," ("SFAS 143™) which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the asset.

SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which
it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of
the associated asset and this additional carrying amount is depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability is accreted at the end
of each period through charges to operatmg expense. [f the obligation is settled for other than the carrying amount of the liability,
the Company will recognize a gain or loss on settlement.

The Company is required, and plans to adopt, the provisions of SFAS 143 for the quarter ending March 31, 2003. We
have not yet fully assessed the impact of SFAS 143 on our consolidated financial statements, but do not anticipate it to be material.

Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities,” ("SFAS 146") which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).”

SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability

is incurred rather than when a company commits to such an activity and also establishes fair value as the objective for initial
measurement of the liability.
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SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. If SFAS 146 had been
effective in 2002, we would have been unable to recognize approximately $300,000 of excess lease costs taken as part of the 2002
restructuring charge. The adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Accounting and Disclosure by Guarantors

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Cthers," ("FIN 45") which addresses
the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under guarantees. FIN
45 also requires the recognition of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees.

FIN 45 requires the guarantor to recognize a liability for the non-contingent component of the guarantee; this is the
obligation to stand ready to perform in the event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. The initial measurement of
this liability is the fair value of the guarantee at inception. The recognition of the liability is required even if it is not probable that
payments will be required under the guarantee or if the guarantee was issued with a premium payment or as part of a transaction
with multiple elements.

The Company has adopted FIN 45 and has provided the disclosure requirements and will apply the recognition and
measurement provisions for all guarantees entered into or modified after December 31, 2002. To date the Company has not entered
into or modified guarantees pursuant to the recognition provisions of FIN 45. Guarantees covered by the disclosure provisions of
FIN 45 are discussed in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Notes 8, 9 and 16 to Notes to Consolidated Financia} Statements.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure

In December 2002, The FASB issued Statement No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and
Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123" ("SFAS 148"). This statement amends FASB Statement No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS 123™), to provide alternative methods of transition for a veluntary change
to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation, In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements. Certain of the
disclosure modifications are required for fiscal years ending afier December 15, 2002 and are included in Note 13 to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consclidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, "Censolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of
ARB No. 51" ("FIN 46"). FIN 46 addresses the consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities as defined. FIN
46 applies immediately to variable interests in variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. For public enterprises with
a variable interest entity created before February 1, 2003, FIN 46 applies to that enterprise no later than the beginning of the first
interim or annual reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46 is not expected to have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

3) Acquisition and Merger
Jones Lang LaSalle Asset Management Services Acquisition

In December 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle acquired the 45% minority interest in the joint venture company Jones Lang
LaSalle Asset Management Services, which, since 2000 has exclusively provided Asset Management services for all Skandia Life
properties in Sweden. The purchase price of the minority interest was approximately $1 million, a discount to the fair value of
the net assets acquired. As a result, we have recorded an after-tax gain of $341,000 as an extraordinary item in 2002.

Jones Lang Wootton Merger

On March 11, 1999, LaSalle Partners merged its business with that of JLW and changed its name to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated. In accordance with the purchase and sale agreements, we issued 14.3 million shares of our common stock on March
11, 1999, plus $6.2 million in cash (collectively, the "Consideration") in connection with the acquisition of the property and asset
management, advisory and other real estate businesses operated by a series of JLW partnerships and corporations in Europe, Asia,
Australia, North America and New Zealand. Approximately 12.5 million of the shares were issued to former JLW equity owners
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(having both direct and indirect ownership) and 1.8 million of the shares were placed in an employee stock ownership trust
("ESOT") to be distributed by December 31, 2000 to selected employees of the former JLW entities. Included in the total ESOT
shares are 900,000 shares that were allocated on March 11, 1999 and 200,000 that were allocated on December 31, 1999, with the
remaining 700,000 shares allocated by December31, 2000. Issuance of the shares was not registered under the U.S. securities laws,
and the shares were generally subject to a contractual one-year restriction on sale.

Included in the 14.3 million shares originally issued were 1.2 million shares which were subject to a post-closing net worth
adjustment. The procedures related to the post-closing net worth calculation were completed during the third quarter of 1999 and
resulted in 500,000 shares being retained by us and an additional $500,000 in cash consideration being due to certain of the former
JLW owners.

The transaction, which was principally structured as a share exchange, has been treated as a purchase and is being
accounted for using both APB Opinion No. 16, "Business Combinations” and APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” as reflected in the following table. Accordingly, JLW’s operating results have been included in our results as of
March 1, 1999, the effective date of the merger for accounting purposes.

Accounting Method No. of % of Shares
{shares in millions}) Shares Issued
APB Opinion No. 16 7.2 52%
APB Opinion No. 25 -
Fixed Award 5.3 38%
Variable Award _1.3 _10%
Net Shares Issued 13.8 100%

As noted in the previous table, 7.2 million shares, or 52% of the shares issued, were subject to accounting under APB
Opinion No. 16. The value of those shares totaled $141.8 million for accounting purposes based on the five-day average closing
stock price surrounding the date the financial terms of the merger with JLW were substantially complete, discounted at a rate of
20% for transferability restrictions. The value of the shares, in addition to a cash payment of approximately $6.2 million and
capitalizable transaction costs of approximately $15.8 million were allocated to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, based on our estimate of fair value, which totaled $247.5 million and $245.9 million, respectively. Included in the assets
acquired was $32.2 million in cash. Included in the liabilities assumed was $47.4 million of obligations to former partners for
undistributed earnings, all of which was paid by December 31, 2000. The resulting excess purchase price of $162.2 million was
allocated to goodwill which was being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years based on our estimate of useful lives. As
discussed in Note 2, as a result of the adoption of SFAS 142, effective January 1, 2002, we have ceased amortization of the net
carrying value of this goodwill.

The remaining 6.6 million shares, or 48% of the shares issued, and $500,000 in cash paid are subject to accounting under
APB Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, shares issued were accounted for as compensation expense or deferred compensation expense
to the extent they were subject to forfeiture or vesting provisions. Included in the 6.6 million shares were 1.3 million shares that
were subject to variable stock award plan accounting. The remaining 5.3 million shares and the $500,000 in cash paid were subject
to fixed stock award plan accounting. As of December 31, 2000, all compensation expense related to these shares has been
recognized, therefore, there is no such expense after December 31, 2000. Compensation expense related to these shares for the
year ended December 31, 2000 totaled $85.8 million.

C)] Disposition

Effective December 31, 1996, we sold our Construction Management business and certain related assets to a former
member of management for a $9.1 million note. The note, which is secured by the current and future assets of the business, is
due December 31, 2006 and bears interest at rates of 6.8% to 10.0%, with interest payments due annually. Annual principal

repayments began in January 1998. The outstanding balance of this loan as of December 31, 2002 is $5.3 miilion. The payments
due under the terms of this note are current.

As of December 31, 1999, we had received substantial principal payments on the note receivable and were no longer
obligated to provide financial assistance to the Construction Management business under the Asset Purchase Agreement.

Accordingly, we recognized the disposition as a divestiture at December 31, 1999 with a resulting gain of $7.5 million in the 1999
Consolidated Statement of Earnings.
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Under the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, Jones Lang LaSalle has the option to repurchase up to 49.9% of the
ownership in the Construction Management business on the earlier of the December 31, 2006 or the prepayment of the note
receivable. The choice to exercise the repurchase option belongs solely to Jones Lang LaSalle.

(5) Share Repurchase

On October 30, 2002 we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program. Under the
program, we may repurchase up to one million shares in the open market and in privately negotiated transactions from time to time,
depending upon market prices and other conditions. In the fourth quarter of 2002 we repurchased 300,000 shares at an average price
of $15.56 per share. These shares are held by a subsidiary of Jones Lang LaSalle.

. The 2002 share repurchase program replaces a program that was in place in 2001 authorizing purchases of up to $10.0
million. On March 8, 2001, we repurchased and cancelled 473,962 shares of our own common stock at a price of $14.65 per share,
totaling $6.9 million. There were no further purchases in 2001.

(6) Non-Recurring and Restructuring Charges

For the years ended December31, 2002 and 2001, non-recurring and restructuring charges totaled $14.9 million and $77.2
million, respectively. These charges and associated tax benefits are made up of the following:

2002 2001

Non-Recurring & Restructuring Charges
Impairment of E-commerce Investments $(0.3) 18.0

- 1.9

2001 Global Restructuring Program:
Compensation & Benefits . ... ... ... ... ... .. .......... (1.3) 40.1
Operating, Administrative & Other ... ................... 0.1

2002 Global Restructuring Program:

Compensation & Benefits .. ......... ... ... ... ......... 12.7 --
Operating, Administrative & Other . ..................... 0.7 --
Total Non-Recurring & Restructuring Charges .. ............. 3149 77.2
Net tax bernefit for current year charges ... ................. $50 213
Net tax benefit for prior yearcharges . . .................... 1.8 --

$68 21.3

E-Commerce Investment Impairment

Non-recurring charges in 2001 include the write-down of our investments in e-commerce ventures, In 2001, we reviewed
our e-commerce investments on an investment-by-investment basis, evaluating actual business performance against original
expectations, projected future cash flows, and capital needs and availability. By the end of 2001, we had written down all of our
investments in e-commerce ventures. It is currently our policy to expense any additional investments, primarily contractual
commitments to fund operating expenses of existing investments, which are made into these ventures in the period they are funded.
These charges are recorded as ordinary recurring charges. In 2002, we expensed $287,000 of such investments. Also in 2002,
$276,000 related to an e-commerce venture written-off in 2001 was recovered and recorded as a credit to non-recurring expense.

Imselvent Insurance Providers

The non-recurring charges for the full year of 2001 included $1.9 million against our exposure to insolvent insurance
providers, of which $1.6 million related to approximately 30 claims that were covered by an Australian insurance provider, HIH
Insurance Limited ("HIH"). At December 31, 2002 $1.1 million remained to pay claims related to HIH. We believe this reserve
is adequate to cover the remaining claims and expenses to be paid as a result of the HIH insolvency although there remains a risk
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given the nature of the underlying claims that this reserve may not be adequate. In addition there was one large, complex claim,
with multiple defendants and plaintiffs, which we believed was covered by another class of insurance, and therefore, no reserve
was established for this claim. We settled this claim at no cost to us in the third quarter of 2002,

Land Investment and Development Group Impairment

As part of the broad based business restructuring in the second half of 2001, we closed the non-strategic residential land
investment business in the Americas region of the Investment Management segment. Included in non-recurring expense in 2001
was an impairment provision of $3.5 million against the carrying value of certain residential land co-investments. We had
determined that we would not fund these investments beyond our contractual commitments and would seek to manage an exit from
this portfolio. In 2002 we took additional impairment charges of $2.8 million to fully write-down an additional two of these co-
investments as a result of adverse performance expectation developments in 2002. This charge is included in non-recurring expense.
Any future impairment charges or gains or losses on disposal relating to the Land Investment Group will be included in non-
recurring charges. Included in investments in real estate ventures as of December 31, 2002 is the book value of the five remaining
Land Investment Group investments of $2.1 million. Three of these investments have been fully written down. We have provided
guarantees associated with this investment portfolio of $1.2 million, which we currently do not expect to be required to fund. We
currently expect to have liquidated the Land Investment Group investments by the end of 2006.

Additionally, as part of the 2001 restructuring program, we disposed of our Americas Development Group, retaining an
interest in certain investments originated by this group with the intention of liquidating them by the end of 2003. In 2002 we have
recorded a net gain of $675,000 as a result of the disposal of three of these investments, an impairment charge of $472,000 relating
to two properties that were subsequently sold and equity losses of $404,000. The net gain and expenses have been recorded in non-
recurring expense in 2002. Any future impairment charges or gains or losses on disposal relating to the Development Group will
be included in non-recurring expenses. Included in investment in real estate ventures as of December 31, 2002 is the book value
of the one remaining investment project of $893,000. We currently expect to have liquidated this investment by the end of 2003.

Business Restructuring

Business restructuring charges include severance and professional fees associated with the realignment of our business.
In 2001, the Asia Pacific business underwent a realignment from a traditional geographic structure to one that is managed according
to business lines. In addition, in the second half of 2001 we implemented a broad based restructuring of our business that reduced
headcount by approximately 9%. The total charge for the full year of 2001 for estimated severance and related costs was $43.9
million. Included in the $43.9 million was $40.0 million of severance costs and approximately $3.0 million of professional fees.
The balance of $900,000 included relocation and other severance related expenses. Of these estimated costs, $40.0 million had been
paid at December 31, 2002, with a further $2.6 million to be paid over the balance of 2003. The actual cost incurred by individual
have varied from our original estimates for a variety of reasons, including the identification of additional facts and circumstances,
the complexity of international labor law, developments in the underlying business, resulting in the unforeseen reallocation of
resources and better or worse than expected settlement discussions. This has meant that we have taken a credit in 2002 of $1.3
million to the non-recurring compensation and benefits expense and additional expense of $98,000 to the non-recurring operating,
administrative and other expense.

In December 2002, our Board of Directors approved a reduction of our workforce by four percent to meet expected global
economic conditions. As such, we have recorded $12.7 million in non-recurring compensation and benefits expense and $632,000

in non-recurring operating, administrative and other expense in 2002, primarily related to the lease cost of excess space. We expect
that the $12.7 million will be paid out by December 31, 2003,
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The following table displays the net charges incurred by segment for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Non-Recurring & Restructuring Charges
Owner and Occupier Services:

AMEIICAS . . ot i e e e $ 438 34.9

EUPOPE . . . e 6.7 22.6

Asia Pacific .. ... .. . e 0.3 12.6
Investment Management (1) ... ........... .. ... ... 2.6 5.0
COrporate . . . .. .ottt e 0.5 2.1
Total Non-Recurring and Restructuring Charges .. .............. $14.9 77.2

(1)  Non-recurring charges for Investment Management in 2002 were primarily asset write-downs.

There were no similar charges in 2000. The non-recurring charges incurred in 2000 consisted of merger-related stock compensation
expense resulting from the JLW merger. See Note 3 for additional information.

7 Business Segments

We manage our business along a combination of geographic and functional lines. Operations are reported as four business
segments: the three geographic regions of Owner and Occupier Services ("OO0S"), (i} Americas, (ii) Europe and (iii) Asia Pacific,
which offer our full range of Corporate Solutions, Investor Services, and Capital Markets Services, and (iv) Investment Management
which offers investment management services on a global basis. The OOS business consists primarily of tenant representation and
agency leasing, capital markets and valuation services{collectively, "implementation services") and property management, corporate
property services, project and development management services (collectively, "management services"). The Investment
Management segment provides real estate investment management services to institutional investors, corporations, and high-net-
worth individuals.

Total revenue by industry segment includes revenue derived from services provided to other segments. Operating income
represents total revenue less direct and indirect allocable expenses. We allocate all expenses, other than interest and income taxes,
as nearly all expenses incurred benefit one or more of the segments. Allocated expenses primarily consist of corporate global
overhead, including certain globally managed stock programs. These corporate global overhead expenses are allocated to the
business segments based on the relative revenue of each segment.

During the third quarter of 2001, we changed our measure of segment operating results to exclude non-recurring and
restructuring charges. Prior year results were not materially impacted by this change. See Note 6 for a detailed discussion of these
non-recurring and restructuring charges. We have determined that it is not meaningful to investors to allocate these non-recurring
and restructuring charges to our segments. In addition, the Chief Operating Decision Maker of Jones Lang LaSalle measures the
segment results without these charges allocated.

Summarized financial information by business segment for 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 20300
Owner and Occupier Services -
Americas
Revenue:
Implementation services . .................. $ 135,013 158,775 187,450
Management Services . ... ... ... ... 154,255 165,940 149,880
Equity earnings (losses) ................... (10) 366 478
Other services . ... . i 1,170 1,665 847
Intersegmentrevenue . .................... 476 1.191 1,898
290,904 327,937 340,553
Operating expenses:
Compensation, operating and
administrative expenses . .. ............... 240,141 277,473 292,696
Depreciation and amortization . .............. 18,761 24,138 21,505

Operating income .. .................. $ 32,002 26,326 26,352
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Europe

Revenue:
Implementation services .. .................
Management services . ... ......... .. ... ...
Otherservices .. ....... ... ... ..

Operating expenses:
Compensation, operating and
administrative expenses . .................
Depreciation and amortization .. .............
Operating income . . .. ................

Asia Pacific

Revenue:
Implementation services ... ................
Management services .. ............. . .....
Otherservices ... ......... .. ... ...

Operating expenses:
Compensation, operating
and administrative expenses. . . . . ... ... .....
Depreciation and amortization . ..............
Operating income (Ioss) . ...............

Investment Management

Revenue:
Implementation services . . ....... . ... ..., ..
Advisory fees ... ... .. .. .. . o L L
Equity earnings . . ....... ... ... L.
Otherservices ... .......... . ...,

Operating expenses:
Compensation, operating and
administrative expenses .. ................
Depreciation and amortization . ..............
Operating income . ... ................

Total segment revenue . ....... e
Intersegment revenue eliminations . . .. ...........
Totalrevenue . ......................
Total segment operating expenses . . . ............
Intersegment operating expense eliminations . . ... ...
Total operating expenses before
non-recurring and restructuring charges . . ...
Non-recurring and restructuring charges . .. ..
Operating income . . ..................

ldentifiable assets by segment are those assets that are used by or are a result of each segment’s business. Corporate assets
are principally cash and cash equivalents, office furniture and computer hardware and software.
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The following table reconciles segment identifiable assets to consolidated assets, investments in real estate ventures to
consolidated investments in real estate ventures and fixed asset expenditures to consolidated fixed asset expenditures. Certain 2001
and 2000 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2002 presentation. .

2002 2001 2000

Invest- Invest-
ments Fixed ments Fixed Fixed
Identi- in Real Asset Edenti- in Real Asset Asset
fiable Estate Expen- fiable Estate Expen- Expen-
Assets Ventures ditures Assets VYentures ditures ditures

(8 in thousands)

Owner and Occupier Services:
Americas $328,878 4,822 331,130 10,525 14,819
Europe 203,244 9,434 213,165 15,625 16,964
Asia Pacific 146,125 3,751 149,004 13,535 9,590

Investment Management 141,535 74,095 426 111,019 61,401 647 1,976

Corporate 32.734 -- 1,923 31.409 -- 2,221 2,757
Consolidated $852.516 74,994 20,356 835,727 64,528 42,553 46,106

The following table sets forih the revenues and assets from our most significant currencies. The euro revenues and assets
include our businesses in France, Germany, [taly, Ireland, Spain, Portugal, Holland, Belgium and Luxemburg.

Total Total

Revenue Assets
United States Dollar .. ............... 331,689 433,344
United Kingdom Pound . .............. 184,309 177,993
Euro . .. .. e 145,180 68,810
Australian Dollar . .. .. ..... ... .. .... 48,883 65,995
Other currencies . ... .. .............. 130,368 106,374
840,429 852,516

We face restrictions in certain countries which limit or prevent the transfer of funds to other countries or the exchange
of the local currency to other currencies.

(8) Investments in Real Estate Ventures

We invest in certain real estate ventures that own and operate commercial real estate. These investments include non-
controlling ownership interests generally ranging from less than 1% to 47.85% of the respective ventures. We generally account
for these interests under the equity method of accounting in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. As such, we
recognize our share of the underlying profits and losses of the ventures as revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Earnings. We are generally entitled to operating distributions in accordance with our respective ownership interests. Substantially
all venture interests are held by corporate subsidiaries of jones Lang LaSalle. Accordingly, our exposure to liabilities and losses
of these ventures is limited to our existing capital contributions and remaining capital commitments. To the extent that our
investment basis may differ from our share of the equity of an unconsolidated investment, such difference would be amortized over
the depreciable lives of the investee’s investment assets.

Effective January 1, 2001, we established LaSalle Investment Company ("LIC"), formerly referred to as [.aSalle Investment
Limited Partnership, a series of four parallel limited partnerships, as our investment vehicle for substantially all new co-investments.
At December 31, 2002 we had unfunded committed capital of euro 121.2 million ($130.3 million), which is equivalent to 47.85%
of total capital committed to LIC. We anticipate that LIC will require this capital over the next five to seven years. Actual cash
funded to LIC through December 31, 2002 was $26.9 million. The balance of LIC is held primarily by institutional investors,
including a significant shareholder in Jones Lang LaSalle. In addition, our Chairman and another Director of Jones Lang LaSalle
are investors in LIC on equivalent terms to other investors. The investment in LIC is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIC has, and will continue to, invest in certain real estate ventures that own and operate commercial real estate. LIC
generally invests via limited partnerships and intends to own 10% or less of the respective ventures. As of December 31, 2002,
LIC had no external debt, but may enter into a revolving credit facility for its working capital purposes. LIC has capital
commitments to ventures of $109.2 million as of December 31, 2002, of which $55.2 million remained unfunded at December 31,
2002. LIC’s exposure to liabilities and losses of the ventures is limited to its existing capital contributions and remaining capital
commitments.

The following table summarizes the financial statements of LIC ($ in thousands):

2002 2001

Balance Sheet

Investments in real estate . ............. $ 54,050 6,721
Total Assets ... ... ... . .. $ 64,542 9,368
Other borrowings . . . .................. £ - -
Mortgage indebtedness . ............. ... -- --
Total Liabilities . . . ................... $ 2909 2,570
Total Equity . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. $ 61.633 6,798
Statement of Operations

Revenues . ............ ..., $ 721 131

NetLoss. . ... i, $ (168) (129

The following table summarizes the combined financial information for the unconsolidated ventures (including those that
are held via LIC), accounted for under the equity method of accounting ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Balance Sheet:
Investments in real estate . . ............. $3.180,682 2,432,609 2,661,699
Total assets . .. ....... . ... . . ... ..., $3.413.917 2,628.599 3.010,544
Other borrowings . ... ................. $ 273,130 163,582 115,239
Mortgage indebtedness . ... ..... ... ..... $1,546,680 837,243 1,019,752
Total liabilities . ......... ... ... ...... $1,977.677 1,166.436 1,509,112
Total equity . ...... .. ... . ... ... ... $1.436.240 1,462.163 1,501,432
Loans to real estate ventures . ............ $ 9,175 7,629 5,662
Equity investments in real estate ventures . ... $ 653819 56,899 74,565
Total investments in real estate ventures ... .. $ 74994 64,528 80,227
Statements of Operations:
Revenues . ........ ... ... ... ...... $ 336,047 370,395 671,713
Net earnings . . .oov et § 67955 109,201 225,529
Equity in earnings from real estate ventures
recorded by Jones Lang LaSalle . ........... $ 2581 8,560 16,693

The loans to real estate ventures bear interest rates of 7.25% to 8.0% and are to be repaid by 2008. The Company makes
guarantees to third-party financial institutions would require us to fund monies in the event that the underlying co-investment loans
default. We apply FIN 45 with respect to these guarantees. FIN 45 addresses the recognition and disclosure requirements of
guarantor obligations under guarantees. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 apply to guarantees issued
or modified after December 31, 2002. As such, no recognition is required at this time, however, any new guarantees or
modifications to existing guarantees would need to be measured on the Company’s books in the respective period. As of
December 31, 2002 we have repayment guarantees outstanding of $4.7 million.
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Included in our investment in real estate ventures at December 31, 2000 was an investment in LaSalle Hotel Properties
("LHO™"), areal estate investment trust, which completed its initial public offering in April 1998. We provided advisory, acquisition

and administrative seirvices to LHO for which we received a base advisory fee calculated as a percentage of net operating income,
as well as performance fees based on growth in funds from operations on a per share basis. Such performance fees were paid in
the form of LHO common stock or units, at our option. LHO was formed with 10 hotels, we had a nominal co-investment in, and
investment advisory agreement with, nine of these hotels. We contributed our ownership interests in the hotels as well as the
related performance fees to LHO for an effective ownership interest of approximately 6.4%. Effective January 1, 2001, the service
agreement with LHO was terminated and LHO became a self-managed real estate investment trust. As a result of the terminated
service agreement, we changed our method of accounting for LHO to the cost method. On February 1, 2001, we sold our
investment in LHO and recognized a gain of $2.7 million.

&) Debt
Credit Facilities

During the first half of 2000, we increased our unsecured credit agreement from $380 million to $425 million through
the addition of five banks to the credit group. This total was comprised of a $250 million revolving facility maturing in October
2002 and a $175 million term facility, which was scheduled to mature on October 15, 2000.

On July 26, 2000, we closed our offering of euro 165 million aggregate principal amount of 9.0% Senior Notes, due 2007
(the "Euro Notes"). The net proceeds of $148.6 million were used to pay-down borrowings under the $175 million term facility
that matured on October 15, 2000. The Euro Notes were issued by Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V. ("JLL Finance"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Jones Lang LaSalle. On August 29, 2000, the remaining borrowings under the term facility were fully repaid
using proceeds from the revolving credit facility and the term facility was terminated.

On September 21, 2001, we increased our unsecured credit agreement from $250 million to $275 million, reduced the
number of participating banks to eleven from fourteen and extended the maturity date to September 2004 from the original due
date of October 2002.

As of December 31, 2002, we had $275 million available under the revolving credit facility for working capital,
investments, capital expenditures and acquisitions. We also had the Euro Notes of euro 165 million and, under the terms of the
revolving credit facility, the authorization to borrow up to $50 million under local credit facilities. As of December 31, 2002, there
was $26.1 million outstanding under the revolving credit facility, euro 165 million ($173.1 million), of borrowings under the Euro
Notes, and shori-term borrowings of $15.9 million.

The revolving credit facility and the Euro Notes (the "Facilities") are guaranteed by certain of our subsidiaries. We apply
FIN 45 to recognize and measure the provisions of these guarantees. FIN 45 addresses the recognition and disclosure requirements
of guarantor obligations under guarantees. The guarantees of the revolving credit facility, Euro Notes and local overdraft facilities
do not meet the recognition provisions, but do meet the disclosure requirements of FIN 45. With respect to the revolving credit
facility, we must maintain a certain level of consolidated net worth and a ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest expense,
taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA"). We must also meet a minimum interest coverage ratio and minimum liquidity
ratio. As part of the global restructuring initiative in 2001, we obtained the approval of our bank group to vary certain of these
ratios to reflect the non-recurring and restructuring charges. We were in compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2002.
Additionally, we are restricted from, among other things, incurring certain levels of indebtedness to lenders outside of the Facilities
and disposing of a significant portion of our assets. Lender approval is also required for certain levels of co-investment. There
are no covenants or triggers related to a change in credit rating or a material adverse change. The revolving credit facility bears
variable rates of interest based on market rates. Prior to 2001, we had used interest rate swaps to convert a portion of the floating
rate indebtedness to a fixed rate. The effective interest rate on the Facilities was 7.3% for the year ended December 31, 2002,

We have various interest-bearing overdraft facilities in Europe and Asia Pacific. As of December 31, 2002, we have
overdraft facilities totaling $33.8 million, of which $15.4 million was outstanding. We have provided guarantees of $22.3 million
related to the local overdraft facilities, as well as guarantees related to the $275 million revolving credit facility and the euro 165
million Euro Notes, which in total represent the maximum future payments that Jones Lang LaSalle could be required to make
under these guarantees.
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(10) Leases

lease equipment under both operating and capital lease arrangements.

December 31 and thereafter are as follows ($ in thousands):

Operating
Leases
2003 .. ... $ 45.620
2004 ... 42,027
2005 ... 32,080
2006 ... 26,858
2007 ... 21,724

19,255
$187,564
Less: Amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease

payments .................

subleases as of December 31, 2002 was $9.8 million.

(% in thousands):

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment and software
Automobiles

Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net assets under capital leases
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Rent expense was $50.4 million, $45.5 million and $44.¢ million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

We lease office space in various buildings for our own use. The terms of these non-cancelable operating leases provide
for us to pay base rent and a share of increases in operating expenses and real estate taxes in excess of defined amounts. We also

Minimum future lease payments (e.g., base rent for leases of office space) due in each of the next five years ending

Capitai
Leases
$ 615
393
357
204

76

60
1,705

(213)

$ 1,492

As of December 31, 2002, we have reserves related to excess lease space of $3.9 million, which were established as part
of our restructuring in 2001 and 2002. The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under noncancelable operating

Assets recorded under capital leases in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows

2002 2001

$ 1,421 2,170
1,172 2,708
1,289 1.845

- 3,179
3.882 9,902
(2,083) (7.321)
$ 1,799 2,581
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an Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, our provision for income taxes consisted of the following (§ in

thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
U.S. Federal:
Current . ............. $ 8 $ -- $ --
Deferredtax .. ......... 1,981 (2,.216) 498
1,989 (2,216) 498
State and Local:
Current .............. -- 1,063 -
Deferredtax . .......... 378 (1,921) 32
378 (853) 32
Foreign:
Current . ............. 17,220 13,920 25,220
Deferredtax . ... ....... (8.550) (2.860) (3,697)
8.670 11,060 21,523
Total .. ............... $ 11,037 § 7986 $ 22,053

In 2002 our current tax liabilities were reduced by $4.5 million due to the utilization of prior years’ net operating loss
carryovers.

Income tax expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income
tax rate of 35% to earnings before provision for income taxes (income of $37.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
a loss of $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and a loss of $20.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2000)
as a result of the following ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Computed "expected" tax expense
(benefit) . ............... $13,185 35.0% $(2,519) 35.0% $(7,273) 35.0%
Increase (reduction) in income
taxes resulting from:
Nondeductible stock compen-
sation expense . ......... - - - -- 27,433 (132.0%)
State and local income taxes,
net of federal income tax

benefit .. ............. . 246 0.7% (588) 8.2% 20 (0.1%)
Amortization of goodwill and

other intangibles . ........ (1,417)  (3.8%) 1,195 (16.6%) 1,020 (4.9%)
Nondeductible expenses . . . . . 1,999 5.3% 3,041 (42.3%) 1,606 (7.7%)
Foreign earnings taxed at

varyingrates .. ......... (3,534) (9.4%) (901) 12.5% (3,655) 17.6%
Valuation allowances . . . . . .. 411 1.1% 6,943 {96.5%) 1,296 (6.2%)
Cther,net .............. 1,947 5.2% 815 (11.2%) 1,606 (7.7%)

Additional tax benefit on
2001 restructuring reserve
actions .. ............. (1,800) (4.8%) - - - -

$11.037 29.3% $ 7.986 (110.9%) $22,053 (106.0%)
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For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, our income (loss) before taxes from domestic and international

sources are as follows ($ in thousands):

Domestic . . ..............
International . .. ...........

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented below ($ in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses . .. ......
Revenue deferred per
SAB 101 ..............
U.S. Federal and state loss
carryforwards . . . .. ......
Allowances for uncollectible
accounts . .. ...........
Foreign tax credit carry-
forwards . .............
Foreign loss carryforwards . . .
Property and equipment . . . ..
Investments in real estate
ventures and other investments
Other . ................

Less valuation allowances . ..

Deferred tax liabilities:

Prepaid pension asset ......

Intangible assets . . ... ... ..

Income deferred for tax
pUIPOSES . . . . . ... ...

Investments in real restate
ventures and other
investments . ...........

Other .. ...............

A deferred U.S. tax liability has not been provided on the unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries because it is our
intent to permanently reinvest such earnings outside of the United States. Due to the complex nature of our tax position it is not

Year Ended December 31,

29002 2001 2000
§ 531 (17,635) 3,316
32,360 10.438 (24.095)
$ 37.671 (7,197) (20.779)

December 31,

2002 2001 2006¢
$ 18,754 $ 16,447 $ 12,154
- 7,740 10,505
13,917 10,426 5,311
747 1,683 2,864
761 4,410 4,410
17,053 8,762 6,156
- 4,383 3,172 2,437
12,596 9,542 --
1,835 249 : 529
70,046 62,431 44,366
(12,223) (12.065) (3.255)
$ 57,823 § 50,366 $ 41.111
$ 2311 $ 4,061 $ 5,360
7,137 6,660 4,242
2,117 2,400 2,850
-- -- 1,161
203 1.130 995
§ 11,768 § 14251 $ 14608

practical to determine the amount of taxes that we may incur if repatriation did occur.

As of December 31, 2002, we had available U.S. Federal net operating loss carryforwards of $28 million which begin to
expire in 2019, U.S. state net operating loss carryforwards of $75 million which expire in 2003 through 2020, foreign net operating
loss carryforwards of $49 million which begin to expire in 2003, and foreign tax credit carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax
purposes of $0.8 million which expire in 2003. We do not believe that we will be able to utilize the $0.8 million of foreign tax

credit carryforwards, and therefore we have taken a full valuation reserve against this tax credit.
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As of December 31, 2002, we believe that the net deferred tax asset of $46.1 million will be realized based upon our
estimates of future income and the consideration of net operating losses, earnings trends and tax planning strategies. Valuation
allowances have been provided with regard to the tax benefit of certain foreign net operating loss carryforwards, write-downs
related to investments in e-commerce ventures and foreign tax credits, for which utilization is not probable. In 2002, we reduced
valuation reserves by $2.4 million on net operating losses in two jurisdictions due to changes in circumstances which caused us
to change our judgement on the current and future utilization of those losses, and we increased valuation reserves by $1.1 million
for other jurisdictions based upon circumstances which caused us to continue to provide valuation reserves on current year [osses
in addition to those provided in prior years.

As of December 31, 2002, our current payable for income tax was $3.0 million.

Retirement Plans
Defined Contribution Plans

We have a qualified profit sharing plan that incorporates IRC Section 401¢(k) for our eligible U.S. employees.
Contributions under the qualified profit sharing plan are made via a combination of employer match and an annual contribution
on behalf of eligible employees. Included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended
December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 are employer contributions of $1.5 million, $1.7 million and $1.6 million, respectively. Related
trust assets of the Plan are managed by trustees and are excluded from the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

We maintain several defined contribution retirement plans for our eligible non-U.S. employees. Contributions to these
plans were approximately $1.9 million, $2.4 million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans

We maintain contributory defined benefit pension plans in the UK, Ireland and Holland to provide retirement benefits to
eligible employees. It is our policy to fund the minimum annual contributions required by applicable regulations.

Net periodic pension cost consisted of the following ($ in thousands):

2002 2601 2000
Employer service cost - benefits earned during the year ......... $ 8,533 $ 7,300 $§ 6,716
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . ............... 5,649 5,575 5,130
Expected (return) loss on plan assets ...................... (7,309) (8,572) (7,924)
Net amortization/deferrals . .. . ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 50 -- --
Net periodic pension €ost . ... ... .. . i $ 6,923 $ 4303 § 3922

The change in benefit obligation and plan assets and reconciliation of funded status as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
are as follows ($ in thousands):

2002 2061 200¢
Change in benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year . . ... ........ $ 88,598 $ 93,854 $ 89,163
SeIVICE COSt . . v vt et e e 8,533 7,300 6,716
Interest COSt . . . . . . .. e 5,649 5,575 5,130
Plan participants’ contributions .. ....................... 232 167 136

Plan amendments . .............. . ... .. . . ... . ... ... -- 379 --
Benefitspaid . ... ... ... ... ... .. . . L (3,589) 3,711 (2,482)
Actuarial loss (gain) .. ....... .. . 4,569 (12,293} 2,144
Changes in foreign exchangerates . . ..................... 10,843 (2.673) (6.,953)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year ... .......... ... $114.835 $ 88,598 § 93,854
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2002 2001 2009

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ............... $ 95,522 $119,763 $114,724

Actual return on plan assets . . ... ... ... (8,939) (17,726) 15,998
Plan contributions . . . .. ... . ... ... 1,284 714 470
Benefitspaid ... ... ... .. .. ... (3,589 3,711) (2,482)
Changes in foreign exchangerates . . ............. ... ..... 9,648 (3,518) (8,947)
Other . . . e (149) -- -

Fair value of plan assets atend of year . ... .............. $ 93.777 $ 95522  $119.763

Reconciliation of funded status:

Funded Status . ... .. ... i $(21,058) § 6,924 $ 25,909

Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) . ............. ... ...... 29,454 6,483 (7,582)

Unrecognized prior service cost (credit) . .................. 414 377 -~
Net amount recognized ....... ..., $ 83810 § 13784 § 18.327

The amounts recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2002, 200} and 2000 are
as follows ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2009
Prepaid pension asset . . ... ... ... . ... $ 9,646 $ 14,384 $ 18,730
Accrued pension Hability .. ..., ... ... ... L (836) (600) (403)
Net amount recognized . .................. ... ... 3 383810 $ 13,784 § 18.327

In January 2003, we curtailed the UK defined benefit plan and implemented a defined contribution plan. The table below
shows how the curtailment impacts the accumulated benefit obligation and the projected benefit obligation of the defined benefit
plan {amounts in millions).

At December 31, At January 1,

2002 2003
Accumulated benefit obligation - UK plan . ............... ... 82 $ 901
Projected benefit obligation - UK plan . .. ..... ... ........... § 1042 $ 927

As a result of the curtailment of the UK plan, the accumulated benefit obligation will exceed the fair value of the plan assets by
$4.8 million.

The range of assumptions used in developing the projected benefit obligation as of December 31 were as follows:

2062 2001 2000
Discount rate used in determining present values ..  5.50% to 6.00%  5.80% to 6.25% 5.50% to 6.25%
Annual increase in future compensation levels . ... 2.00% to 3.80%  2.00% to 4.00% 2.00% to 4.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets . . . . .. 5.50% to 7.50%  5.80% to 7.50%  5.80% to 7.50%

Plan assets consist of a diversified portfolio of fixed-income investments and equity securities.

a3 Stock Option and Stock Compensation Plans

Stock Award and Incentive Plan

In 1997, we adopted the 1997 Stock Award and Incentive Plan ("SAIP") that provides for the granting of options to
purchase a specified number of shares of common stock and other stock awards to eligible participants of Jones Lang LaSalle.
In 2002, the SAIP was amended and restated and merged with the Stock Compensation Program ("SCP"). Under the plan, the total
number of shares of common stock available to be issued is 9,110,000. The options are generally granted at the market value of
common stock at the date of grant. The options vest at such times and conditions as the Compensation Committee of our Board
of Directors determines and sets forth in the award agreement. Such options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 vest over a period
of zero to five years. At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, there were 2.4 million, 3.9 million and 0.3 million shares,
respectively, available for grant under the SAIP.
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The per share weighted-average fair value of options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $11.61, $7.54 and $7.42
on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2002 2061 2000
Expected dividend yield . ......... 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interestrate . ... ........ 3.51% 5.61% 5.20%
Expectedlife . . ................ 6 to 9 years 6 to 9 years 6 to 9 years
Expected volatility . ... .......... 45.31% 46.72% 49.17%
Contractuaiterms . ... ........... 7 to 10 years 7 to 10 years 7 to 10 years

We account for our stock option and compensation plans under the provisions of SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148,
which allows entities to continue to apply the provisions of APB 25 and provide pro forma net income and net income per share
disclosures for employee option grants as if the fair-value-based method defined in SFAS 123, as amended, had been applied. We
have elected to apply the provisions of APB 25 in accounting for stock options granted at the market value of our common stock
on the date of grant, and, accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for these grants in our Consolidated Financial
Statements. Had we determined compensation cost based upon the fair value at the date of grant for our options as set forth under
SFAS 123, as amended, our net earnings (loss), basic earnings (loss) per common share and diluted earnings (loss) per common
share would have been as follows ($ in thousands, except share data):

2002 2001 2000
Netincome (JoSS) . . .. .ottt $ 27,110 $ (15,411) $ (57,060)
Impact of SFAS 123 . ... .. . (1,446) (3,942) 4,871)
Adjusted net income (loss) ... ....... . ... . ... .. ... 25,664 (19,353) (61,931)
Basic income (loss) per common share . .................. 0.89 0.51) {2.30)
Impact of SFAS 123 ... ... . e (0.05) (0.13) 0.19)
Adjusted basic income (loss) per common share .. ........... 0.84 (0.64) (2.49)
Diluted income (loss) per common share . . . ............... 0.85 0.51) (2.30)
Impact of SFAS 123 . ... ... .. . . (0.05) (0.13) (0.19)
Adjusted diluted income (loss) per common share ........... 0.80 (0.64) (249
Stock option activity is as follows (shares in thousands):
2002 2001 2000
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning
ofyear ............. 3,327.9 $20.68 2,961.7 $22.46 2,011.0 $ 28.67
Granted . ............. 593.2 22.16 603.9 13.12 1,188.7 12.77
Exercised . .. .......... (151.0) 13.23 (6.0) 12.25 4.9) --
Forfeited ............. (487.6) 22.75 (231.7) 23.97 (233.1) 27.07
Outstanding at end of year . 3,282.5 $20.98 3,327.9 $20.68 2.961.7 $22.46
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Options Cutstanding

Range of

Exercise Number
Prices QOutstanding
December 31, 2002
$9.31-14.75 1,320,134
$15.00-21.95 164,530
$23.00-35.06 1,794,877
$38.00-43.88 3.000
$9.31-43.88 3,282,541
December 31, 2001
$9.31-814.75 1,544,068
$15.00-$21.95 148,032
$23.00-$35.06 1,627,792
$38.00-$43.88 8.000
$9.31-$43.88 3,327,892
December 31, 2000
$9.31-814.75 1,019,666
$15.00-821.95 157,548
$23.00-$35.06 1,771,487
$38.00-543.88 13.000
$9.13-§43.88 2,961,701

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Contractual Weighted-Average
Life Exercise Price
4.78 years $12.66
5.26 years $16.79
4.29 years $27.46
5.39 years $39.00
4.54 years $20.98
5.70 years $12.39
5.93 years $16.24
4.49 years $28.67
4.67 years $38.38
5.12 years $20.68
6.17 years $12.26
6.90 years $£16.17
5.46 years $28.78
5.27 years $38.23
5.78 years $22.46

Other Stock Compensation Programs

In November of 2001, we established the Jones Lang LaSalle Savings Related Share Option (UK) Plan ("SAYE") for
employees of our UK based operations. Our Compensation Committee approved the reservation of 500,000 shares for the SAYE
on May 14, 2001. Under the SAYE plan, employees have a one time opportunity to enter into a tax efficient savings program
linked to the option to purchase our stock. The employees’ contributions for stock purchases will be enhanced by Jones Lang
LaSalle through an additional contribution of 15%. Both employee and employer contributions vest over a period of three to five
years. The SAYE plan resulted in the issuance of 219,954 options in 2002 at an exercise price of $13.63. Our contribution of

Options Exercisable

Number

Exercisable

755,099
93,456
1,279,077
2.400
2,130,032

316,659
64,688
1,227,964
6.800
1,616,111

3,166
24,298
945,196
7.866

e ——

980,526

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$12.64
$16.90
$29.17
$£39.00
$22.78

$12.27
$17.69
$28.67
$38.26
$25.06

512.83
$21.95
$27.64
$38.15
$27.54

$528,000 will be recorded as compensation expense over the vesting period which began January 1, 2002.

We award restricted stock units of our common stock to certain of our employees. These shares are drawn from the SAIP.
The related compensation cost is amortized to expense over the vesting period. The following table sets forth the details of our

restricted stock grants (amortization in millions).
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Grant
Number Date
of Market Amortization
Grant Date Shares Value Yesting Period 2002 2001 20060
March 2000 472,500 $12.31 50% 34 months $0.7 1.2 1.4
50% 58 months
February 2002 280,000 $17.21 50% 40 months $1.0 -- --
50% 64 months
May 2002 80,000 $23.08 50% 40 months $0.3 - -
50% 64 months
September 2002 111,200 $20.69 33% 12 months $0.5 - -
33% 24 months
33% 36 months . . -
$£25 12 14

In 1999, we established a stock ownership program for certain of our employees pursuant to which they were paid a
portion of their annual bonus in the form of restricted stock units of our common stock. We enhanced the number of shares by
20% with respect to the 1999 plan year, and by 25% with respect to the 2000, 2001 and 2002 plan years. In 2002, we expanded
the population of employees who qualified for this program as part of our goal of broadening employee stock ownership. The
related compensation cost is amortized over the service period. The service period consists of the twelve months of the year to
which the payment of restricted stock relates, plus the periods over which the shares vest. The following table sets forth the details
of our stock ownership program (amortization in millions).

Number
Plan of Market Amortization
Year Shares Value Vesting Period 2002 2001 2000
1999 500,000 $11.31 50% 18 months $0.4 1.7 2.0
50% 30 months
2000 700,000 $13.50 50% 18 months 24 3.3 3.1
50% 30 months
2001 300,000 $17.80 50% 18 months 2.1 1.8 --
50% 30 months
2002 700,000 $15.89 50% 18 months 3.8 -- -
50% 30 months . . _
Total amortization $8.7 6.8 5.1

In 1997 and 1998, we maintained the SCP for eligible employees. Under this program, employee contributions for bonuses
for stock purchases were enhanced by us through an additional contribution of 15%. Employee contributions vested immediately
while our contributions were subject to various vesting periods. The related compensation cost is amortized to expense over the
vesting period. 207,022 total shares were paid into this program. Total compensation expense recognized under the program during
2001 and 2000 was $172,802 and $179,600, respectively. As of December 31, 2001, all compensation expense related to these
shares has been recognized, therefore, there is no such expense after December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, 196,536 shares
have been distributed under this program with the remaining to be distributed in the future. This program was suspended in 1999,
therefore no further contributions will be made. As referenced above under the Stock Award and Incentive Plan, the SCP was
merged into the SAIP in 2002.

66




JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In 1998, we adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") for eligible US based employees. Under this plan,
employee contributions for stock purchases will be enhanced by us through an additional contribution of 15%. Employee
contributions and our contributions vest immediately. As of December 31, 2002, 756,690 shares have been purchased under this
plan. During 2002 and 2001, 147,351 shares and 191,715 shares, respectively, having weighted-average grant-date market values
of $14.12 and $11.08, respectively, were purchased under the program. No compensation expense is recorded with respect to this
program.

(14) Transactions With Affiliates

We have equity interests in real estate ventures, some of which certain of our officers are trustees, from which we eam
advisory and management fees. Included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are revenues of $53.9 million,
$44.9 million and $27.7 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as well as receivables of $12.3 million, $5.5 million and
$8.2 million at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, related to these equity interests.

We also earn fees and commissions for services rendered to affiliates of Dai-ichi Life Property Holdings, Inc. and Gothaer
Lebensversicherung A.G., two significant stockholders. Included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are
revenues from such affiliates of $4.9 miilion, $9.0 million and $7.6 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as well as
receivables for reimbursable expenses and revenues as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 of $0.2 million, $0.5 million and
$2.3 million, respectively.

Some members of our Board of Directors are also on the Board of Directors of some of our clients. Included in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are revenues of $2.8 million and $1.8 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively,
as well as receivables of $1.0 million and $0.2 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to these clients.

Mr. Stuart L. Scott, as well as an entity affiliated with Mr. Scott, are limited partners of Diverse Real Estate Holdings
Limited Partnership ("Diverse"). Diverse has an ownership interest in and operates investment assets, primarily as the managing
general partner of real estate development ventures. Prior to January 1, 1992, Jones Lang LaSalle earned fees for providing
development advisory services to Diverse as well as fees for the provision of administrative services. Effective January 1, 1992,
Jones Lang LaSalle discontinued charging fees to Diverse for these services. In 1992, Diverse began the process of discontinuing
its operations and disposing of its assets. At the end of 2002, the net receivable due from Diverse in connection with such fees
and interest thereon was $2.7 million. The underlying collateral security for this receivable was significantly enhanced in 2002.
As such, $2.0 million of bad debt reserves were reversed in 2002. Mr. Scott directly holds an approximately 13.4% partnership
interest in Diverse. In addition, the Stuart Scott Trust, a trust affiliated with Mr. Scott, has a 6.4% partnership interest in Diverse.

The outstanding balance of loans to employees at December 31, 2002 is shown in the following table. (1)

2002
Loans related to Co-Investments (2)(3) .. ........ ... . ... 1.3
Travel, relocation and other miscellaneousadvances ... ................. 26

3.9

(1) The Company has not extended or maintained credit, arranged for the extension of credit, or renewed the
extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any Director or Executive Officer of the Company
since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 on July 30, 2002.

(2)  These loans have been made to allow employees the ability to participate in investment fund opportunities. With
the exception of approximately $474,000 of these co-investment related loans, all loans are nonrecourse loans.

(3) Included in loans related to co-investments is an advance of $87,300 to an employee who is an executive officer

of the Company that was entered into prior to, and has not been materially modified since, the date of enactment
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
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(15) Accounting for Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Effective July 2001, we adopted Statement No. 141, "Business Combinations,” ("SFAS 141"). SFAS 141 requires that
the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141 also specifies
that intangible assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet certain criteria to be recognized and reported

apart from goodwill.

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” ("SFAS 142"). SFAS

142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead they must be tested
for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142. SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assets with
definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values and reviewed for
impairment,

In connection with the transitional goedwill impairment evaluation, SFAS 142 required us to perform an assessment of
whether there was an indication that goodwill was impaired as of the date of adoption. To accomplish this evaluation, we
determined the carrying value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and
intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption. For purposes of this exercise, we defined reporting units based
on how the Chief Operating Decision Makers for each segment looked at their segment when determining strategic business
decisions. The following reporting units were determined: investment Management, Americas OOS, Australia OOS, Asia OOS,
and by country in Europe O0S. We have determined the fair value of each reporting unit on the basis of a discounted cash flow
methodology and compared it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. In all cases, the fair value of each reporting unit exceeded
its carrying amount, and therefore no impairment loss has been recognized on our goodwill. Also, unamortized negative goodwill
of $846,000, which existed at the date we adopted SFAS 142, has been credited to the income statement as a cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle.

We have $333.8 million of unamortized intangibles and goodwill as of December 31, 2002, that are subject to the
provisions of SFAS 142. A significant portion of these unamortized intangibles and goodwill are denominated in currencies other
than US dollars, which means that a portion of the movements in the reported book value of these balances are attributable to
movements in currency exchange rates. See the tables below for further details on the foreign exchange impact on intangible and
goodwill balances. Goodwill with an indefinite useful life in the amount of $315.5 million represents intangibles which have ceased
to be amortized beginning January 1, 2002. The amortization savings for 2002 totaled $9.6 million. As a result of adopting SFAS
142, on January 1, 2002 we credited $846,000 to the income statement, as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle,
which represented our negative goodwill balance at January 1, 2002. The gross carrying amount of this negative goodwill (which
related to the Americas OOS reporting segment) at January 1, 2002 was $1.4 million with accumulated amortization of $565,000.
The remaining $18.3 million of identifiable intangibles (principally representing management contracts acquired) will be amortized
over their remaining definite useful lives. Other than the prospective non-amortization of goodwill, which resuits in a non-cash
improvement in our operating results, the adoption of SFAS 142 did not have a material effect on our revenue, operating results
or liquidity.

In accordance with SFAS 142, the effect of this accounting change is applied prospectively. Supplemental comparative
disclosure as if the change had been retroactively applied to the prior periods is as follows (in thousands, except share data):

2802 2081 2000

Reported net income (loss) . . ....... ... ... $ 27,110 (15,411 (57,060)
Add back: Cumulative effect of change in accounting principal . (846) -- --
Add back: Amortization of Goodwili with indefinite useful lives,

netoftax ......... . ... ... -- 5,574 6,173
Adjusted net income (loss) . .......... .. ... ... ..., $ 26264 (9.837) (50,887)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share . ... ............. $ 0.89 (C.51) (2.30)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. ... .. (0.03) -- --
Amortization of Goodwill with indefinite useful lives,

netoftax . ... . ... -- 0.19 0.25
Adjusted basic earnings (loss) per common share . .. ...... .. $ 0.86 (0.32) (2.05)
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2002 2001 2000
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share . .. ............. $ 085 (0.51) (2.30)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . ... ... (0.03) -- --
Amortization of Goodwill with indefinite useful lives,
net of tax . .. ... e -- 0.19 0.25
Adjusted diluted earnings (loss) per common share . ........ $ 082 {0.32) {2.05)

The following table sets forth, by reporting segment, the current year movements in the gross carrying amount and
accumulated amortization of our goodwill with indefinite useful lives (amounts in thousands):

Owner and Occupier Services

Asia Investment

Americas Europe Pacific Management Consclidated
Gross Carrving Amount
Balance as of January 1, 2002 . ... .. .. $ 179,263 53,259 79,603 28,890 341,015
Impact of exchange rate movements . . . . 72 5,643 3,152 1,993 10.860
Balance as of December 31, 2002 .. ... $ 179,335 58,902 82,755 30,883 351,875
Accumulated Amortization
Balance as of January 1, 2002 ... ..... $ (15,516) (4,901) (5,607) {(9,303) (35,327
Impact of exchange rate movements . . . . e (560) _(228) {268) (1.071)
Balance as of December 31, 2002 ... .. (15,531) (5,461) (5,835) (9,571) (36,398)
Netbook value . .............. ... $ 163,804 53,441 76,920 21,312 315.477

The following table sets forth, by reporting segment, the current year movements in the gross carrying amount and
accumulated amortization of our intangibles with definite useful lives (amounts in thousands, unless otherwise noted):

Owner and Occupier Services

Asia Investment

Americas Etirope Pacific Management Consolidated
Gross Carrving Amount
Balance as of January 1, 2002 .. ... ... $ 39,377 742 2,071 4,332 46,522
Impact of exchange rate movements . . . . -- 77 225 448 750
Balance as of December 31, 2002 .. ... $ 39,377 819 2,296 4,780 47,272
Accumulated Ameortization
Balance as of January 1, 2002 ... ... .. $ (17,720) (302) (841) (4,332) (23,195)
Amortization expense . . .. ... ....... (4,785) (96) (276) -- (5,157)
Impact of exchange rate movements . . . . 11 (37) (102) (448) (576)
Balance as of December 31, 2002 .. ... $ (22,494) (435) (1,219) (4,780) (28,928)
Netbook value . ................. $ 16,883 384 1,077 -~ 18,344

The following table sets forth the estimated future amortizaiton expense of our tangibles with definite useful lives:

Estimated Annual Amortization Expense

For year ended December 31, 2003 $5.2 million
For year ended December 31, 2004 $5.2 million
For year ended December 31, 2005 $4.7 million
For year ended December 31, 2006 $3.2 million
For year ended December 31, 2007 None
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(16) Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle and certain of our subsidiaries had $4.7 million of co-investment
indebtedness guarantees outstanding to third-party lenders. As discussed in Note 8, we apply Interpretation No. 45 to recognize
and measure the provisions of these guarantees. The $4.7 million of guarantees represents the maximum future payments that Jones
Lang LaSalle could be required to make under such guarantees. These guaranteesrelate to collateralizedborrowings by project-level
entities, and certain of the guarantees have terms extending out until 2011. Repayment could be requested by the third-party lenders
in the event that one of the project level entities fail to repay its borrowing. We do not expect to incur any material losses under
these guarantees.

We are a defendant in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve claims
for damages that are substantial in amount. Many of these litigation matters are covered by insurance. We do not expect the
ultimate resolution of such litigation matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.

On November 8, 2002, Bank One N.A. ("Bank One") filed suit against the Company and certain of its subsidiaries in the
Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois with regard to services provided in 1999 and 2000 pursuant to three different agreements
relating to facifity management, project development and broker services. The suit generally alleges negligence, breach of contract
and breach of fiduciary duty on the part of Jones Lang LaSalle and seeks to recover a total of $40 million in compensatory damages
and $80 million in punitive damages. The Company is aggressively defending the suit and on December 16, 2002 filed a
counterclaim for breach of contract seeking payment of approximately $1.2 million for fees due for services provided under the
agreements. While there can be no assurance, the Company believes that the complaint is without merit and, as such, will not have
a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. The suits are in their early stages. As of
the date of this report, discovery is just beginning and no trial date has been set. As such, the outcome of Bank One’s suit cannot
be predicted with any certainty and management is unable to estimate an amount or range of potential loss that could result if an
improbable unfavorable outcome did occur.

In the third quarter of 2001 we established a reserve, which we believe is adequate to cover our exposures resulting from
the insolvency of HIH Insurance Ltd. ("HIH"), one of our former insurance providers. HIH provided public liability coverage to
the Australian operations of JLW for the years from 1994 to 1997, which coverage would typically provide protection against,
among other things, personal injury claims arising out of accidents occurring at properties for which we had property management
responsibilities. As of December31, 2002, $1.1 million remained to cover claims which would have been covered by the insurance
provided by HIH. Although there can be no assurance, we believe this reserve is adequate to cover any remaining claims and
expenses resulting from the HIH insolvency. Due to the nature of the claims covered by this insurance, it is possible that future
claims may be made.

(17N Implementation of SAB 101

During December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
"Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements," ("SAB 101"), which provides guidance on various revenue recognition matters.
Historically, we and certain other real estate service companies had recorded the full amount of lease commissions as revenue upon
the completion of leasing services and the closing of the transaction, when invoicing for a portion of the commission was to be
delayed until actual tenant occupancy. This policy was based upon the fact that we had fulfilled all of our contractual obligations
and the Jikelihood of the tenant defaulting under the lease was extremely remote. Under SAB 101, such lease commission revenue
should be deferred until the parties to the lease contract have fuifilled their respective obligations. In 2000 we adopted the
provisions of SAB 101, retroactively applying them as of January 1, 2000.

As a result, revenue recognition is now deferred until all parties to the lease contract have fuifilled their respective lease
obligations if the fee income is dependent upon those contingencies being removed. This change in accounting policy does not
impact the timing or amount of cash flow, or the amount of earnings that we will ultimately recognize.
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Effective January 1, 2000, we recorded a one-time, non-cash, after-tax cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle of $14.2 million, net of taxes of $8.7 million. This adjustment represents revenues of $22.9 million that had been
recognized prior to January 1, 2000 that would not have been recognized if the new accounting policy had been in effect in prior
years. These revenues will be recognized as the underlying contingencies are satisfied. We recognized $400,000, $5.8 million and
$16.2 million of these revenues in the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Of the $22.9 million
of revenues that were deferred on January 1, 2000, $500,000 represented revenues related to our land investment business, a
business we exited in 2001. We have determined that the subsequent impairment of the specific investment that generated these
revenues means that this $500,000 will not be collected, and therefore will not be recorded as revenue. This will have no impact
on our earnings or cash flow.

The new revenue recognition policy meant that revenue associated with transactions in the year 2000 was deferred until
2001 or later. In 2000, we deferred $20.9 million of such revenue. SAB 101 was fully implemented into our accounting systems
in 2001.

The net impact of the implementation of SAB 101 on our 2000 operating income was to reduce the reported operating
income by $4.7 million.

(i8) Supplemental Condensed Consclidating Financial Statements

On luly 26, 2000, Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V. ("JLL Finance"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jones Lang LaSalle,
issued 9% Senior Euro Notes with an aggregate principal amount of euro 165 million, due 2007 (the "Euro Notes"). The payment
obligations under the Euro Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated and certain of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries: Jones Lang LaSalle America’s Inc.; LaSalle Investment Management, Inc.; Jones Lang LaSalle
International, Inc.; Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc.; and Jones Lang LaSalle Ltd. (the "Guarantor Subsidiaries™). All of
Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s remaining subsidiaries (the "Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries") are owned by the Guarantor
Subsidiaries. The following supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and December 31,
2001, Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings and Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended
December31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 present financial information for (i) Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated (carrying any investment
in subsidiaries under the equity method), (ii) Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V. (the issuer of the Euro Notes), (iii) on a combined
basis the Guarantor Subsidiaries (carrying any investment in Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under the equity method) and {iv) on a
combined basis the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries (carrying its investments in JLL Finance under the equity method). Separate
financial statements of the Guarantor Subsidiaries are not presented because the guarantors are jointly, severally, and unconditionally
liable under the guarantees, and Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated believes that separate financial statements and other disclosures
regarding the Guarantor Subsidiaries are not material to investors. In general, historically, Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated has
entered into third-party borrowings, financing its subsidiaries via intercompany accounts that are then converted into equity on a
periodic basis. Certain Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries also enter into third-party borrowings on a limited basis. All
intercompany activity has been included as subsidiary activity in investing activities in the Condensed Consolidating Statements
of Cash Flows. Cash is managed on a consolidated basis and there is a right of offset between bank accounts in the different
groupings of legal entities in the condensed consolidating financial information. Therefore, in certain cases, negative cash balances
have not been reallocated to payables as they legally offset positive cash balances elsewhere in Jones Lang LaSalle incorporated.
In certain cases, taxes have been calculated on the basis of a group position that includes both Guarantor and Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries. In such cases, the taxes have been allocated to individual legal entities on the basis of that legal entity’s pre-tax
income.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2002
(% in thousands)

Jones Lang

LaSalle Consolidated
Incorporated Jomes Lang Jones Lang
{(Parent and LaSslie Guarantor Non-Guarantor LaSalle
Guarantor) Finance B.Y, Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Incorporated

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents . . .. $ 8,657 (3,849) 8,781 13,654
Trade receivables, net of

allowances -~ 84,033 143,546 227,579
Other current assets 21,303 29.006 14,763 65,072

Total current assets 29,960 109,190 167,090 306,305

Property and equipment, at

cost, less accumulated

depreciation 37,651
Intangibles resulting from

business acquisitions and

JLW merger, net of

accumulated amortization . . . - 231,538 102,283 - 333,821
Other assets, net 16,399 77,047 37,292 - 130,738
Investment in subsidiaries . ... 280,330 266,571 774 (547.675) --

$ 331,777 65 723,259 345,090 (547.673) 852,516
Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities . . .. ........... $ 22,622 1215 24,184 44,368 - 92,389
Short-term borrowings . . . . . . . -- 205 4210 11,448 -- 15,863
Other current liabilities . ... .. (64.630) (201,274) 404,201 22.647 -- 160,944

Total current liabilities . . . . (42,008) (199,854) 432,595 78,463 - 269,196
Long-term labilities:

Credit facilities . ......... - 26,077 - - -- 26,077

9% Senior Notes, due 2007 . . -- 173,068 -- - - 173,068

Other . ................ 2.168 - 10,334 4,715 -- 17,217

Total liabilities ... ... ... (39,840) (709) 442,929 83,178 - 485,558
Stockholders’ equity . ....... 371,617 774 280.330 261,912 (547.675) 366,958
$ 331,777 65 723,259 345,090 (547.675) 852,516
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents . . ..
Trade receivables,

net of allowances . . .......
Other current assets . . . ... ...

Total current assets

Property and equipment, at
cost, less accumulated

depreciation . .

Intangibles resulting from
business acquisitions and
JLW merger, net of
accumulated amortization

Other assets, net

Investment in subsidiaries . . ..

Liabilities and

Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities . . . .

Short-term borrowings . . . .. ..
Other current liabilities . .. ...

Total current liabilities . . . .

Long-term liabilities:

Credit facilities

9% Senior Notes, due 2007 . .

Other ... ...

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Minority interest in con-

solidated subsidiaries

Stockholders’ equity .. ... ...
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2001
(8 in thousands)

Jones Lang
LaSalie
Incorporated  Jomes Lang
{Parent and LaSalle Guarantor  Non-Guaraator
Guarantor) Finance B.Y. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
$ 3,142 52 (2,843) 10,095
132 -- 84,492 137,966
(4,575) - 30,708 26.663
(1,301 52 112,357 174,724
4,388 -- 48,817 39,298
- -- 230,940 97,229
26,154 - 69.426 33,643
216,825 -~ 212,452 367
$ 246.066 32 673,992 345,261
$ 10,572 836 42,568 50,592
- -- 9,147 6,350
(81.592) (207.773) 351,432 65,503
(71,020) (206,937) 443,147 122,445
-- 59.854 -- 767
-- 146,768 -- --
2,705 -- 14,020 8.808
(68,315) (315) 457,167 132,020
-- -- - 789
314,381 367 216.825 212.452
$ 246,066 52 673,992 345,261

Eliminations

Consolidated
Jones Lang
LaSaile
Incorporated

10.446

222,590
52,796

(429.644)

285,832

92,503

328,169
129,223

(429 644)

835,727

104,568
15,497
167.570

287,635

60,621
146,768
25.533

(429.644)

520,557

789

314,381

(429,644)

835.727
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings
For the year ended December 31, 2002
(3 in thousands)

Jomes Lang

LaSable Consolidated
Incorperated  Jones Lang Jomes Lang
(Parent and LaSalle Guarantor Non-Guarantor LaSalle
Guaranter) Finance B.VY. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Incorperated

Revenue 3 -- 404,785 435,644 -- 840,429
Equity earnings (loss) from
subsidiaries 29.061 21,359 189 (50,609) --

Total revenue 29,061 426,144 435,833 (50,609) 840,429

Operating expenses before

non-recurring and restructuring

charges 5,145 374,737 350,947 770,863
Non-recurring and restructuring

charges 5,086 8,595 1.190 -- 14,871

Operating income (loss) . .. 18,830 42,812 43,696 (50,609) 54,695

Interest expense, net of
interest income (6.623) 14.084 10,311 17,024

Earnings (loss) before
provision (benefit) for
income taxes and minority
interest . . . ........... 25,453 714 28,728 33,385 (50,609) 37,671

Net provision (benefit) for
income taxes ............ (1,657) 525 (333) 12,502 -- 11,037

Minority interests in earnings

of subsidiaries . .......... -- -- -- 711 -- 711
Net earnings {loss) before extra-

ordinary item and cumulative

change in accounting principle 27,110 189 29,061 20,172 (50,609) 25,923

Extraordinary gain on the
acquisition of minority

interest, net of tax .. ... ... - -- .- 341 - 341
Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle ... .. -- -- -- 846 -- 846
Net earnings (loss) . ........ $ 27110 189 29.061 21,359 (50.609) 27,110
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Revenue ................
Equity earnings (loss) from
subsidiaries ... ..........

Operating expenses before
non-recurring and restructuring
charges . ........ ... ... ...

Non-recurring and restructuring
charges .. ..............

Operating income (loss)

Interest expense, net of
interest income .. ... ... ..

Earnings (loss) before
provision (benefit) for
income taxes and
minority interest . ... ...

Net provision (benefit) for
income taxes . ...........
Minority interests in earnings
of subsidiaries . ........ ..

Net earnings (loss) .........

JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings
For the year ended December 31, 2001
(8 in thousands)

Jones Lang
LaSalle Consolidated
Incorporated Jomes Lang Jones Lang
{Parent and LaSalle Guarantor  Noa-Guarantor LaSalle
Guarantor) Finance B.V. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Incorperated
$ -- -- 449,379 456,070 -- 905,449
(3,045) -- 9,768 263 (6,986) --
(3,045) -- 459,147 456,333 (6,986) 905,449
17,884 32 393,425 403,917 - 815,258
569 -- 46.664 29,999 -- 77,232
(21,498) (32) 19,058 22,417 (6.986) 12,959
(4.344) (756) 15.369 9.887 -- 20,156
(17,154) 724 3.689 12,530 (6,986) (7,197)
(1.743) 461 6,734 2,534 - 7.986
- -- -- 228 -- 228
$ (15411) 263 (3.045) 9,768 (6,986) (15.411)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings
For the year emded December 33, 2000
(% in thousands)

Jones Lang

LaSalle Consolidated
Incorporated  Jomes Lang Jomes Lang
(Parent and LaSalle Guarantor Non-Guarantor LaSalle
Guarantor) Finance B.Y, Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Incorporated

Revenue $ -- 453,226 489,298 -- 942,524

Equity earnings (loss) from
subsidiaries 55,832 110 (105.006} -

Total revenue 509,058 489,408 (105,006) 942,524

Operating expenses before
merger related non-recurring
charges . .......... ... .. 17,565 428,026 404,733 850,326

Merger related non-recurring
charges . ............... 79,908 3.433 2.454 - 85,795

Operating income (loss) . .. (48,409) 77,599 82,221 (105,006) 6,403

Interest expense, net of
interest income 7,931 16,245 3.215 27182

Earnings (loss) before
provision for income taxes

and minority interest . ... (56,340) 207 61,354 79,006 (105.006) (20,779)

Net provision for income taxes . 720 97 2,479 18,757 - 22,053
Minority interests in earnings

of subsidiaries .. ......... -- - - 21 - 21

Net earnings (loss) before

cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle .. ... (57.060) 110 58,875 60,270 {105,006) (42,811)
Cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle,

netoftax .............. - - (981D (4.438) -- (14.249)
Net earnings (loss) .. ....... $ (57,060) 110 49.064 55,832 (105,006) (57.060)
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Cash flows provided by operating
activities . .. ... .. ... ..

Cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities:
Net capital additions-
property and equipment ... ... ...
Other acquisitions and
investments, net of cash
acquired and transaction costs . . . ..
Subsidiary activity . ............
Investments in real estate ventures . .

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities . .. ... .....

Cash flows provided by (used in)
financing activities:
Net borrowings under credit facility .
Shares repurchased . ... .........
Common stock issued under stock
option plan and stock purchase
Programs . ... ...............

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities . ..........

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents . . .............
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period . ........ ...

Cash and cash equivalents,
endofperiod . .......... ... ...
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2002
(8 in thousands)

77

Jones
i.aSalle
Incorporated Jones Lang
(Parent and LaSalle Guarantor
Guarantor) Finance B.V. Subsidiaries
$ 6,913 26,867 23,478
(1,923) - (6,891)
- - (287)
509 6,718 (3,627)
-- -- (8.742)
(1.414) 6,718 (19,547)
(60) (33,572) (4,937)
(4,052) -- -
16 (33.572) (4.937)
5,515 13 (1,006)
3,142 52 (2.843)
65 (3,849)

Consolidated
Jones Lang
Non-Guarantor LaSalle

Subsidiaries Incorporated
1,111 68,369

(7,976) (16,790)

-- (287)

(3.600) -

(521) (9,263)

(12,097) (26,340)

4,331 (34,238)

(4,659) (8,711)

- 4,128
(328) (38.821)

(1,314) 3,208

10,095 10,446

8.781 13,654
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001
($ in thousands)

Jones
LaSalle
Incorporated
(Parent and
Guarantor)

Jones Lang
LaSalle
Finance B.V.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidated
Jones Lang
LaSalle
Incorporated

Cash flows provided by operating
activities $ (10,653)
Cash flows provided by {used in)

investing activities:

Net capital additions-

34

37,061

27,661

54,103

property and equipment .. .... ... (2,346) -- (16,309) (17,137) (35,792)
Other acquisitions and investments,
net of cash acquired and transaction
COSIS « ot vt -- -- (5.129) (284) (5.413)
Subsidiary activity . ..... ....... 23,139 25,576 (7,039) (41,676) --
Investments in real estate ventures . . -- -- (11.723) 20.379 8.656
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities ... ..... ... 20,793 25,576 (40,200} (38,718) (32,549)
Cash flows provided by (used in)
financing activities:
Net borrowings under credit facility (1,824) (25,710) 3,961 2,485 (21,088)
Shares repurchased . ............ {11,060) - -- - (11,060)
Common stock issued under stock
option plan and stock purchase
Programs . .. ................ 2,197 - -~ -- 2.197
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .. ... ... ... (10.687) (25.710) 3,961 2.485 (29.951)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents . . ... .. ........ (547) (100) 822 (8,572) (8,.397)
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period . ......... .. 3.689 152 (3.665) 18.667 18.843
Cash and cash equivalents,
endofperiod .. ....... ... ..... $ 3142 52 (2,843) 10.095 10,446
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2000
(3 in thousands)

Jones
LaSalle Consolidated
Incorporated Jones Lang Jones Lang
(Parent and LaSalle Guarantor Non-Guarantor LaSalle
Guarantor) Finznce B.V. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Incorporated
Cash flows provided by operating
activities . .......... ... ... .. $ 11,070 1,064 45913 82,293 140,340

Cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities:
Net capital additions-
property and equipment .. ....... (2,433) -- (19,695) (23,676) (45.804)
Other acquisitions and investments,
net of cash acquired and transaction

COSES oo oo - - (12,418) (915) (13,333)
Subsidiary activity .. ...... ... .. 311,876 (238,787) (17,018) (56,071) --
Investments in real estate ventures -- -- (3.144) (4.309) (7.453)

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities ........... 309,443 (238,787) (52,275) (84,971) (66,590)
Cash flows provided by (used in)
financing activities:
Net borrowings under credit facility . (316,214) 85,565 4,215 (1,551 (227,985)
Net praceeds from issuance of the
EuroNotes .. ...... ... ... ... (1,169) 152,310 (2,545) - 148,596
Shares repurchased . ......... ... (816) -- -- -- (816)
Common stock issued under stock
option plan and stock purchase
Programs . .. ... .... ... ... 1,990 -- - -- 1,990
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities . .......... (316.209) 237,875 1,670 (1,551 (78.215)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents . .. ........ .. .. 4,304 152 (4,692) (4,229) (4,465)

Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period ............ (615) -- 1,027 22.896 23.308

Cash and cash equivalents,
endofperiod .. ........ ... ..... $ 3689 152 (3,665) 18,667 18,843
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(19 Subsequent Events

On February 13, 2003 the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the grant of 330,000 restricted
stock units to certain employees. These restricted stock units, which were granted under the 1997 Jones Lang LaSalle Stock Award
and Incentive Plan, have a zero strike price and 50% will vest July 1, 2006 (over 40 months) and 50% will vest July 1, 2008 (over
64 months). The total related compensation expense of $4.3 million (330,000 shares at $13.00 per share) will be expensed over
the vesting periods.

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited consolidated statements of earnings data for each of our last eight quarters.
In our opinion, this information has been presented on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements appearing
elsewhere in this report, and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments and accruals, that we consider
necessary for a fair presentation. The unaudited consolidated quarterly information should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto as well as the "Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates"
section within "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.". The operating results
for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future period.

We would note the following points regarding how we prepare and present our financial statements on a periodic basis.

Periodic Accounting for Incentive Compensation - An important part of our overall compensation package is incentive
compensation, which is typically paid out to employees in the first quarter of the year after it is earned. In our interim financial
statements we accrue for incentive compensation based on the percentage of revenue and compensation costs recorded to date
relative to forecasted revenue and compensation costs for the full year as substantially all incentive compensation pools are based
upon revenues and profits. The impact of this incentive compensation accrual methodology is that we accrue very little incentive
compensation in the first six months of the year, with the majority of our incentive compensation accrued in the second half of
the year, particularly in the fourth quarter. We adjust the incentive compensation accrual in those unusual cases where earned
incentive compensation has been paid to employees. In addition, we exclude from the standard accrual methodology incentive
compensation pools that are not subject to the normal performance criteria. These pools are accrued for on a straight-line basis.
As discussed in Note 13 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, certain senior employeesreceive a portion of their incentive
compensation in the form of restricted stock units of our common stock. We recognize this compensation over the vesting period
of these restricted stock units, which has the effect of deferring a portion of current year incentive compensation to later years.
Given that the majority of our incentive compensation is accrued in the fourth quarter, we do not estimate and account for the
current year impact of this program until the fourth quarter.

Income Taxes - We provide for the effects of income taxes on interim financial statements based on our estimate of the
effective tax rate for the full year. We assess our effective tax rate on a quarterly basis and reflect the benefit from tax planning
actions when we believe it is probable they will be successful, which usually requires that certain actions have been initiated. We
account for the cumulative catch-up impact of any change in estimated effective tax rate in the quarter that a change is made.
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
Quarterly Information

(Unaudited)
2002
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Year
($ in thousands, except share data)
Revenue:
Owner & Occupier Services:
AMEFICAS . . . oot $ 55,828 61,439 71,299 102,338 290,904
Europe .. ... .. 64,337 78,843 73,890 97,344 314,414
AsiaPacific ... ... ... . ... 26,224 31,968 30,484 37,902 126,578
Investment Management . ... ... . .......... ... ... 19,158 22,013 35,005 32,833 109,009
Less: intersegment revenue . .. .. ........ .. ... ...... (117) (8%5) (173) 101) (476)
Total revenue . ... ... ... .. ... .. 165,430 194,178 210,505 270,316 840,429
Operating expenses:
Owner & Occupier Services: ‘
AMETICAS . . . ot e 57,944 57,885 65,005 78,068 258,902
Europe . . ... .. 64,059 73,138 73,027 86,435 296,659
Asia Pacific . ...... .. ... ... ... 29,250 30,675 30,426 36,458 126,809
Investment Management . ... ... . ... ... ... ....... 18,306 19,363 23,940 27,360 88,969
Less: intersegment eXpenses . ... ............. ..., (117) (85) (173) (1on (476)
Non-recurring and restructuring charges . ............... 100 951 472 13,348 14.871
Total operating expenses . .. ... . ......... ... 169,542 181,927 192,697 241,568 785,734
Operating income (loss) ... ... ... .. i $ (4,112) 12,251 17,808 28,748 54,695
Net earnings (10SS} ... ... i $ (4,033 3,506 10,169 17,470 27,110
Basic earnings (loss) per common share before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle . ... .......... ..., $ (0.18) 0.12 0.33 0.56 0.85
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of
minority interest, netoftax ...... ... ... .. ... .. .. $ - - - 0.01 0.01
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principal ... L 3 0.03 - -- -- 0.03
Basic earnings (loss) per common share . ............ ... $ (0.13) 0.12 0.33 0.57 0.89
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle .. . ... ... ... ... $ (0.16) 0.11 0.32 0.54 0.81
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of
minority interest, netof tax . ... ....... ... . ... .. $ -- - -- 0.01 0.01
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principal . ... L. $ 003 - - - 0.03
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share . ............. $ (013 0.11 0.32 0.55 0.85
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JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED
Quarterly Information
(Unaudited)

2001
March 31 June 36 Sept. 30

(8 in thousands, except share data)
Revenue:
Owner & Occupier Services:
Americas $ 64,606 78,484 78,997 105,850 327,937
85,688 77,599 74,331 107,222 344,840
Asia Pacific 27,886 28,639 32,748 40,261 129,554
Investment Management 24,476 19,732 35,882 24,219 104,309

Less: intersegment revente (160) (550) (189) (292) (1.191)

Total revenue 202,496 203,924 221,769 277,260 905,449

Operating expenses:
Owner & Occupier Services:

Americas 75,322 74,926 70,951 80,412 301,611
77,072 71,899 70,001 83,344 302,316

Asia Pacific 30,433 31,046 32,144 36,287 129,910
Investment Management 19,703 20,2135 22,981 19,713 82,612
Less: iﬁtersegment expenses (160) (550) (189) (292) (1,191)
Non-recurring and restructuring charges 1,055 2.595 24,490 49.092 77,232
Total operating expenses 203,425 200,131 220,378 268,556 892,490
Operating income (loss) 5 (929 3,793 1,391 8,704 12,959
Net 10SS vt $ (3,546) (1,922) (6,181) (3,762) (15,411)
Basic loss per common share .. ..................... $ (0.12) (0.06) 0.21) (0.13) (0.51)
Diluted loss per common share . . ............... .. ... $ (0.12) (0.06) (0.21) (0.13) (0.51)
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Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(% in thousands)

Balance at
Beginning
Description of Period
2002
Accounts Receivable Reserves (B) . .. $ 5,887
2001
Accounts Receivable Reserves . ... .. $ 8,843
2000
Accounts Receivable Reserves ... ... $ 9,871
(A) Includes primarily write-offs of uncollectible accounts.
(B)

Costs and
Expenses

262

8,257

5,464

Balance

Deductions at End
(A) of Pericd
1,157 $ 4,992
11,213 $ 5,887
6,492 $ 8,843

Costs and expenses for 2002 are net of the $2.0 million reversal of bad debt reserves relating to Diverse.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorporated by referenceto the material in Jones Lang LaSalle’s Proxy Statement
for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement") under the captions "Election of Directors," "Management"
and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Proxy Statement under the caption
"Executive Compensation.”

ftem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this item is incorporated by referenceto the material in the Proxy Statement under the caption
“Security Ownership."

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 with respect to Jones Lang LaSalle’s common shares
issuable under our equity compensation plans (in thousands, except exercise price):

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Weighted- Future Issuance
Securities Average Under Equity
to be Issued Exercise Compensation
Upon Exercise Price of Plans
of Qutstanding Qutstanding (Excluding
Options, Options, Securities
Warrants and Warrants and Reflected in
Plan Category Rights Rights Column (A})
(A 8 ©
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders
SAIP (1) 5,436 $ 19.00 2,395
ESPP (2) -- -- 243
Subtotal 5,436 2,638
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders
SAYE (3) 220 $13.63 280
Subtotal 220 280
Total 5,656 2918

Notes:

(1) In 1997, we adopted the 1997 Stock Award and Incentive Plan ("SAIP") that provides for the granting of options to
purchase a specified number shares of common stock and other stock awards to eligible participants of Jones Lang LaSalle.

(2)  In 1998, we adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") for eligible US based employees. Under this plan,
employee contributions for stock purchases will be enhanced through an additional contribution of 15%.

(3)  In November of 2001, we established the Jones Lang LaSalle Savings Related Share Option (UK) Plan ("SAYE") for
employees of our UK based operations. Under the SAYE plan, employees have a one-time opportunity to enter into a tax
efficient savings plan linked to the option to purchase stock. The Company enhances employee contributions by 15%.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under

the caption "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions."

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Within the 90 days prior to the date of this report, Jones Lang LaSalle carried out an evaluation, under the supervision

and with the participation of the Company’s management, including Christopher A. Peacock, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Lauralee E. Martin, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14. Based upon that evaluation, Mr. Peacock
and Ms. Martin concluded that Jones Lang LaSalle’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to
material information relating to the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in Jones Lang
LaSalle’s periodic SEC filings.

There were no significant changes made in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly

affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(a)

(b)

Financial Statements and Schedules:
1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report.
2. Financial Statement Schedule:

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report.
3. Exhibits

A list of exhibits is set forth in the Exhibit Index which immediately precedes the exhibits and is incorporated
by reference herein.

Reports on Form 8-K:

On October 30, 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a Report on Form 8-K incorporating a press release announcing
earnings for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002 and a share repurchase program.

On November 15, 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a Report on Form 8-K incorporating its November Investor
Relations presentation.

On December 23, 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a Report on Form 8-K incorporating a press release announcing
the acquisition of the minority interest in a Swedish joint venture.

On January 3, 2003, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a Report on Form 8-K incorporating a press release announcing
a reduction in workforce.

On February 4, 2003, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a Report on Form 8-K incorporating a press release announcing
earnings for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2002.

On February 19, 2002, Jones Lang LaSalle filed a report on Form 8-K incorporating its February Investor
Relations presentation.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this filing and elsewhere (such as in reports, other filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, press releases, presentations and communications by Jones Lang LaSalle or its management and written and oral
statements) may constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause Jones
Lang LaSalle’s actual results, performance, achievements, plans and objectives to be materially different from any future resuits,
performance, achievements, plans and objectives expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors are
discussed in (i) this Report in Item 1. "Business," Item 7. "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations," [tem 7A. "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," and elsewhere, (ii) Jones Lang
LaSalle’s Proxy Statement dated April 3, 2002, and (iii) in other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Jones
Lang LaSalle expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect any
changes in events or circumstances or in its expectations or results.

Power of Attorney

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated, a Maryland corporation, and
the undersigned Directors and officers of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated, hereby constitutes and appoints Christopher A. Peacock,
Lauralee E. Martin and Nicholas J. Willmott its, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, for it, him or her and in
its, his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, with full power to act alone, to sign any and all amendments to this
report, and to file each such amendment to this report, with all exhibits thereto, and any and all decuments in connection therewith,
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power
and authority to do and perform any and all acts and things requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully
to all intents and purposes as it, he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-
fact and agents, or any of them, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Chicago, State of 1llinois,
on the 27th day of February, 2003.

JONES LANG LASALLE INCORPORATED

By:

Signature

/s/ Stuart L.. Scott

Stuart L. Scott

/s/ Christopher A. Peacock

Christopher A. Peacock

/s/ Peter C. Roberts

Peter C. Roberts

/s/ Lauralee E. Martin

Lauralee E. Martin

/s/ Henri-Claude de Bettignies

Henri-Claude de Bettignies

/s/ Darryl Hartley-Leonard

Darryl Hartley-Leonard

/s/ Derek A. Higgs

Derek A. Higgs

/s/ Thomas C. Theobald

Thomas C. Theobald

/s/ Sheila A. Penrose

Sheila A. Penrose

/s/ Jackson P. Tai

Jackson P. Tai

/s/ Nicholas J. Willmott

Nicholas J. Willmott

/s/ Lauralee E. Martin

Lauralee E. Martin

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Authorized Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 27th day of February, 2003.

Title

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Operating Officer and Director

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Executive Vice President and Global Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Certifications

I, Christopher A. Peacock, certify that:

1.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Jones Lang LaSalle incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstancesunder which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior
to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

February 27, 2003 {s/ Christopher A. Peacock
Christopher A. Peacock
President and Chief Executive Officer
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1.

2.

Date:

Certifications

I, Lauralee E. Martin, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Jones Lang LaSalle incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstancesunder which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior
to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

February 27, 2003 /s/ Lauralee E. Martin
Lauralee E. Martin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Index

Description

2.1

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

3.1

3.2

33

34

Subscription Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.01 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-25741).

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, as amended, with respect to the acquisition by the Registrant
of the JLW Parent Companies operating in Europe and the U.S.A. (the "Europe/USA Agreement") (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, as amended, with respect to the acquisition by the Registrant
of the JLW Parent Companies operating in Australia and New Zealand (the "Australasia Agreement") (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, as amended, with respect to the acquisition by the Registrant
of the JLW Parent Companies operating in Asia (the "Asia Agreement"} (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Form of Purchase and Sale Joinder Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant and each of the
shareholders selling equity interests in the JLW Parent Companies under the Europe/USA Agreement (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Form of Purchase and Sale Joinder Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant and each of the
shareholders selling equity interests in the JLW Parent Companies under the Australasia Agreement (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Form of Purchase and Sale Joinder Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant and each of the
shareholders selling equity interests in the JLW Parent Companies under the Asia Agreement (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Form of Indemnity and Escrow Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant, certain subsidiaries
of the Registrant and each of the shareholders selling equity interests in the JLW Parent Companies under the Europe/USA
Agreement, the Australasia Agreement and the Asia Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9, 1998)).

Form of Stockholder Agreement, dated as of Cctober 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant and each of the persons
receiving shares of common stock under the Europe/USA Agreement, the Australasia Agreement and the Asia Agreement
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 1998 (filed December 9,
1998)).

Form of Stockholder Agreement, dated as of October 21, 1998, by and among the Registrant and each of the partners of DEL-
LPL Limited Partnership and DEL-LPAML Limited Partnership who was an employee of the Registrant in October 1998 and
who received shares of Common Stock in connection with the dissolution of DEL-LPL Limited Partnership and DEL-LPAML
Limited Partnership (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Current Report on From 8-K dated October 22, 1998
(filed December 9, 1998)).

Charter of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002).

Articles of Association of Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V. (English Translation of Dutch Original) (Incorporated by
reference to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Charter of Jones Lang LaSalle Americas, [nc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

39

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.14

3.15

4.1

42

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

Bylaws of Jones Lang LaSalle Americas, [nc. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Charter of LaSalle Investment Management, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Bylaws of LaSalle Investment Management, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Certificate of Incorporation of Jones Lang LaSalle International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to Jones Lang
LaSalle Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Bylaws of Jones Lang LaSalle International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Charter of Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Bylaws of Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.11 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Articles of Incorporation of LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.12 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Bylaws of LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.13 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Memorandum of Association of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.14 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Articles of Association of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.15 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-48074-01)).

Form of certificate representing shares of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated common stock (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001).

Indenture, dated July 26, 2000, among Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V., Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated, as parent
Guarantor, Jones Lang LaSalle Americas, Inc., LaSalle Investment Management, Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle International, Inc.,
Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc., LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc. and Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, as Guarantors, and
The Bank of New York, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

Form of Note (included in Exhibit 4.2},

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 19, 2000, among Jones Lang LaSalle Finance B.V., Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated, Jones Lang LaSalle Americas, Inc., LaSalle Investment Management, Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle International,
Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc., LaSalle Hotel Advisors, Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, Morgan Stanley &
Co. International Limited, Bank of America International Limited, BMO Nesbitt Bums Corp., and Chase Manhattan
International Limited (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

Multicurrency Credit Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 31, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Annual Report on Ferm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1996, by and among LaSalie Construction Limited Partnership, LaSalle
Partners Limited Partnership, Clune Construction Company, L.P. and Michael T. Clune (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-25741).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4

10.5

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

12.1

211

23.1

24.1

99.1

99.2

Amended and Restated Stock Award and Incentive Plan, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 10.4.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333~
42193).

First Amendment to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Second Amendment to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998).

Third Amendment to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

Description of Management Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 22, 1997, by and among the Registrant, DEL-LPL. Limited Partnership,
DEL-LPAML Limited Partnership, DSA-LSPL, Inc., DSA-LSAM, Inc. and Galbreath Holdings, LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-25741.)

Form of Indemnification Agreement with Executive Officers and Directors (Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.14 to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Severance Pay Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001).

Senior Executive Services Agreement with Christopher A. Peacock (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Jones Lang
LaSalle Incorporated’s Annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

Senior Executive Service Agreement with Robert Orr (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

Jones Lang LaSalle Savings Related Share Option (UK) Plan adopted October 24, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Jones Lang L.aSalle Incorporated Co-Investment Long Term Incentive Plan, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit
10.16.

LaSalle Investment Management Long Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002).

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of Subsidiaries

Independent Auditors’ Consent

Power of Attorney (Set forth on page preceding signature page of this report.)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer dated February 27, 2003, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 99.1.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer dated February 27, 2003, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 69.2.
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